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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is the
largest vertically integrated knitwear manufacturer in China. The Group
is principally engaged in the manufacturing of highend knitwear on an
OEM basis. The Group was also the knitwear garment manufacturing
enterprise with the largest exporting amount of knitwear and ranked
first among PRC garment exporting enterprises according to the
2012 reports on the development of China’s garment industry and
the 2012 annual reports on China’s international trade in textiles and
clothing.

The Group’s production base is located in Economic Technical
Development Zone of Ningbo and strategically set up garment
factories in Quzhou and Anging of China and Cambodia. The Group
also established sales offices or branch offices in Shanghai, Hong
Kong and Osaka. The Group currently had over 57,100 employees
and the area of the factories spans across 1,720,000 sg.m., which
can produce various knitwear of over 234 million pieces per year.

The Group focuses on producing sports product, casual wear and
lingerie wear with the major international renowned clients including
UNIQLO, ADIDAS, NIKE, and PUMA. The production market is also
gradually extended from Japan to Asia Pacific, Europe and the US
market.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2005 with an aim to be
the most competitive knitwear manufacturer in the world. The stock
code of the Company is 2313. Shenzhou International was included
in Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang Seng Composite Industry
Index (Consumer Goods) and Hang Seng Composite MiddleCap
Index, effective from 8 March 2010.

From the year 2010 to the year 2013, Shenzhou International has
been named in the “Top 1000 Asian Companies” List of Yazhou
Zhoukan and during the year 2010, it has been recognised by Forbes
Asia as one of the “Best Under A Billion” Companies. Shenzhou
International was selected by Finet and QQ.COM as one of the Top
100 HK Listed Companies 2012.
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KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST
FIVE YEARS

BEt-A=t-RLEE/W+=A=1+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E-=f —T—-F —T——F —T-%F ZZENE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
TEHRKER Key Financial Information
(AR®TR) (RMB’000)
HEH Sales 10,047,217 8,937,578 9,043,442 6,719,172 6,093,485
BTSRRI AR Profit before income tax 2,201,209 2,005,465 2,059,420 1,624,597 1,473,553
EERNE Profit for the year 1,803,912 1,621,480 1,704,847 1,272,645 1,253,114
KRAIRERFEA Profit attributable to equity
FEIEFIE holders of the Company 1,802,989 1,620,158 1,703,845 1,271,654 1,252,030
FnBEE Non-current assets 4,324,581 3,967,507 3,634,317 3,585,484 3,038,729
REEE Current assets 6,992,693 5,927,902 4,915,242 3,839,971 2,388,500
TEAR Current liabilities 985,617 1,773,275 2,437,331 2,517,503 1,454,532
MEEEFE Net current assets 6,007,076 4,154,627 2,477,911 1,322,468 933,968
BEE Total assets 11,317,274 9,895,409 8,549,559 7,425,455 5,427,229
BEAERTBAR Total assets less current liabilities 10,331,657 8,122,134 6,112,228 4,907,952 3,972,697
BER Total equity 10,331,657 8,122,134 6,112,228 4,813,271 3,895,696
ReRBEEZEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,609,050 2,144,405 1,029,596 519,017 377,717
FRUBLER Key Financial ratios
EHE (%) Gross profit margin (%) 28.3 285 288 29.9 31.7
FFEE (%) Net profit margin (%) 18.0 18.1 18.9 18.9 20.6
FERBELE%)1)  Net gearing ratio (%)(1) TEAN/A THEAN/A 35 189 8.2
MELLE Current ratio 71 3.3 2.0 15 1.6
JENEES 7 BEE(H)  Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 50 55 45 41 33
FEZHEEHA) Inventory turnover period (days) 110 111 107 116 84
MEE Notes:
1. BEAGEHLERIHEGAEEENBESN 1. Net gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings (less

REFEMRBES IR -

cash and cash equivalents) and total equity.

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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EEGERNSWHHEEE SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
PRODUCT CATEGORIES
BE+t-R=t-RHLEE
For the year ended 31 December
E-=F —2--F —F——F —E-%F —EThE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ARETT % AREFIL % AREFIL % ARETIL % ARETFL %
RMB’000 % RMB000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %
REM By products
EHH Sports 5,561,070 55.4 4,994,455 55.9 4,949,196 54.7 3,373,294 50.2 2,578,060 423
REE Casual 2,872,104 286 2,993,648 335 3,046,903 33.7 2,365,684 35.2 2,835,415 465
AKEE Lingerie 1,378,932 13.7 701,766 78 799,391 88 740,586 10 524,141 8.6
Hidt&  Other knitting 235,111 2.3 247,709 28 247952 28 239,608 36 155,869 26
HEZEES  Total sales 10,047,217 100.0 8,937,578 100.0 9,043,442 1000 6,719,172 1000 6,093,485 100.0
2.3% 2.8% 2.8%

3.6% 2.6%

REBRZE Casual EBRRE Sports ATRARZE Lingerie Hh$45 R Other knitting

MBI EEIER AR AT Annual Report 2013
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BhiE oMo EERE SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
REGIONAL DISTRIBUTION
BET-B=1-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
%-zf 2-Cf 2f It 42 Z2ENE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ARETTR % ARETIL % ARETR % ARETR % ARETR %
RMB’000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %
il By regions
e International sales
BE Japan 3,392,580 338 2,805,902 314 3224267 307 2,772,854 43 3201526 52.5
BN Europe 1,744,070 174 1,849,436 207 1,949,355 216 1,392,450 207 929,192 15.3
X8 Us 900,013 8.9 727,913 8.1 516,420 57 439,591 6.5 339,692 56
EER Qther countries 2,101,090 209 1,778,979 199 1,428,093 158 760,347 13 531,090 8.7
NHEE Domestic sales 1,909,464 190 1,775,348 199 1926317 212 1,353,930 202 1,091,985 179
HEBES Total sales 10,047,217 1000 8,937,578 1000 9,043,442 1000 6,719,172 1000 6,093,485 100.0

21.2%
35.7%
19.9% 15.8%
21.6%
17.9%
41.3% 52.5%
8.7%
11.3% —EENE
i 2009
5.6%
6.5%
15.3%

Ell A $H%E Domestic Sales | EAfhiEIZR Other Countries BN Europe

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

CHINESE NAME
MR R EER AR AR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Guanlin

Mr. Ma Renhe

Ms. Zheng Miaohui

Mr. Wang Cunbo

Mr. Chen Zhifen (appointed on 1 December 2013)
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Mr. Chen Genxiang
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji
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Ms. Zheng Miaohui
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji
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Mr. Jiang Xianpin (Chairman)

Mr. Qiu Weiguo (appointed on 1 April 2013)
Mr. Chen Genxiang

Mr. Zong Pingsheng (resigned on 1 April 2013)
Mr. Chen Xu (appointed on 1 December 2013)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Chen Genxiang (Chairman)

Mr. Ma Renhe
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Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Nomination Committee

Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Qiu Weiguo (appointed on 1 April 2013)
Mr. Zong Pingsheng (resigned on 1 April 2013)
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Corporate Information

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2708, 27th Floor

Billion Plaza

No. 8 Cheung Yue Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS

Allen & Overy

Lennon & Lawyers

Troutman Sanders Solicitors and International Lawyers

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited

Bank of Ningbo Company Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Citic Bank Corporation Limited

China Everbright Bank Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

INVESTOR AND PRESS RELATIONS ADVISER
iPR Ogilvy Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.shenzhouintl.com

STOCK CODE
2313
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B#% Ma Jianrong
BEESEE
Chairman of the Board

To All Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), |
am pleased to announce the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 2013 for
shareholders’ review.

In 2013, the Group achieved satisfactory growth in sales revenue
and operating results, which recorded a historic high albeit a difficult
industrial operating environment. Personally, | was pleased and
encouraged by our achievement. During the year, enterprises were
increasingly challenged by high-rising costs brought by skyrocketing
labor costs, persistent gap between cotton prices of domestic and
international market, rapid RMB appreciation against the US dollar
and the Japanese yen as well as further requirements imposed by the
government on corporate efforts in respect of energy conservation
and emission reduction. To resolve the operating difficulties and in
view of the long-term business development, the Group built a fabric
production base in Vietnam, strengthened its partnership with key
customers, pushed forward clean production in a comprehensive
manner and deepened the cultivation of corporate culture, thus,
laying a solid foundation for the sustainable development of the
Group. | hereby would cheer for the investors’ recognition of the
achievement made by the Group and for their enduring support to
the business development strategy of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group was in an ideal
financial position. Total sales throughout the year amounted to
approximately RMB10,047,217,000, representing an increase of
12.4% when compared to 2012. In comparison to profit attributable
to the equity holders of the Company of RMB1,620,158,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2012, profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013
increased by 11.3% to RMB1,802,989,000. Earnings per share
amounted to RMB1.32. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of RMB2,609,050,000.

In light of promising business performance and strong financial
position of the Group, the Board recommends the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.75 per share (including a special dividend of
HK$0.20 per share), equivalent to about RMBO0.59 per share.

According to the statistics of China Customs, the total export value of
China’s textile and garment (including textile yarn, fabrics and finished
products as well as apparel and apparel accessories, the same as
below) in 2013 was US$284.07 billion, representing an increase of
approximately 11.4% over the previous year. Out of the total export
value, the export value of textile products amounted to US$106.98
billion, representing a year-on-year rise of approximately 11.7%; the
garment export value rose by approximately 11.3% to US$177.09
billion on a year-on-year basis. Among the exports to major textiles
and garments market, the value from exports to the European Union
and the U.S rose by 9.3% and 6.9%, respectively; the value from
exports to Japan dropped by 1.0% with declining market share in the
Japanese market; and exports to ASEAN rose significantly by 28.3%,
making the ASEAN market China’s major exporting destination of
garment materials.

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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China is the largest exporting country of textiles and garments.
However, as the cost in respect of labor forces and environment
resources escalates, China’s main competitive advantage of low price
and big volume vanishes. Some garment importing countries have
been shifting their purchase from China to other low-cost countries.
Therefore, China’s textile and garment enterprises shall accelerate the
transformation and upgrading as well as the relocation of production
bases out of China by leveraging on their advantages in talents
and capital strengths, so as to maintain the competitiveness in the
industry across the world.

Among the neighboring countries of China, Vietnam’s textile and
garment exports continued to maintain a rapid growth. As a member
state of the Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPP), Vietnam
is expected to enjoy privilege of low import tariffs on garments
exported to other TPP member countries when the TPP agreement
comes into effect; in addition, labor supply in Vietnam is sufficient
while the wages are lower than in China. These advantages will
be conducive to the long-term development of Vietnam’s garment
industry. However, Vietnam’s garment industry faces incomplete
supporting facilities, relatively small-scale enterprises, inadequate
capital for advanced equipments to rapidly expand their productivity,
and relatively insufficient talents in industrial technologies and
managerial personnel. Currently, most of the garment materials in
Vietnam are imported from China. In 2013, the imports of fabrics
from China amounted to approximately US$5.57 billion, representing
approximately 31% of the total garment export value in Vietnam.
Inadequate productivity restricts the growth speed of the garment
industry in Vietham. The Vietnamese government is carrying out
reform and opening up policies, and encourages overseas enterprises
to invest in Vietnam. It is expected that such policies will promote
coordinated development between up- and down-stream garment
enterprises in Vietnam.

Over the past two years, the gap between cotton prices of domestic
and international market added to the operating pressure on China’s
textile and garment enterprises. It is quite pleasing that new policies on
cotton prices are expected to be implemented in 2014. The Opinions
on Comprehensively Deepening Rural Reform to Promote Agricultural
Modernization issued by the CPC Central Committee and the State
Council has shown that the channel for government’s influence
over cotton prices will be changed from governmental purchasing
and storage to direct subsidies to cotton farmers. As a result, the
unfavorable position landed by China’s textile and garment enterprises in
the international market due to price gap of materials will be reversed.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Board collaborated closely with various dedicated committees
during the year. Tasks were performed in line with the Group’s
overall strategies and goals. Fruitful results were reaped in various
tasks. All members of the Company are committed to maintaining
highest degree of corporate governance as well as achieving fair and
impartial decision-making processes. We will strive for maintaining a
high degree of transparency, and pay every effort on providing open
channels of communication for all shareholders and investors.

I would like to express sincere gratitude to my fellow Directors for
their dedicated contribution over the year, and to extend heartfelt
thanks to the management at all levels and all the staff for their
devotion during the year. The Group’s success in achieving
satisfactory growth in a difficult operating environment is attributed
to the diligence and dedication of each and every member of us. |
would also like to thank our shareholders, customers and suppliers
for their enduring trust in the Company, and expect to have your
continuous supports in our future development.

In respect of future business development, the Group has clear
development strategies, including establishing and optimizing
the vertically-integrated production mode for overseas bases,
strengthening the development efforts in new products, providing
customers with a wider range of customer services, continuously
upgrading the refined production management mode, reducing staff
quantity and enhancing efficiency, improving the effective utilization of
resources and sticking to the operating philosophy of striking balance
between corporate development and environmental protection.

Significant opportunities will be found in times of greatest difficulty.
| am highly confident in the future development of the Group. The
Group will always provide its customers with better services and
create higher returns for shareholders, and be dedicated to becoming
the best enterprise in the industry across the globe.

Chairman of the Board
Ma Jianrong

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In the year of 2013, there were still many difficulties in the business

environment of China’s textile and garment industry as mainly reflected
in further increased cost pressure. The impact of demographic change
and rising prices made it more difficult for enterprises in recruitment,
and substantially increased labor costs; the restrictions on national
purchasing and storage of cotton and cotton import implemented by
the PRC government caused the price spreads between domestic and
international markets continued to exist; the increased appreciation of
RMB against the U.S. dollar and the Japanese yen resulted in increased
foreign exchange losses to export enterprises; the PRC government
required the enterprises to further improve energy saving and emission
reduction, resulting in rising costs of environmental resources for
enterprises; in terms of markets, Japan and other countries increased
apparel imports from Southeast Asia, resulting in the declined
market share of Chinese apparel products. Increasing cost pressures
accelerated the further integration of the textile and garment industry and
stimulated enterprises’ intrinsic motivation for innovation and change;
as a result, capable enterprises speeded up international distribution of
production bases.
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According to the statistics of China Customs, the total export value
of China’s textile and garment (including textile yarn, fabrics and
finished products as well as apparel and apparel accessories, the
same as below) in 2013 was US$284.07 billion, representing an
increase of approximately 11.4% over the previous year, with a
growth rate of approximately nine percentage points higher than
2012. Out of the total export value, the export value of textile
products amounted to US$106.98 billion, representing a year-on-
year rise of approximately 11.7%; the garment export value rose by
approximately 11.3% to US$177.09 billion on a year-on-year basis,
in which the export value of knitted garments rose by approximately
11.5% to US$86.91 billion on a year-on-year basis. In 2013, the
three major import markets including the European Union, the United
States and Japan accounted for 42.3% of China’s total export value
of textile and apparel products on an aggregate basis in that year,
with the proportion declined by about 2 percentage points compared
to the previous year. Among them, exports to the European Union
rose by 9.3% to US$51.66 billion on a year-on-year basis; exports to
the U.S. rose by 6.9% to US$41.62 billion on a year-on-year basis;
and exports to Japan dropped by 1.0% to US$26.97 billion on a
year-on-year basis. Out of the major export markets, exports to the
European Union market recovered a growth, whereas the proportion
of exports to the Japanese market continued to decline, which
was mainly because Japan increased the proportion of imports
from Southeast Asian countries. In addition, exports to Hong Kong
increased by 20.0% to US$19.54 billion; and exports to ASEAN
rose by 28.3% to US$34.2 billion, maintaining a rapid growth. The
ASEAN market accounted for 12.0% of China’s aggregate textile
and garment export value in 2013, and for the first time surpassed
the Japanese market, becoming the third largest market of China’s

textile and garment exports.
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In 20183, the export value from the top five coastal provinces in
China accounted for 70.6% (2012: 72.1%) of the total export value
of China on an aggregate basis, representing a decrease of 1.5%
over the previous year. Export value of Zhejiang Province increased
by 12.4% over the previous year to US$67.29 billion; export value
of Guangdong Province increased by 5.3% over the previous year
to US$44.90 billion; export value of Jiangsu Province increased by
6.1% over the previous year to US$43.72 billion; export value of
Fujian Province and Shandong Province increased by 22.3% and
9.3% over the previous year respectively to US$22.97 billion and
US$21.60 billion respectively. Coastal provinces are still the main
provinces of textile and garment exports, but their export growth
rates were generally lower than the national average except Fujian
Province and Zhejiang Province. Rising labor costs and restrictions
on resource supply will have a long-term effect on the industry’s
regional layout and structural adjustment.

According to statistics released by the General Administration of
Customs of China, the total import and export value of China’s
foreign trade in 2013 was US$4160.31 billion, with a growth rate of
7.6% over 2012. In particular, the total export value and the total
import value amounted to US$2,210.02 billion and US$1,950.29
billion respectively, representing an increase of 7.9% and 7.3% over
2012 respectively. During the year, the amount of China’s import and
export trade surplus amounted to US$259.73 billion, representing
an increase of US$28.62 billion or 12.4% when compared to
US$231.11 billion in 2012. For the first two months of 2014, the
total export value dropped by 1.6% over the same period last year.
The import and export trade surplus amounted to US$8.88 billion.
The low price and big volume will no longer be the main competitive
advantage of Chinese export commodities, therefore, enterprises
need to adjust the traditional export model, focus more on value-
added exports and comprehensive customer service capabilities, in
order to consolidate and improve their international market share.

According to statistics from General Department of Vietham
Customs, the export value of Vietnam’s textile industry was about
US$20.10 billion in 2013, representing an increase of 18.7% over the
previous year. In particular, the export value of textile and garment
was about US$17.95 billion, representing an increase of 18.9% over
the previous year; and the export value of yarn was about US$2.15
billion, representing an increase of 16.7% over the previous year. Its
textiles and garments were mainly exported to the United States,
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Japan and South Korea, with export value amounted to US$8.61
billion, US$2.38 billion and US$1.64 billion respectively; its yarns
were mainly exported to China, with export value of approximately
US$900 million. Vietnam's textile and garment exports continued
to maintain a rapid growth, however, the main raw materials for its
garment production were mainly imported from China. In 2013, the
export value of textiles from China to Vietnam amounted to US$7.55
billion, representing an increase of approximately 44.5%, in which
the export value of fabrics amounted to approximately US$5.57
billion, representing an increase of approximately 47.9%. China
is Vietnam’s largest source of import of fabrics. As the apparel
products of Vietnam, a Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPP)
member state, are expected to enjoy privilege of low import tariffs
in other TPP member countries, a number of textile and garment
enterprises accelerated the investment progress in Vietnam,
and the Vietnamese government also encourages strong foreign
textile and garment enterprises to expand investment in order to
reduce dependence on imported raw materials for clothing and to
further accelerate the development of Vietnam’s garment industry.
According to the current trend, the international market share of
Vietnam’s textile and garment export value will rise year by year,
and Vietnam will undertake some of the apparel orders drained from
China.

As of 31 December 2013, in comparison to the rate of US$1 to
RMB8.2765 prior to the exchange rate reform since 21 July 2005,
the exchange rate of RMB against U.S. dollar rose by approximately
35.7% on an accumulated basis. Specifically, during the year, the
exchange rate of RMB against U.S. dollar increased by 3.1%. The
continued appreciation of the RMB has increased the operating
pressure on export enterprises. However, considering that the
exchange rate of RMB against U.S. dollar was devaluated to some
extent during the first three months of 2014, the exchange rate
of RMB against U.S. dollar is expected to change from unilateral
appreciation to two-way volatility or even moderate depreciation.
During the year, the exchange rate of RMB against Japanese
yen was appreciated sharply by 26.4%. Depreciation of yen has
increased the procurement cost of Japanese customers and thus is
not conducive to the import consumption of the Japanese market.
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In 2013, the gross domestic product (“GDP”) of Mainland China grew
by 7.7% over the previous year to about RMB56.9 ftrillion. A stable
growth was maintained, but sustained economic growth will face
more challenges. Demographic dividend will no longer be the main
impetus of China’s economic growth. According to the statistics
bulletin of National Bureau of Statistics of China, at the end of 2013,
the population aged more than 60 in Mainland China accounted
for 14.9% of the total population, increasing by 14.3% compared
with the end of 2012 or an increase of 0.6 percentage points. The
aging phenomenon will continue to intensify in the coming years,
and the aggregate labor force will decline. Labor-intensive garment
industry will inevitably face rising labor costs and recruitment
difficulty. In addition, as environmental pollution caused by high
growth and high consumption in the past has seriously affected the
quality of people’s life, the society has placed more emphasis on
environmental issues, and the government has begun to attach more
importance to environmental protection than economic growth, the
enterprises will face increasing costs of environmental resources
and will be constrained by environmental factors in expansion.
Environmental factors will accelerate the integration of China’s textile
and apparel industry, and some environmental non-compliance
small- and medium-size enterprises will therefore exit the industry.

According to the information released by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, China’s cotton cultivation area in 2013 was 4.35
million hectares, which was a decrease of 0.34 million hectares
when compared to the previous year. Cotton production output
throughout the year was 6.31 million tons, representing a drop of
7.7% over the previous year. Cotton production output in China
recorded decline in output for two consecutive years. According
to the information released by the United States Department of
Agriculture (USDA) in February 2014, the world’s cotton production
output in 2013/14 is estimated to be about 25.40 million tons,
representing a decrease of about 1.39 million tons or about 5%
when compared to 2012/13. The world’s cotton consumption in
2013/14 is about 23.84 million tons, representing an increase of 0.69
million tons or about 3% when compared to 23.15 million tons in
2012/13. The world’s cotton carryover inventory stocks amounted
to 21 million tons, representing an increase of about 8% when
compared to the previous year. Inventory consumption ratio was
about 88%, reaching historic high. The cotton inventory in China is
estimated to be about 12.48 million tons, accounting for about 59%
of the global stock. China’s cotton consumption accounts for about
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33% of the world’s total consumption and cotton import accounts
for about 29% of the world’s total import. Both consumption and
import volume accounted for a smaller proportion of the world’s total
volume. The Opinions on Comprehensively Deepening Rural Reform
to Promote Agricultural Modernization issued by the CPC Central
Committee and the State Council in January 2014 states the gradual
establishment of the target price system for agricultural products,
namely, subsidies to low-income consumers when the market price
is too high, and subsidies to producers with price difference when
the market price is lower than the target price. Cotton from Xinjiang
Province will become the pilot for the target price subsidies, and
the impact of government on cotton prices will change from unified
purchasing and storage to direct subsidies to farmers. This will help
reduce the price difference of cotton between the domestic market
and the international market, and reduce operating pressure of the
textile and garment industry with cotton as the main raw material
while protecting the interests of farmers. Affected by high domestic
cotton stock and implementation of the above-mentioned policies,
decline in cotton prices is possible, but the downward trend of
cotton cultivation area and production will affect the long-term trend
of cotton prices.

During the year, consumer price continued to rise, representing an
increase of 2.6% compared to 2012. As of 31 December 2013, the
country’s foreign exchange reserves amounted to US$3,821.3 billion,
representing an increase of US$509.7 billion over the previous year.
Rise of RMB circulation caused by increased foreign exchange
reserves will further promote rising prices, and will increase cost
pressure on the textile and garment industry. As the People’s Bank
has promoted market-oriented interest rate reform from 20 July,
2013 onward, the financing costs of different enterprises will have a
greater difference, and capital will flow to enterprises with superior
configuration.

Change of the operating environment has affected the development
model of China’s textile and garment industry, and transformation
and upgrading measures such as downsizing to improve efficiency,
energy conservation and emission reduction has become intrinsic
motivation of enterprises. Furthermore, enterprises with strength
have accelerated the international distribution of production bases,
to seek complementary advantages of different resources at home
and abroad, and China’s neighboring Southeast Asian countries
will become the first choice for transfer of the textile and garment
industry.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the export value of textile and garment industry picked
up but the cost pressure was more obvious than before. The Group
achieved relatively satisfactory operating results amid the unfavorable
operating environment. In 2013, sales revenue and profit attributable
to equity holders were increased by 12.4% and 11.3% respectively
compared to 2012, both the peak in the Group’s history. During the
year, the Group attained further progress in a number of spectra, such
as optimizing the layout of production bases, strengthening cooperation
with key customers, promoting comprehensive clean production and
deepening corporate culture construction, in order to achieve long-term
business development.

During the year, the Group invested in the establishment of a fabric
production base in Tay Ninh Province, south of Vietham, and started the
construction of the factory in September 2013. Currently, the project is
progressing well, and the first phase is expected to be put into production by
the end of 2014. Following the establishment of a garment production base
in Phnom Penh, Cambodia, the establishment of such fabric production base
in Vietnam will extend the Group’s vertically integrated production model to
overseas, and will have a significant impact on the long-term development
of the Group’s business. Since the fabric production base in Vietnam is
adjacent to the garment factory in Cambodia, fabric transport wil become
more convenient, and thus the delivery of overseas garment factories
will be significantly shortened; the international distribution of production
bases can also meet the customer demand for decentralized procurement
sources, enjoy the privilege of low import tariffs in some countries, and can
effectively cope with the operating pressure caused by domestic rising cost
of production and resource supply restrictions. To take full advantage of the
production capacity of the fabric production base in Vietham, the Group has
begun the preparation for the establishment of a new garment factory in
southern Vietnam.

The business cooperation of the Group with key customers was closer.
By selectively reducing the undertaking of orders from some small-sized
and medium-sized customers to provide core customers with a better
production resource guarantee, the Group’s sales to major customers
saw an ideal growth during the year. Based on many years of industry
experience and innovative improvement, the Group has enhanced
the ability of customer service and broadened the scope of business
cooperation with core customers. During the year, the product mix
offered to major customers has also been improved, in which, revenue
of sports goods continue to grow, and revenue of lingerie products
increased sharply by 96.5% compared to last year.
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Promoting comprehensive clean production

“Creating a green business to contribute to a comfortable life” is the
Group’s corporate mission. The Group places emphasis on whole-
process production management and control in order to achieve
good effect of environmental protection, including selection of
environmentally friendly raw materials, improvement in production
process, purchase of energy-saving equipments, increased reuse of
reclaimed water and the implementation of high-standard end-of-
pipe treatment, in order to effectively reduce the adverse impacts of
the production process on the environment and better provide green
products for consumers. During the year, the Group’s production
base in Ningbo has begun the full use of cleaner biomass fuels
instead of coal-based energy, which has not only enhanced the
soft competitiveness of the Group despite increasing the corporate
operating costs, but also obtained support and recognition of the
government departments, and helped the long-term development of
the Group.

Deepening corporate culture construction

In order to further sustain the Group’s corporate culture and
enhance the staff’s sense of belonging and identity, the Group
strengthened its corporate culture publicity and further improved
the staff professional quality training system during the year. The
Chinese staff sent to overseas bases and newly hired foreign staff
have been arranged to attend special training, so that the Group’s
corporate culture can be inherited and carried forward in overseas
factories. During the year, “Shenzhou School of Management”, the
Group’s long-standing training institution, systematically planned
and adjusted the training courses to make them more targeted and
practical, and strengthened the training faculties. In view of good
results achieved in corporate culture construction and performance
management, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, achieved “Ningbo City Mayor Quality

Award” and “National Quality Award in the Textile Industry” during
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the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to
approximately RMB10,047,217,000, representing an increase
of RMB1,109,639,000 or about 12.4% when compared to
RMB8,937,578,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012. The
(1) the fact
that the Group’s revenue from the Japanese market has resumed

increase in revenue was due to the following facts:

growth; (2) the smooth launch of the new material knitting factory
in Ningbo; (38) satisfactory growth of order demand from major
customers; and (4) the expansion of the Group’s production capacity
due to the commencement of operations of the second phases of

the Cambodia and Anhui factories.

The comparison of the revenue of the Group for 2013 and 2012 by

BEGBERDITHEERELE product categories is as follows:
HBit+-A=t-BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E-=F —T-=F &
2013 2012 Change
AR®T % AREFT % ARETTL %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
RER By product

EBE Sports 5,561,070 55.4 4,994,455 55.9 566,615 1.3
NGk Casual 2,872,104 28.6 2,993,648 33.5 (121,544) 4.1
AR Lingerie 1,378,932 13.7 701,766 7.8 677,166 96.5
Hip#tm Other knitting 235,111 2.3 247,709 2.8 (12,598) (5.1)
HEBE Total revenue 10,047,217 100.0 8,937,578 100.0 1,109,639 12.4
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue from sale of
sportswear amounted to approximately RMB5,561,070,000,
representing an increase of RMB566,615,000 or 11.3% from
approximately RMB4,994,455,000 for the year ended 31 December
2012. The growth in sale of sportswear was mainly attributable
to the increasing orders from international brands, while the sale
of domestic sportswear brands continued the drop. During the
year, revenue from sale of domestic sportswear brands amounted
to approximately RMB93,986,000, representing a decrease of
RMB97,188,000 or approximately 50.8% from RMB191,174,000 in

the previous year.
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Revenue from sale of casual wear dropped by RMB121,544,000
or approximately 4.1% from RMB2,993,648,000 for the year ended
31 December 2012 to RMB2,872,104,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013. The decrease in revenue from sale of casual wear
was mainly attributable to the sales reduction applied to certain
medium and small clients, so as to satisfy the growing orders from
strategic clients and perfect the product mix.

Revenue from sale of lingerie products posted significant increase
by RMB677,166,000 or approximately 96.5% from RMB701,766,000
for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB1,378,932,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2013. The growth was mainly attributable
to the increased demand from Japanese clients and the launch of
new products.

EARFERNTE °
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A comparison of the Group’s revenue for 2013 and 2012 by market
regions is as follows:

Blt+-—A=t-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—g-z=% ke Sk 2 &
2013 2012 Change
ARET R % AREFL % ARETL %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ik By regions

Sk Japan 3,392,580 33.8 2,805,902 31.4 586,678 20.9
BUM Europe 1,744,070 17.4 1,849,436 20.7 (105,366) (5.7)
ZH us 900,013 8.9 727,913 8.1 172,100 236
HiEX Others 2,101,090 20.9 1,778,979 19.9 322,111 18.1

BR5E /Nt Sub-total for
international sales 8,137,753 81.0 7,162,230 80.1 975,523 13.6
B E Domestic sales 1,909,464 19.0 1,775,348 19.9 134,116 7.6
e Total revenue 10,047,217 100.0 8,937,578 100.0 1,109,639 12.4
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s revenue from
the Japanese market was approximately RMB3,392,580,000,
representing an increase of RMB586,678,000 or approximately
20.9% from approximately RMB2,805,902,000 for the year ended
31 December 2012. The Group’s sales for the same year from the
Japanese market reached its historical high mainly due to a rapid
increase in lingerie sales in Japan.

The Group’s revenue from the European market for the year ended
31 December 2013 amounted to approximately RMB1,744,070,000,
representing a decrease of RMB105,366,000 or approximately
5.7% from approximately RMB1,849,436,000 for the year ended
31 December 2012. The decrease was mainly due to the demand
for sportswear driven by the London Olympics in 2012, leading to a
fast growing in the revenue from sportswear in the first half of 2012.
Except the above reason, the revenue from sportwear in the first
half of 2013 declined as compared with the same period last year.
However, growth resumed in the European market in the second half
of 2013. Moreover, the Group’s adjustment to customer portfolio
also dented the sales in the European market.

The Group’s revenue from the US market for the year ended 31
December 2013 amounted to approximately RMB900,013,000,
representing an increase of RMB172,100,000 or approximately
283.6% from RMB727,913,000 for the year ended 31 December
2012. The growth of the Group’s sales from the US market was
mainly attributable to sportswear.

The Group maintained its fast revenue growth in other overseas
markets including Korea, Russia and Hong Kong. Revenue from
other overseas markets for the year ended 31 December 2013
surged by 18.1% as compared with last year. The growth of the
Group’s sales mainly came from Korea.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group gained 7.6%
in its revenue from the domestic market as compared with last
year, with sales of apparels in domestic market amounted to
approximately RMB1,717,487,000, representing an increase of
RMB143,733,000 or approximately 9.1% from RMB1,573,754,000
last year. The decrease in the Group’s sales of domestic sportswear
brands offset the sales increase in the domestic market.
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The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2013 amounted to approximately RMB7,208,534,000 (2012:
RMB6,393,023,000). The Group’s gross profit margin of sales in
2013 was 28.3%, representing a decrease of approximately 0.2
percentage point when compared to 28.5% in 2012. The Group’s
operating revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 included
a gain of RMB12,330,000 (2012: RMB37,487,000) from foreign
currency forward hedges between US dollars and Renminbi. If such
gain from foreign currency forward contract hedges was excluded,
the gross profit margin of the Group’s sales in 2013 would have
been 28.2% (2012: 28.2%), which remained flat as in 2012. Major
factors affecting the gross profit margin during the year included: (1)
a substantial rise in labor costs; (2) the continuous appreciation of
RMB against US dollars; (3) the cotton price gap in domestic and
overseas market; and (4) the Group’s optimization of product mix
and enhancement of production efficiency effectively offset the cost
pressure due to aforesaid adverse factors.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to RMB10,316,264,000 (2012:
RMB8,087,370,000), of which non-current assets, net current assets
and equity attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to
RMB4,324,581,000 (2012: RMB3,967,507,000), RMB6,007,076,000 (2012:
RMB4,154,627,000) and RMB15,393,000 (2012: RMB34,764,000),
respectively. The increase in equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company was mainly due to the placing of new shares and an
increase in retained earnings during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB1,709,301,000; in 2012, it was approximately RMB1,624,567,000.
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group as at 31 December 2013
amounted to RMB2,609,050,000 (2012: RMB2,144,405,000). The
balance of bank borrowings was nil (2012: RMB786,226,000, being
short-term bank borrowings). Net cash (cash and cash equivalents
less bank borrowings) increased by RMB1,250,87 1,000 as compared
with RMB1,358,179,000 as at 31 December 2012.

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted
to RMB10,316,264,000 (2012: RMB8,087,370,000). The Group
was in a good cash flow position, with a debt to equity ratio (total
outstanding borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable to the
equity holders of the Company) of nil (2012: 9.7%).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group entered into an
interest rate swap contract with the relevant bank in respect of a
loan denominated in US dollar. The contract came into effect on 30
April 2011 and will expire on 31 March 2014. The Group shall pay
interest to the relevant bank at a fixed rate of 1.13% per annum and
charge the relevant bank interest at the one-month US dollar LIBOR.
As of 31 December 2013, the outstanding balance of the contracted
transaction principal amounted to US$20,000,000. Since the Group
was in a good cash flow position, the loan denominated in US dollar
in relation to the above contract had been repaid in advance within
the year.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no pledge of assets.

Finance costs decreased from RMB29,987,000 for the year ended
31 December 2012 to RMB 10,010,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013. The decrease was mainly due to the reduction in
the Group’s average amount of bank borrowings during the year.
During the year, the Group’s US dollar loan annual interest rate
ranged from 1.15653% to 2.83%, and Renminbi loan annual interest
rate was 2.50% (2012: the loan annual interest rate of US dollar
and Renminbi ranged from 1.12% to 3.21% and 2.50% to 8.55%,
respectively).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB397,297,000, representing an increase
of RMB13,312,000 when compared to income tax expense of
RMB383,985,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012. The
increase in income tax expense was mainly due to the increase
in profit before tax of the Group. During the year, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group was awarded as a High New Technology
Enterprise and thus entitling a preferential corporate income tax rate
of 15%.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING OF
NEW SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company completed a placing of 85,000,000 new shares
on 26 April 2012 and raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$1,158,650,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB939,548,000
based on the exchange rate of HK dollar against RMB of
HK$1:RMBO0.8109) after related share issue expenses. The intended
use of the proceeds from the placing of new shares and the actual
use of those proceeds during the year are set out as follows:

° an amount of approximately RMB608,174,000 shall be used to
establish new textile production facilities in Mainland China and
to purchase and construct the relevant equipment and plants.
As of 31 December 2013, approximately RMB468,021,000 in
total had been used;

° an amount of approximately RMB121,635,000 shall be used to
set up new garment production facilities and to purchase the
relevant production equipment. As of 31 December 2013, the
amount had been fully utilized;

° an amount of approximately RMB81,090,000 shall be used to
expand the Group’s retail network. As of 31 December 2013,
approximately RMB42,053,000 in total had been used; and

° an amount of approximately RMB128,649,000 shall be used
to repay part of the Group’s short-term bank loans. As of 31
December 2013, the amount had been fully utilized.

As at 31 December 2013, the remaining net proceeds amounting to
approximately RMB179,190,000 have been placed as bank deposits
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. For the details of such placing
of new shares, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 16 April 2012 and 26 April 2012.

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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The placing of new shares in June 2013

The Company completed a placing of 69,000,000 new shares
on 28 June 2013 and raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$1,527,464,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,216,626,000
based on the exchange rate of HK dollar against RMB of
HK$1:RMBO0.7965) after related share issue expenses. The intended
use of the proceeds from such placing of new shares is set out as
follows:

° the proceeds will be used to build and construct a production
facility for the manufacture of fabrics in Vietham (“Vietnam
Project”) in phases, as to approximately HK$777,000,000 for
the building and construction of phase | of the Vietnam Project,
including long term leasehold land use right, construction of
buildings and staff quarters, construction of sewage system
and infrastructure, purchase of machinery and equipment, etc;
and

° the residual amount of the proceeds of approximately
HK$750,464,000 will be used to build and construct phase I
of the Vietnam Project and as general working capital.
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As of 31 December 2013, approximately HK$286,858,000 of the
proceeds from such placing had been utilized and the balance of
approximately HK$1,240,606,000 was placed in bank as deposits
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. For the details of such placing
of new shares, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 18 June 2013 and 28 June 2013. For details of the Vietnam
Project, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28
May 2013.
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As the Group’s sales were mainly settled in US dollar, while its
purchases were mainly settled in RMB, the Group’s costs and
operating profit margin were affected by exchange rate fluctuations
to a certain extent. The Group has adopted a policy to hedge part
of its foreign exchange risks in light of the existing fluctuations of
exchange rate between US dollar and RMB. The amounts to be
hedged depend on the Group’s expected revenue, purchases and
capital expenditure in US dollar, as well as the market forecast of
fluctuations in the exchange rate of US dollars against RMB.

To avoid the reduction in the value of future cash flows and the
volatility thereof arising from any exchange rate movement between
RMB and US dollar, the Group entered into forward contracts
selling US dollar. As of 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of the outstanding US dollar forward contracts was approximately
US$60,000,000 (as at 31 December 2012: approximately US$120,000,000).
The expansion of the overseas production bases of the Group will
add to the cost expenditure in US dollar, and is conducive to offset
the volatility of the exchange rate between RMB and US dollar. In
addition, the Group will also consider the arrangement of appropriate
amount of loans in foreign currency according to the bank interest
rates and capital requirement.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed more than
57,100 employees. Total staff costs, including management and
administrative staff, accounted for approximately 24.3% (2012:
21.4%) of the Group’s sales during the year. The Group remunerated
its staff according to their performances, qualifications and industry
practices, and conducted regular reviews of its remuneration policy.
Employees may receive discretionary bonuses and monetary rewards
based on their ratings in annual performance appraisals. The Group
also offered rewards or other incentives to motivate personal
growth and career development of the employees, such as ongoing
opportunities for training to enhance their technical and product
knowledge as well as their knowledge of industry quality standards.
Each of the new employees of the Group is required to attend an
introductory course, while there are also various types of training
courses available to all the Group’s employees.

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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During the year, the Group’s total investment in property, plant
and equipment and prepaid land lease payments amounted to
approximately RMB774,909,000, of which approximately 40% was
used for the acquisition of production equipment, approximately
55% for the construction and acquisition of new factory buildings
and prepaid land lease payments, and the balance was used for the
purchase of other fixed assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group has no significant events after the reporting period up to
the date of this announcement.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

Rising labor costs and resource prices, decelerated demand growth,
transfer of customer orders and other operating pressures will
continue to affect the development of China’s textile and garment
industry, and the development model with a low cost as competitive
advantage has been difficult to sustain. Despite many difficulties,
China’s textile and garment industry has better industry support,
more professionals and more solid financial strength in addition to
greater scale advantage compared to other producing countries, but
the related enterprises need to leverage the existing advantages,
improve the competitiveness through further transformation and
upgrade, and provide customers with more comprehensive services
to gain the leading superiority in the long-term development. The
Group has a clear development strategy, and is full of confidence in
the Group’s future.

The Group steadily expand the scale of its overseas production
bases, build and optimize the vertically integrated production model
from weaving, dyeing and finishing, printing and embroidery, cutting
and sewing, to shorten product delivery of overseas factories and
enhance productivity and sophisticated management level. At the
same time, the Group will strengthen vocational training for new
staff, promote cross-border heritage of the Group’s corporate
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culture, and make the overseas bases becoming an important
support for the further development of the business of the Group.
It is expected that the first phase of the Group’s fabric factory in
Vietnam will begin production at the end of 2014, which is expected
to extend the Group’s vertically integrated production model to
Vietnam. By then, it will not only reduce costs and shorten delivery
time, but can also take full advantage of the privilege of international
trade tariff reduction.

The Group will focus on new business and new product development,
and make it the impetus for sustained growth of business.
The Group will improve its ability to develop new products by
introducing and cultivating high-end R & D personnel, increasing
investment in research and development hardware facilities, and
expanding exchanges and cooperation with key customers. Product
development will focus on differentiation of functionality and
environmental protection property from other enterprise peers, in
order to enhance the value-added of products and gain more market
share. The Group will provide customers with more comprehensive
services while providing quality products. The Group’s retail business
is developing smoothly and currently has twenty-four stores. With
steady development as the keynote in the future, eight new stores
are expected to open from the second to the fourth quarter in 2014.

The Group will continue to improve lean production management
to cope with the rising cost pressure. The Group will implement
the evaluation indicators of the production departments, and
promote the optimal utilization of production resources through the
guidance of incentive measures; will achieve equalization of capacity
utilization by optimizing the production process, strengthening plan
arrangement and taking other measures, to reduce fixed costs;
and will uphold the target of downsizing for efficiency, expand the
application of automation equipment in production, and encourage
full participation in the improvement of the operating mode to
improve production efficiency.
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The Group will adhere to the operating philosophy of coordinating
corporate development and environmental protection, and implement
it in the entire process of production activities. Especially in the
construction of overseas production bases, the Group has enhanced
the environmental protection requirements in equipment selection
and end-of-pipe treatment. Strengthening energy management
and reducing resources consumption have become the conscious
behaviors of the Group in daily operation.

Globalization of product markets and production bases has
provided the Group with more choices, and the accumulated years
of industry experience has laid a good foundation for its long-term
development. In view of the reduced pressure from appreciation
of RMB against US dollar and the fall of cotton prices, the Group
is optimistic about the business outlook for 2014. There are many
difficulties in the operating environment, but they breed development
opportunities as well. The Group will usher in better development
industry consolidation of eliminating the inferior and choosing the
superior. The Group is striving and confident to become the world’s
best business, which is also our development vision.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently stable cash
flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable development and
to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The Group is committed
to raising its corporate governance standards and increasing the
transparency of its operations. Such objective will be achieved by
constantly improving the quality of corporate governance of the
Company through the provision of continuous training for Directors as
well as staff and the appointment of external professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covers all of the code provisions and most of the recommended best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 9 October 2005. The
Company had complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Name of Directors

In order to comply with the Listing Rules and the CG Code, the terms
of reference of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company have been revised
accordingly. Such terms of reference and the list of Directors and
their roles and functions have been published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 set out in the CG Code. The
Company has arranged for continuous professional development on
the update of the Listing Rules and the related legal and regulatory
requirements for the Directors.

A summary of training received by the Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

EAE R (MiaE)
Types of training (Note)

HITES
Executive Directors
BRREE

Mr. Ma Jianrong
HEAMEL

Mr. Huang Guanlin
B[CMEE

Mr. Ma Renhe
Epbyg 2+

Ms. Zheng Miaohui
THEREE

Mr. Wang Cunbo
REHx+

Ms. Chen Zhifen

FHITES
Non-executive Director
BRABER LA

Mr. Chen Zhongjing
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EFNE B (MiEE)
Types of training (Note)

BYFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors

BEmiE

Mr. Jiang Xianpin
PRAREE S5 4

Mr. Chen Genxiang
REESRE

Mr. Zong Pingsheng
EKERSSE

Mr. Qiu Weiguo

PR 1B 5t 4

Mr. Chen Xu

MEE
A HEBRARRZHZHEE

B: HEABLTRAUREMEMEZEREER
TERT B[R MV AT & AR L A R

C: RMEZMER BF—EAIFERBART
F2iBllgs WTHRESREZEZRZBER
REME

ARABER-ZE——F=ZF -+ BIRELE
ERTRIFTH SFANEED.SIE MR EE
AR BERE YR T ——FmWA—H
AWM - RIBCEE AR BESE 5
SEBEERIBAR SEEREBLEE
AZBREER  EERSREBEZEIIK
HESEFRRREEER B TEEREER
i EEREFERZBTTIRERFM
(IF): AEBETLEEARTA -

BIECEEATAME ZFRECEEL2
fi + ARRIBBARBINPZEEN 2 RE L FE
ARABR-E—NFRA-FTNAEITZEER
BERE  BERFARETZE - RRZEE

RS LRMmEANDR ~ ST BER MAZBEV B 1M
ZFD?%E °

A&B

A&B

A&B

A&B&C

A&B&C

Note:
A: attending seminars organized by the Company

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements

C: attending a training session on directors’ duties and responsibilities
under laws and regulations conducted by legal advisers of the Company
when newly appointed

The Company has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions on 26 March 2012 in compliance with the code
provision D.3 set out in the CG Code, effective from 1 April 2012.
Pursuant to the terms of reference of the corporate governance
functions, the Board shall be responsible for developing and reviewing
and/or monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
of the Group; training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management and making recommendations;
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and the Group’s compliance with the CG Code.

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.2 set out in the CG Code, the
Company invited representatives of the external auditors of the
Company to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to be
convened on 28 May 2014 to answer shareholders’ questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
and procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director with effect from 26 March 2012. The policy and the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their collective
and individual responsibility to the shareholders and perform their
duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the Company and
maximize returns for shareholders.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently comprises six
Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors,
whose biographical details and family relationships among certain
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 65 to 72. There are no
other material financial, business or relevant relationships among the
Directors.

The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities of
the Board include the formulation of the Group’s business strategies
and management objectives, supervision of the management and
evaluation of the effectiveness of management strategies.

The day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the Executive Directors or officers in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Group. Independent professional
advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.
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Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at Board meetings and withdraw from the meetings as appropriate.
The Company follows guidelines (available at the “Corporate
Governance” section of our website) at each financial reporting period
to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any transactions
of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to Directors or
their associates. The identified significant related party transactions
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of this annual
report.

CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the overall management of the Board and significant
operational decisions of the Group, while the Group General Manager
is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of the Group’s
business. Mr. Ma Jianrong is the Chairman of the Board and Mr.
Huang Guanlin is the Group General Manager.

Independent Non-executive Directors accounted for 40% of the
members of the Board. The Independent Non-executive Directors are
outstanding executives or experts in the textile industry and business
sectors who bring with them expertise in different areas. They
provide adequate control and balances for the Group to protect the
overall interests of the shareholders and the Group. The role of the
Independent Non-executive Directors is to provide independent and
objective opinions to the Board for its consideration and decisions.
All independent Non-executive Directors have submitted annual
written confirmation of their independence and compliance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s operation,
financial performance, corporate governance and future development.
At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with supporting papers
of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are given to Directors
to ensure timely access the relevant information to discharge their
duties.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are also sent to all Directors for
their comment and records, respectively.
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The Company held 6 full Board meetings for the year ended 31
December 2013, with all the then existing members of the Board
attended, except for Mr. Chen Zhongjing who was absent from 2
meetings as he had to attend to other business engagements.

Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to determine overall
strategic directions and objectives and approve interim and annual
results and other significant matters. As Mr. Qiu Weiguo was
appointed as a Director on 1 April 2013, Mr. Chen Xu and Ms. Chen
Zhifen were appointed as Directors on 1 December 2013, and Mr.
Zong Pingsheng and Mr. Chen Zhongjing resigned as Directors on
1 April 2013 and 16 September 2013, respectively, they were not
able to attend all or certain meetings of Board Committees and Sub-
committees.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the Independent Non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist
in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has set up three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee have been structured to include a majority
of Independent Non-executive Directors as members in order to
reinforce independence, while the Audit Committee only comprises
Independent Non-executive Directors. All of the Committees are
governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available on
the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005. As of the
issuance of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises Mr.
Ma Renhe, an Executive Director, Mr. Chen Genxiang, Mr. Chen Xu
and Mr. Jiang Xianpin, they are Independent Non-executive Directors.
Mr. Chen Genxiang is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. No Director
will take part in any discussion on his or her own remuneration. The
details of their fees are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to the members of the Board of Directors, market rates
and factors such as each Director’s workload, responsibility, and job
complexity are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meeting with full attendance in
2013. At the meetings, it reviewed the remuneration of Directors and
senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9 October
2005. As of the issuance of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive Director, Mr. Qiu Weiguo
and Mr. Jiang Xianpin, both are Independent Non-executive Directors.
Mr. Ma Jianrong is Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as Directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board; regularly review the structure,
headcount and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the Board
for any proposed changes.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meeting with full attendance
in 2013. At the meetings, it reviewed and recommended the
reappointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors or to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case of
an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire by
rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject to re-
election by the shareholders. All Independent Non-executive Directors
are appointed for specific terms of not more than three years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005. As of
the issuance of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Xianpin, Mr.
Chen Genxiang, Mr. Chen Xu and Mr. Qiu Weiguo. Mr. Jiang Xianpin
is Chairman of the Audit Committee. His expertise in accounting,
auditing and finance enables him to provide leadership for the
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to conduct
critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and accounting
practices and internal controls. These include determining of
the nature and scope of statutory audit, reviewing the Group’s
interim and annual accounts and assessing the completeness and
effectiveness of the Group’s accounting and financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings for the year ended 31
December 2013 with full attendance. At the meetings, it reviewed
the 2012 final results, financial report and auditing issues, with the
external auditors, and the 2013 interim results, the activities of the
Group’s internal audit functions, the internal audit report on business
operations and continuing connected transactions.
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TRERSEFN T ZFALFERRESF Details of Director’s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board

AE EECEENEFZESEHMFEB o Committee Meetings held in 2013 are set out in the following table.

EELERNEBRBLEFER6.2% ° The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board meetings was
96.2%.

HEBITERRE
Meetings Attended/Held
EEEE3 EREEE FMEsSS REZEE® RREFKE
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

BIKHITES
Independent

Non-executive Directors
PRARFE 5o 4 6/6 3/3 2/2 - 1/1
Mr. Chen Genxiang
BEmEE 6/6 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Jiang Xianpin
REERE 2/2 11 - 11 -
Mr. Zong Pingsheng
EEETE 4/4 2/2 - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Qiu Weiguo
BRIB % - - - - -
Mr. Chen Xu

FHTES

Non-executive Director

PR AR STAE 3/5 - - — 0/1
Mr. Chen Zhongjing

BTES

Executive Directors

et bt 6/6 - - 2/2 11
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view and in accordance with the
accounting standards generally accepted in Hong Kong as published
by the HKICPA. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Directors endeavoured to
make a fair and comprehensible assessment of the Group’s current
conditions and prospects in the financial report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility to maintain an appropriate
internal control system and to ensure accurate reporting of the
Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the public in a timely
manner.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to enhance
operating effectiveness and efficiency, to safeguard assets against
misappropriation and unauthorized disposition, to maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reports that are true and
fair, and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The
system aims at providing a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and managing rather than
eliminating operational risks.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013,
which covered controls over financial reporting, operations and
compliance, as well as risk management functions, and considered
that the system of internal controls in operation in the Group have
been in place and functioning effectively.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department plays an important role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Internal Auditor
reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted access
to information that allows it to review all aspects of the Company’s
risk management, control and governance processes. On a regular
basis, it conducts audits on major activities and process of the
Group’s business and support units. It also conducts special reviews
or investigations of areas of concern identified by the management
or the Audit Committee. All audit reports are communicated to the
Audit Committee, Directors and key senior management. Audit issues
are tracked and followed up for proper implementation, with progress
reported to the Audit Committee, Directors and senior management
periodically.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Audit Committee
will, prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.

The related remuneration for the audit services provided by Ermst &
Young to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted
to RMB2,474,000.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding
Directors securities transactions (“Securities Trading Code”). A copy
of the Securities Trading Code is provided to all Directors on their
appointment. Reminder will be issued twice a year, being 30 days
prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s interim results
and 60 days prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s
annual results, reminding the Directors that they are not allowed
to deal in the Company’s securities prior to the announcement
of its results (the period during which the directors are prohibited
from dealing in shares) and that all transactions must comply with
the Securities Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors
confirmed their strictly compliance with the relevant provisions of the
Securities Trading Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2013.

Senior Management may be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information due to their duties within the Company, and
hence, is required to comply with the Securities Trading Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji, is responsible
for facilitating the Board process, as well as communications among
Board members, with shareholders and management. Mr. Chan’s
biography is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 65 to 72 of this annual report.
During the year, Mr. Chan undertook not less than 15 hours of
professional training to update his skills and knowledge.
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INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of communication with its
shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive
operational and financial performance information to shareholders and
the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their concerns
directly to the Board.

Our Investor Relations Department communicates with research
analysts and institutional investors in an on-going manner and
provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive information about
the Group’s strategies and development.

The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
press releases and presentations material can be retrieved through
our Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on
the website is updated in a timely manner to ensure the speed,
fairness and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not all
shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet. For
those who do not, hard copies of those website information listed
above are available free of charge upon request to the Company
Secretary.

MBI EEIERAIRAF  Annual Report 2013
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SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has a policy of open communication and fair
disclosure. Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate
governance standards, in that it provides our shareholders and
other stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form
their own judgment and to provide feedback to us. We understand
that more disclosure does not necessarily result in increased
transparency. The integrity of the information provided is essential for
building market confidence.

The Board and Senior Management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”) including a written notice of those proposals that
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4919, email at
2313ir@shenzhougroup.com or directly by questions at an AGM or
EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary by the same means.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requesting
member(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requesting member(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board to convene such meeting shall be
reimbursed to the requesting member(s) by the Company.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on
our corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the sustainability report, which outlines our major members’
approaches, commitment and strategies in four aspects of
sustainability — workplace quality, environmental protection, operating
practices and community involvement. The reporting period of
this report is from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013. The
data disclosed in this report are prepared and collected by the
respective human resources, administration, and finance and energy
departments.

WORKPLACE QUALITY

Employees’ Basic Information

By 31 December 2013, there were about 57,100 employees working
in the Group. All of them are full-time employees, and the majority
are young and middle-aged employees. The tables below show the
employee details by age distribution, education level, job locations

BFE - and gender ratio.
AE| HEEL£EESHE
Percentages of
REREEE D By Age band Numbers| total employees
162 185% 16-18 5,050 8.9%
18Z2405% 18-40 42,630 74.6%
40E555% 40-55 9,150 16.0%
558% A £ above 55 270 0.5%
#E Total 57,100 100.0%

EBFEH DM

Employees Age Distribution
AE| HEEZEEESE
Percentages of
BRABE D By Education Numbers| total employees
(Ey 4> Master degree and above 30 0.1%
AR Undergraduate 2,120 3.7%
FRERUT Secondary technical school degree and 54,950 96.2%
below

Bt Total 57,100 100.0%
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A HESSEEESL

Percentages of

B Gender Numbers| total employees
= Male 18,560 32.5%
@ Female 38,540 67.5%
st Total 57,100 100.0%

4 BIlLE 2=
Gender Ratio

A HESSEEEIL

Percentages of

REXR By Country Numbers| total employees
FR B A Mainland China 47,200 82.66
RIFIE Cambodia 9,800 17.16
Ht Others 100 0.18
Bt Total 57,100 100.00

B ERME D

Employees by Job Locations
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Statistical analysis of employee turnover rate

By the end of December 2013, there were 57,100 employees in total.
—FEAFHE According to the statistics, the Group’s monthly average employee
turnover rate in 2013 was 5.59%,
percentage points when compared with 2012 (2012: 6.68%). The
monthly average new employee turnover rate in 2013 was 4.68%,
significantly lower than that in 2012.

representing a decrease of 1.09

Shenzhou Group has successfully maintained a relatively low staff
turnover rate, thanks to the following effective measures:

For four years in a row, chartered coaches were arranged
during Chinese New Year holidays for staff to go home: an
average contribution of more than RMB20 million each year

RAIHEREE  ERBIKMER
MBETF28E ITIF-2011565R - &£
EmEITRPOEITERBMEBER
REIHBEEESHIER - EH%I—?
ZHBESHE AEEFHEIE EEZ
TUMREBEETL FRNE ﬁﬁ‘dﬂ%l
£ o

was made for arranging round-trip chartered coaches for staff
to go home, and to return to work after the Chinese New Year
holidays safe and sound.

The Company is mindful of educational causes and places great
emphasis on staff development and education for the children of
its staff. In May 2011, the inauguration ceremony of the Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. Education Development Fund was
held at the administration centre in Beilun region. In the area
of schooling for the children of its staff, the Company liaises
with the staff union each year to resolve practical difficulties in
schooling for children of management staff as far as possible.
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3. As a labour intensive corporation, Shenzhou Group places
exceptional emphasis on and pays special attention to the well-
being of its staff, both physically and mentally. The Company
established a mental health information centre, “Joyful
Community”, in October 2011. With specialists serving as
counsellors, “Joyful Community” is equipped with music facilities
for relaxation and punching facilities for venting emotions.
Through handling cases received, organising group activities
and holding seminars, the centre resolves psychological distress
and relieves emotional pressure of staff and gives them peace
of mind.

4. An average rise in salary has been in the range of 10% to 15%
each year for the past four years.

Health and Safety
The Group distributes labor protection appliances and tools to
employees every year, such as masks, gloves and uniforms.

The Group cares about the physical health of employees. It sets up
employee health records for every employee. Besides regular check-
up on occupational diseases, the Company organizes annual check-
ups to prevent occupational diseases.

A total of 81 injuries were recorded in 2013. No significant injury
was recorded. Lost work days due to injuries were 4,843 days in
total, accounting for 1.5% of the total absentee rate. The Group will
strengthen on-the-job trainings to raise awareness of occupational
safety.

The Group supplies free first-aid kits and medicines to employees,
which plays an important role in emergencies. The Group complies
with national labor laws and regulations and arranges the day-
off and working timetables stringently in accordance with national
requirements. Employees are also entitled to annual leave.
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Development and training

The Group gives very serious attention to the internal and external
studies and trainings to improve employees’ education level and
capabilities, and trains talents properly that are needed in the Group’s
development. The Group established The Shenzhou Management
Institute and it has become the cradle of developing the Group’s
management talents. By the end of 2013, 24,157 man-times had
been recorded in the training.

In addition to training opportunities, certain managerial staffs
are offered with promotions to higher positions so that they can
demonstrate and further hone their management skills.

The Group emphasizes on the management of employees to improve
the efficiency, effectiveness and stability of the operations. To
encourage employee participation, the Group convenes meetings
for employee representatives. In order to improve employees’ skills,
the Company adopts advanced measures of praising and rewarding
employees, and selects outstanding employees through annual work-
related competitions.

Labour Standards

In 2013, the Group formulated some requirements like the “Strict
Prohibition of Engaging Child Labor Administrative Provisions”,
“Underage Worker Administrative Provisions” and “Strict Prohibition
of Forced Labor Administrative Provisions” in order to completely
eradicate child labor, underage workers and forced labor.

The above administrative provisions are implemented seriously in
all departments. The following measures reveal how the Group can
eradicate effectively child labor during the recruitment process:

New employee must provide his/her identity card when commencing
employment, so as to verify his/her actual age.

In the recruitment interview, interviewers will observe very carefully
the differences between the photograph on the identity card and the
genuine face. If there is much difference, or the actual age seems
obvious to be younger, then it shall be verified by identity card
identification system or otherwise.

Employee care commences from the grass-roots teams. Employees

participate actively in the interaction with management at all levels to
eradicate forced labor effectively.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

1.

The Profile of Shenzhou’s Environmental Protection:
Environmental protection is one of the core policy of the
government.

The main resources and energy used in the process of the
Group’s production include water, electricity, coal, bio-
mass fuel and steam. Fabric production is the main process
of energy consumption. The main wastes generated from
production are wastewater and waste gas etc., the former
of which is generated from dyeing process. Through clean
water and sewage split-flow in the production process,
lightly polluted water for dyeing and cleaning is recycled
after treatment, and dyed polluted water is discharged after
strict treatment. Currently, the Group has recycled facilities in
China, with capacity of 15,000 tons of reclaimed water per
day, which effectively lower water consumption and sewage
direct discharge. The waste gases generated from production
process are mainly carbon dioxide and sulphur dioxide. In
2013, the Group’s fabric production output increased by 9%,
with consumption of electricity, one of major energy increasing
by approximately 5% and consumption of electricity per unit
production decreased slightly. As a result of using cleaner bio-
mass fuel to substitute coal as basic energy, total consumption
of coal decreased by 73% for the year, substantially reducing
total volume of sulphur dioxide discharge and effectively
reducing adverse impacts on environment.

MBI EEIERAIRAF  Annual Report 2013
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Indirect energy consumption-Gas

346,904
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Energy consumption in 2013
Our main energy consumption in the last two years was as follows:

The date include the Group’s total energy consumption in the
entire knitting, dyeing and finishing and garment manufacturing
processes and all its operational regions.

Indirect energy consumption-Steam

802,200 899,084

A (WE)
Steam (Tons)

T —ENRR —E-CENREE
Consumptlon in 2012 Consumption in 2013

o M MRREABRR) T EANEEBRE

e P.S: Gas (LPG) mainly used for singeing process
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Indirect energy consumption-Electricity

256,311,906

269,474,881

BN (FREE)
Electricity (Kwh)

-z -
Consumptlon |n 2012 Consumptlon |n 2013
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e P.S: Steam used for part of dyeing machine heating up
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Direct energy consumption

[ |
S5 (0E)
94,695 114,630 [N
[ |
Bio-mass fuel (Tons)
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Consumption in 2012 Consumption in 2013
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e P.S: Coal and bio-mass are used as fuel for boiler heating

Water consumption in 2013 by source

BRRE D B FEKE

Water consumption by source

LEGE VNG
Municipal tap water (Tons)

18,667,288

4,659,141
J—

ZEHF
Consumphon in 2012

4,699,088 3 LN VNG D)
Recycled water (Tons)
—m=

—FHREE
Consumphon in 2013
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Volume of sulphur dioxide discharged

4,

Shenzhou’s wastewater discharge and smoke emission in
2013
BEK B &

Volume of waste water discharged

12,489,961 12,843,077
[ |
10.6 —SbmR () 7N
Sulphur dioxide (Tons) Waste water (Tons)
—T-—FHRE — T EHNE - FHNE —T-—FHRE
Volume of discharge Volume of discharge Volume of discharge Volume of discharge
in2012 in 2013 in 2012 in 2013
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Volume of smoke and dust discharged

Volume of nitrogen dioxide discharged

[ |
1 e () —&ftm (i)
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BPBE RIS 7 - Measures in energy conservation and emission reduction:
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With the expanding production capacity of the Group in recent
years, in order to reduce the discharge of greenhouse gas, the
Group invested to start reconstructing all the coal-fired boilers
in 2012. 4 out of 9 sets have been replaced and by end of
2013, the comprehensive application of bio-mass fuel replace
coal completely as traditional fuel. The operations in the region
of Ningbo will be completely coal free with significant reduction
of sulphur dioxide emission by more than 97%.

Bio-mass fuel is a piece-like fuel after processing. They are
mostly stem-like crops, peanut shells, barks, sawdust and
solid waste (furfural residues, edible fungi residues etc.). The
application of bio-mass fuel can achieve the objective of
reducing carbon emission effectively.
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The Group has set up integrated sewage treatment in
Ningbo factories since the plants built up to comply with
the emission standards before discharging. It carries out
regular inspections according to the Environmental Protection
Bureau’s requirements. The respective environmental protection
authorities have installed on-line detection devices at the
sewage outfalls.

The frequency of inspection on wastewater discharge is: real-
time monitoring for on-sale inspection; once every three months
for sample inspection.

The Group also conducts online monitoring on smoke
emission to ensure compliance with the emission standards
before discharging. The respective environmental protection
authorities have also installed online monitoring devices at our
smoke outfalls. The frequency of inspection on smoke and gas
emission is: real-time monitoring for on-site inspection; once
every three months for sample inspection.

FraEE LS
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6. Solid waste separation and treatment
We conduct a separation and treatment process for all solid
waste, part of which will be recycled and reused to minimize
its pollution to the environment. Our Group classifies all solid
waste into four categories according to the relevant Regulations

EWMo RN ABSBERESEFLR for Waste Classification and Management. Please refer to the
T following table for the specific classification and weight.
. S
5l 4] YRR BEE(TR)| EE(FR)
Weight in Weight in
Category Particulars Source of waste 2012 (Kg) 2013 (kg)
AENARABRERIERER |ERS  BERS  BES - BER |#HE FeREXARE 8,095,602 7,601,240
Reusable or recyclable paperboards and Waste paper boxes, waste paper cones, Knitting, Dyeing and Garment making
papers waste paper cores, waste papers process
Al B A A RIEIR Z REE RERY) - REER FHE - A6 REKBRE 16,081,820 17,074,026
Reusable or recyclable waste fabric Waste fabric,pied hair Knitting, Dyeing and Garment making
process
B A B FEREY BEEE « BRE - RERRKBIE 202,540 261,335
Reusing or recycling of non-hazardous waste | Plastic wire cores, plastic bags Knitting, Dyeing and Garment making
process
I AR A ok B SEfE B EE YD B &R BENRAE 1,613,848 1,650,000
No reusing or recycling of non-hazardous Household garbage Canteen and office
waste
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e All above mentioned waste are collected by different local service
providers.

As an enterprise keen on sustainable development, the Group
vigorously supports and maintains its role as a proper environmental
protector, proactively deepens and internalizes environmental
awareness, and has the low-carbon concept deeply indoctrinated
in the whole Group. We firmly believe that our commitment to
environmental protection will become a part of Shenzhou’s core
competitiveness, leading the Group to has greater successful in the
future. The following pictures show the certificate granted to the
Group in recognition of energy saving and emission reduction.

Certificate of energy saving and emission reduction issued by the
National Knitting Association



LEESR

HEEEE

FTELEME

FMNEEE AT @R MRS e SH
IR IR 2 A0 BB RRIMNHER SR
EERPIMEAIN 2 EEEM -

China

S

f/

Burma

HMEE

BNz E
Shenzhou-Anging

Shenzhou-Vietnam

Shenzhou Cambodla

\ &

R HERERERE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

Major Operating Regions:

Shenzhou Group currently has operations in the regions shown in
the following Chart: the green color represents the headquarter of
Shenzhou in Ningbo; the orange color represents the sales offices
of Shenzhou; the yellow color represents the production bases other
than the headquarter of Shenzhou.

B

Shenzhou-Shanghai

Shenzhou-Japan

Shenzhou-Ningbo Headquarter
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Shenzhou-Hong Kong
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Operating Regions of Shenzhou Group
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The working system of the main subsidiary of the Group manages
the implementation of critical working processes, and controls and
affects the horizontal linking up of the working processes at the same
time, and all working processes from an organic integrity.

To ensure the smooth operation of the critical processes, the Group
adopts systematic management measures and formulates a series
of management systems to fulfill the requirements of the processes
and provide tactical execution. At the same time, we utilize
various measures such as management by objectives to stipulate
key performance indicators to control and improve the working
processes.
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Risk management

The Group has established a list of chemicals and conducts
management and control on dangerous or restricted chemicals to
ensure that the dyes, agents and detergent used during production
will strictly follow the management and control list. Non-tested and
uncertified chemicals and not allowed to use in production and a
stringent identification and tracking system is being established.

The Group has developed a chemical management and control
process which covers dyes supplier management, incoming materials
inspection, product testing and wastewater discharge inspection,
ensuring a comprehensive management and control of chemicals
applications. The process is shown in the following chart:
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Supply
chemicals

TR Y ER A
[ Onine testing — " Page? -~ gns[h‘rr\‘g — REEE
RETBE?
Repaiabe?
BiHE % 2k
Repair “@J Destroy Packaging @ @
IKEEIE EARAIR ; i
>  Water _» Monitor& ax‘%éﬂiwﬁ_»
treatment testing Pass? Release

IREEE
Garment —
production

RETBE?
Reparable?
5 L& e
Destroy ~ Packaging

Repair

*Confirm once per product.

1. Annual Oeko-Tex 100 accreditation
2. Annual 3rd party environmental audit according to customer requriements
3. Ramdonly testing of water and waste water (pre-treatment)

Procurement process

Dedicated staff of the designated departments is responsible
for the procurement of all materials of the Group. The materials
procured mainly include cotton yarn, dyestuffs, trims, office supplies,
fixed assets, equipment and spare parts, and canteen supplies.
Procurement cost control is an important measure to enhance profit
on products. The quality of cotton yarn, dyestuffs and trims procured
will directly affect the quality of products of the Group and the
corporate image. Procurement is one of the most important aspects
affecting product competitiveness.
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To ensure the effectiveness of the procurement process, the Group
formulates management documents such as “Procurement Control
Procedures”. The Group segregates the procurement process into
two flows, namely procurement plan formulation and procurement
implementation, see the following chart.

% k&t &l Demand Plan

PRIBEER
Purchase Requisiton

EELREER
Determination of purchase price

EREB RE
Pass or Fail Return of Goods

Claims etc.

3=
2EN

S EREL
Warehousing Obtaining Invoice

EmEE

EEER

AEEE-AMES  NEDES - KHRE
MK TBEMABEQVERR - Bb - &
WK ER T BERARE -

)

Financial Contr Accounting etc.

et
RIS R AT

Post Assessment of Procurement Business

REEMIZRET
Procurement Process Design

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Principal products:

The Group has three principal categories of products, namely are
sports product, casual wear and lingerie. The Main Specific products
include jackets, vests, pants, trousers, tops, T-shirts, dresses and
lingerie etc.
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SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The Group’s major subsidiaries have adopted the ISO 14001 and
OHSAS 18001 management systems to strengthen the safety
and environmental protection, after considering facts such as a
large number of employees, plenty of production equipment and
considerable management span.

In terms of safety and environmental protection, the Group
strengthens the safety education, establishes safety operation
specifications for related job posts and enhances equipment
maintenance. On the other hand, considering a large number of
employees, the Group emphasizes on food safety and occupational
health administration.

With safety, health and environmental protection in mind, the Group
has established a safety department, an emergency response team
and a professional Three Wastes Treatment System to reduce the
use of toxic and hazardous substances to meet the standards of
Three Wastes treatment, thus ensuring the occupational health of
employees, maintaining clean production, energy conservation and
carbon reduction, and responding to and dealing with emergencies.
For the major focus areas, see the following chart.

Z2Rh#E
Security

Protection

ZEEIRR EERE
Safety and Employee

Environmental Health
Protection

BREE

Clean
Production

RERRRIIEER

Focuses of Safety and Environmental Protection Work

MBI EEIER AR AT Annual Report 2013
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CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

The Group aims to understand all kinds of customer requirements,
expectations and concerns by listening to them. Through these
methods, the Group has transformed and satisfied customer
requirements and expectations and promoted its market expansion
and service improvement. Furthermore, when customers visit the
Group, the sales department will gather directly relevant department
heads and the person-in-charge to attend meetings to have a
comprehensive understanding of customers’ expectations. The
relevant departments will convene special meetings to seek specific
solutions to those aspects that fail to meet customers’ expectations
for the time being. The direct person-in-charge from the sales,
research and development and production departments will attend
regular Sales and Operations meetings every week to discuss the
current problems and customers’ requirements, analyze the causes
and find solutions to meet customers’ requirements.

In 2013, the Group was awarded “The Best Supplier” by PUMA and
ADIDAS respectively. The following pictures are the trophies awarded
to our Group by PUMA and ADIDAS.
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The Group vigorously encourages patents filings by research and
development staff, introduces rewarding policies for the authorization
of patents for inventions, steadily promotes patent commercialization
and endeavors to create its own brand products. In recent years,
the Group’s 17 independent and joint research and development
results have been put into production or applied in the current
production process with an annual average of 5.67 patents turning
into products. The Group has over 100 new products, 8 patents of
new utility models, 19 corporate standards and has carried out 120
improvements, and upgrades on its existing equipment. The Group
introduced encouragement policies on technological innovation,
including the Rewarding Methods on Scientific and Technological
Achievements and established a scientific and comprehensive
incentive mechanism on technological innovation.
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Quality Management Process
MEEE The Group conducts a full range of monitoring measures in the
G EEMER purchase and manufacture of products based on a comprehensive
quality management system, refer to the following chart for its quality

management process.

A
Quality
Assessment

BHEME

Quality
planning

a

&

BE1TRR B=E

Quality
Assurance

Quality
Improvement

Quality
Control

EREERE
Quality Management Process

EErHEEE IR BEMEE 22 Quality control is a very important segment in the quality management
e H\IEE%E BEEE - HBIMAE o process. It mainly embodies the supervision, inspection and testing
AEFERIEEE %UZ/\K%,.\& of product quality. The Group has established six focuses of quality
control.
e HE

d quality

o GEtHI Statistical Analysis
o REEEEEREKR

Process quality supervision and audit
o HIEHBEEZREHE

Formulation of rules and regulations on quality
o HEREENR Quality management publicity
o AE FERADHIEEEE

Production, purchase and subcontractor quality management

FORHRER

Incoming Inspection

o BRRRMEREN
Inspection of raw materials and accessories
o REBRIMER

Equipment and outsourcing management

TERR

Process Inspection

o~ ABRRER
First inspection, self-inspection and cross inspection
o REREMRETHRBRES
Process shift and fixed inspection quality
o T{ERE#5 Job shift inspection
o JiF2E U Process quality improvement
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Quality Innovation
o R RARIREE
Assessment on new technology and new process
o HMHRETERR
Testing on new materials and new method
o HERKERERIAR

Inspection and testing on new products and samples

FTREERERRER
Metrological Control and Model Inspection

~

o WV - M RECER EHIE
Establishment, maintenance and improvement of metrological
gi@i%ﬂ system
Quality o HERERRIE

Metrological verification and calibration
o ERBRIAE
Model inspection and testing

Control
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R
Finished Products Inspection
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Finished products inspection
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Packing inspection
o HERR

Shipment inspection
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Focuses of Quality Control
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In the over two decades of the Shenzhou Group’s history, the
founder and former chairman of the Group, Mr. Ma Baoxing, and
each senior management have always been focusing on “integrity”
in establishing the corporate culture. Integrity is the code of conduct
and moral standard of the Group.

Back in early 2000, Mr. Ma wrote the two Chinese characters “&
{£” and hung them in the centre of the lobby hall, reminding every
employee that it is the principle and requirement of the Group. Every
employee must abide by this and the Group also welcomes closely
monitoring by related authorities and customers.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Participation in community activities

The Group considers that supporting the community is one of the
driving forces for corporate development, as well as an important
motivation for building a “Harmonious Shenzhou”. The Group places
great emphasis on cultivating social responsibility awareness in its
staff and encourages them to participate in charitable community
activities. The Group contributed RMB19,175,000 in 2013 towards
participating in community activities and making various donations for
charitable causes, including making contributions to education funds,
building homes for the elderly, afforestation and tree preservation,
and providing relief for the Sichuan Ya’an earthquake. The Group
also encourages its staff to donate blood voluntarily and participate in
more volunteer services.

In the recent five years, the Group invested RMB130 million and
constructed nine residential communities with a total area of 86,000
square meters. To mitigate the burden of long-serving employees,
Ningbo Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd., a connected company of the
Group built Shenzhou Four Season Osmanthus Garden compound
with 1,300 apartments totaling 100,000 square meters in gross
area, and offered to employees at discounted prices. The following
photographs are the living environment of the Group’s employees:
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PARTICIPATION IN NON-PROFIT
ORGANIZATIONS

Shenzhou has become a member of Textile Exchange since October
2011. Textile Exchange is a non-profit organization based in USA,
the mission of which is to promote the sustainable development of
the entire textile value chain. Shenzhou has all along been actively
participating in industry conferences, seminars and other activities,
sharing best practices with relevant parties and discussing the future
development of the textile industry.

Up to 2012, guided by PUMA, our Group’s major subsidiary, Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. participated in the development of PUMA
C2C (Cradle to Cradle) closed-loop ecological environmentally-friendly
products. From its selection of original yarns to dyeing materials,
printing material and agents, this category had complied with the
C2C environmentally-friendly products requirements and passed the
C2C products certification. For more relevant C2C information, please
refer to C2C website: www.c2c-world.com.

The Group also concerns on the protection of the wild
animal. In 2013, the Group becomes the silver member of
WWEF.

The following pictures are the trophies awarded to our
Group by WWEF.



EEREAREEERE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

BITES

BERELE Atm AKEUTESERE
7 BARKLEN  BEARENBEERRR
REE > EOBEABB=T=&% - FrLE
E—NNNFENMAREER - KERA B
TR R AT B P S A AR SRR TAF » pNEE AN
% BSAEBHEAEEZRFHEELE -
BEREAMEEREARAR ([ BREE )M
EERIE N ERBERI SR R AARIE - A
“TERFOANR-EREERPMAESE
BRAR(TERMEE DESER R -F——FN
A—REERZZESIRE - FLEER/RNIE
AXRREK - TRPBEHBIXBEASR 8
RE[ERMASEHE] [MIZEE-EA
RN PERERIEMEISRE -

BERMEE - WA ARERNTESHRA
KIE - AEASENEE  TTHEMSER
FRREBEE EHBEABE_ R FK
B BmAEFENMITERS  XEHEBT
EXEETIR - —NA/NFNBAREER - B8
AT E BRI R R AR AR T(F - B ARNEE
% EAREBEERBENEELEREER
BIERIE - RE _ZTRFMANKR—BEEE
RMETEERE R-_ETAF+AE T —
—HEZR BRERRERZREEIE -BAS
BRFAERIRK - ALK ERMATEMNEBT
R FPEREERRTEE=S -

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma Jianrong(F# %), aged 50, is an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Group. He is a senior economist. He is responsible
for the overall business development strategy of the Group and has
over 33 years of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining
the Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill (%A 4% 45 &7 )
and Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant (#7 )N & & 4%
BREEM) . After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served as the manager of
the knitting and weaving department, a deputy general manager and
the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Weaving Group Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating entity of the Group. He
has been acting as the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. He was appointed as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 April 2012. Mr. Ma
is a deputy to the People’s Congress of Zhejiang Province. He was
awarded with “Charity Model of Ningbo (EEFHZEZ#1E) », “Charity
Prize of Zhejiang — Individual” G T &= 2 — (B A #2) and “Prize for
Outstanding Charity Contribution in China”(fh Bl Z& =22 X & Bl #%).

Mr. Huang Guanlin (Z@#) , aged 49, is an Executive Director and
the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing and
has over 26 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Huang
graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (3T T 2 K &)
majoring in chemical industry management and engineering. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill in Yuhang
County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr. Huang worked
as the manager and a deputy general manager of the production and
operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has been acting as the
general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005. Mr. Huang
was the chairman of the Nomination Committee during the period
from October 2005 to March 2012. He is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Ma Jianrong. Mr. Huang ranked third on the 2012 Forbes China Best
CEOs List.
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Mr. Ma Renhe (F51=#1), aged 54, is an Executive Director and
a deputy general manager of the Group. He is responsible for
administration, dyeing and finishing affairs of the Group and has over
37 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to joining the Group
in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill and Hangzhou Linping
Knitting and Garment Plant. After joining the Group, Mr. Ma worked
as the manager and a deputy general manager of the dyeing and
finishing department of Ningbo Weaving. He has been acting as a
deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2002. From
October 2005 to March 2012, Mr. Ma was also the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and subsequently redesignated as a
member of the Remuneration Committee. He is a cousin of Mr. Ma
Jianrong (his father and Mr. Ma Jianrong’s father are brothers).

Ms. Zheng Miaohui (B ##&) , aged 59, is an Executive Director
and a deputy general manager of the Group. She is responsible for
the financial management of the Group and has over 29 years of
experience in financial management and obtained an accountant
qualification certificate. After joining the Group in 1988, Ms. Zheng
served as the manager and an assistant to the general manager of
the finance department of Ningbo Weaving. She has been acting as
a deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

Mr. Wang Cunbo ( £ 7 ¥ ), aged 42, joined the Group as the
Department Head of the Finance Department of the Group and
the Financial Controller of Shenzhou Knitting in May 2004. He was
appointed as a Director of the Group in 2011. He graduated from
Zhejiang University of Technology (#T/T T2 K£), majoring in biology
and chemical engineering, with a bachelor’'s degree in engineering
in 1995. In the same year, Mr. Wang studied at Zhejiang University
of Technology where he obtained a master’s degree in management
in 1998. In addition, he has obtained the certificates of the PRC
certified public accountant, the PRC registered tax agent and the
PRC certified public valuer and senior accountant and the operating
permit of the PRC public certified accountant engaged in securities
and futures-related business. Prior to joining the Group, he was a
partner of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde United Accounting Firm (2 X fi#
KBRS @RI ESFT) , deputy general manager of Ningbo Yongde
Corporate Management and Consulting Firm (Z ok ED 2 E %
FHZ=TEFT) , and has over 6 years of experience in acting as certified
accountant.
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Ms. Chen Zhifen (BRiZ%5), aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Group on 1 December 2013. She is a deputy general
manager of the Group, responsible for all garment manufacturing
department, and has over 24 years of experience in the textile
industry. After joining the Group in April 1990, she worked as the
section chief, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 2 and No. 6 garment manufacturing
departments, an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving
and an assistant to the general manager of the Group. During the
period from September 2000 to June 2003, Ms. Chen studied
at Naval University of Engineering ( /& & T 2 X 2 ) | majoring in
management engineering. She also graduated from TBM LeanSigma
Institute with a certificate for completion of the Kaizen Promotion
Office Toward World-Class Manufacturing Excellence in 2007 and
the College of Economics of Zhejiang University (3L R E248 2265 )
with a certificate for the senior seminar class for modern entrepreneur
managers in 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Jiang Xianpin (3§ & f) , aged 49, studied accounting in Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics, the People’s Republic of China
(FaR BAAE A E) from 1982 to 1986 and obtained a bachelor degree
in Economics majoring in accounting. Mr. Jiang started teaching at
Zhejiang University of Technology (}#7/T T3 K2 ) since 1986 and
is currently a professor in the School of Economics, Trade and
Management (48 & & 1 B3 ) of Zhejiang University of Technology.
Mr. Jiang is also a key teaching staff in the University’s MBA
Education Centre and has been engaged by the Science Technology
Department of Zhejiang Province (/T & #H%EE) as its special finance
expert. Mr. Jiang is the vice president of the Association of Credit
Assessment and Management of Hangzhou, PRC (fi /i {Z A&
&), a director of Institute of Finance Engineering, Zhejiang Province,
PRC I IE 4RI EES), and the chief financial adviser to #
I EBEEIE A A A, Mr. Jiang was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee on 1 April 2012.
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Mr. Chen Genxiang (FR1R#¥) , aged 65, has over 44 years of experience
in the textile industry. Mr. Chen obtained a certificate of dyeing and
finishing engineer from L/&&t4;AFB T A2, Mr. Chen joined the
Company’s subsidiary, Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd, in 1993.
Mr. Chen worked for the Group until 2007 and was the deputy
general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. responsible
for the product development of the Group until 2007 when he left the
Group for retirement. Prior to joining the Group in 1993, Mr. Chen
served as an assistant to the factory manager of Shanghai Knitting
No. 20 Plant and a deputy general manager of Shanghai Baoye
Knitting Company Limited. Mr. Chen joined the Group in August 2011
as an Independent Non-executive Director, and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee. He was promoted to
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee in April 2012.

Mr. Qiu Weiguo (F/&E]), aged 62, joined the Group on 1 April 2013
as an Independent Non-executive Director, and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Qiu graduated
from Party School of Ningbo Municipal Committee of the Communist
Party of China, holding a bachelor degree and the qualification of
practicing as an economist in Ningbo (Intermediate level). He served
as a factory manager of Ningbo Chemical Fibre Plant( 25 11 E3 48 4 %),
the chairman and chief executive of 28 )&ZF|% @, a manager of &
T A& T %27, the chairman and chief executive of ZEi 47 4% & &
RSN F], the party secretary of the Communist Party Committee of
the city of Fenghua. Before joining the Group, Mr. Qiu served as the
chief of Ningbo Bureau of Quality and Technical Supervision (&%
E 8 HTEEE /B )and the secretary to the Party Committee. He retired
in April 2012.
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Mr. Chen Xu (BRfB) , aged 65, joined the Group on 1 December
2013 as an independent non-executive Director and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Chen graduated from Hangzhou Chemistry and Industry Institute
(MM L2 T ¥ 24 ) with a diploma in chemical machinery and
the Leadership Training Class of the Party School of Zhejiang
Municipal Committee of the Communist Party (3 /T & & & & 6
EFI¥E) . Between July 1970 and September 1983, Mr. Chen held
various positions at Zhenhai Fertiliser Plant (SE)8%{EABER) including
coordinator, deputy section chief of production and technology,
workshop director, deputy secretary of the party committee as well
as factory director. Mr. Chen also served as deputy head of the
organisation department of Zhenhai County Party Committee ($8/&
SERZARLED) from June 1985 to October 1985. He was a member
of the standing committee and the secretary of the Commission for
Discipline Inspection of Binhai (Beilun) District of Ningbo (Z% & &
(4t#)E) between October 1985 and March 1992. He was also a
member of the standing committee of the Commission for Discipline
Inspection of Ningbo (2# M4 %) between August 1989 and March
1992, the vice secretary and the secretary of the commission and the
chairman of the standing committee of the Local People’s Congress
of Binhai (Beilun) District (2 Fmit®mEAKRNFZE) between March
1992 and January 2003. From February 2002 to March 2011, Mr.
Chen served as the vice chairman of the standing committee of the
Local People’s Congress of Ningbo (2EMWAKXEZE). He was
appointed as the deputy director of the advisory committee to the
People’s Government of Ningbo (EET ARBNHHEZEE) in
August 2011 and retired from this position in September 2013.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Kenji (FR#EH) , aged 43, joined the Group in
September 2008. Now, he is the Financial Controller and Company
Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 18 years of experience in
auditing, financial controlling, company secretary and accounting. Mr.
Chan holds a Master Degree in Business Administration and a Degree
in Master of Science in China Business Management. Mr. Chan
is also a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Tax Adviser in Hong Kong
and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England & Wales.

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

69



70

EEREREEERE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

BREEE

HEELRE  WtAm ARERRKLE &
BEAKEMTHEITSHER £ AHERE
MBE-TMFENHEERMSHEELR - X —
NANFNAMBAREER - BAEBEEE
MEEEESBREISE M AKENE B8 E
HOHEE - KB _ZTRFMA B EERM
SRR R

BRESLE O+ N\ ARERELE a8
WY ERMARBLEMEETIF  ERE
BB +RFTEER - REER—NN\NF
Tt AMBERERR - ?&E@ﬁ%%_%%_ﬁﬁm
B AEKSERISIE - RIS KR
AR BNIE MR R EARK IR IR -

FEERELE A+ 5% AEEREEIE ¢
ﬁﬁ%@miéﬁ%'E%M¥iﬁ@ﬂ:+
NERLE c R— N/ \NFINEAEER - g
m¢ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ1¢o@ﬁiﬁﬁz
BEENAER M - RRPLIE - R
IR RACIBRNIE RN BB IR BNIE o

/

SEMEL - AHAR - ARERIGELE X

ERBMEEXTIE - EHBEEEBE -+
NEKR o WESBNREEMES o MBEAK
@ET B A QEMIN R TR AR R R AR

CMREETEARFAGIERAEETAE

TmlJ,ﬁ@ e HER B ERMBIERAEIE
TRIBRDBRKLIE - R—ANNF+AmE

KREFE  ZEASEERBERAZTE T
B -_ZEERFER AR —EEEHRMNE
BRBIBENIE - S ARENP HPRERK

Rk TELEBEERE -

BB EEEAR AR AF  Annual Report 2013

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hu Jijun (#3842 %) , aged 45, is a deputy general manager of the
Group. He is responsible for sales and marketing of the Group and
has 24 years of sales and marketing experience in the Japanese
knitwear market. After joining the Group in September 1989, Mr.
Hu worked at the production and operation department of Ningbo
Weaving as the deputy manager and an assistant to the general
manager, responsible for export sales. He has been acting as a
deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

Mr. Chen Lan (BR/&) , aged 48, is a deputy general manager of the
Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such as
cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 25 years of
experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan (EEEA#E) , aged 52, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the production planning of the Group,
and has over 26 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to joining
the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun District,
Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of the office,
the manager of the garment manufacturing department, the manager
of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department (£7<—8), assistant
to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the
general manager of the Group.

Mr. Yan Delin(S&#%), aged 59, is a deputy general manager of the
Group, in charge of the operations of the Group’s garment factory in
Cambodia and has over 26 years of experience in textile industry. He
has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Yan worked as the head of the equipment division of
Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant, the head of its office,
and a deputy general manager of joint venture companies under
Yuhang Cooperative Office (R {EN 22 ), during which, he served
as the general manager of a Cambodian company under the Yuhang
Cooperative Office. After joining the Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan
worked as the deputy head of the office of Ningbo Weaving and has
been acting as an assistant to the general manager of Shenzhou
Knitting since May 2005. He graduated from the Correspondence
College at the Party School of the Central Committee of CCP
majoring in economic management.
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Mr. Jiang Tao(JIi&), aged 47, is an assistant to the general manager
and the manager of the Uniglo Business Department of the Group.
He has 19 years of experience in knitting and weaving industry. Mr.
Jiang graduated from the faculty of English at Shanghai University (
YEKEZ), majoring in English for international trade. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked at Shanghai Dongfang Rimian Company Limited
(L8R BEAR AT . After joining the Group in October 1998,
Mr. Jiang served as an assistant to the general manager of Ningbo
Weaving and was responsible for the sales to Uniglo.

Mr. Cui Jifeng (E#2#), aged 50, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for its technology and quantity
affairs, and has over 26 years of experience in textile industry. Prior
to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy factory
manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant ( 22 % 4t & BR 2 /% ) in
charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager of the
production and operation department and an assistant to the general
manager of Ningbo Weaving.

Mr. Hu Yonghai (#7k8) , aged 48, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of fabric technology,
and has over 25 years of experience in textile industry. He has
obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu graduated
from Zhejiang Industrial University ()T T2 K2) with a bachelor’s
degree in industrial management engineering. He joined the Group
immediately after graduation and worked as the assistant manager,
deputy manager of the production and operation department and an
assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving, responsible for
the affairs in connection with fabrics and technology.

Mr. Ma Bin (B#) , aged 43, joined the Group in 2001. Currently,
he is an assistant to the general manager and the manager of the
NIKE Business Department of the Group. He is fully in charge of
the operation and project management and customer relationship
maintenance of the NIKE business department. Mr. Ma has 14
years of experience in the textile industry. After joining the Group,
he participated in the formation of the Shenzhou Department of
European and U.S. Business and was responsible for targeting
potential customers. He has been responsible for the NIKE business
since early 2005. In January 2009, he was appointed as an assistant
to the Group’s general manager. He graduated from the Department
of Electronic Engineering of the Fudan University and later obtained
his SUFE-Webster joint MBA from the MBA School of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Ma served as the business development manager of the Sealand
Securities.
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Mr. Song Qing(7RE), aged 44, is an assistant to the general manager
and the manager of the ADIDAS Business Department of the Group.
He is chiefly responsible for the general management and system
construction of the ADIDAS Business Department of the Group. He
assists the general manager with other aspects of operations and
has 16 years of experience in the textile industry. In 1994, Mr. Song
graduated from the Department of Computer Science and Technology
of the Northwestern Polytechnical University. He obtained a Master
of Technology from the National University of Singapore in 2005 and
received an NTU-SJTU Joint Executive MBA (EMBA) Programme in
2008. Joining the Group in January 2007, Mr. Song has 10 years of
work experience in Singapore. Beginning in 1997, he worked as a
senior software development engineer for a software development
firm for a year. In 1998, he joined 7k ZE T3 FL A G R A A] of the textile
industry and served as its IT Manager and Chief Information Officer
(CIO) successively.

Mr. Xu Huiguo (2% ) , aged 61, joined the Group in 2011. He
is currently a deputy general manager of the Group in charge of
the administrative affairs of the Group. Mr. Xu has over 43 years of
experience in administration and management. Mr. Xu has obtained
an undergraduate qualification in economic management from the
Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C. and is a qualified
engineer. Prior to joining the Group, he has been the team leader of
the wiring team (42X ) of Ningbo Electricity Bureau (2R EBEF) ,
a manager and the secretary of the party branch of Z)§ ERIREL
20 7], the general manager of B KXEE/NF], the chief of Beilun
District Electricity Bureau (Jt@m4t%E /&) and the general manager of
Ningbo Mingyao Environmental Thermal Power Co., Ltd.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) have pleasure in submitting their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
primary activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial statements
and the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 87 to 195.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.75
(including a special dividend of HK$0.20) (equivalent to approximately
RMBO0.59) per share for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 9 June 2014. However, the proposed payment
of the dividend shall be subject to approval by shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 28
May 2014.

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30 June
2013.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company had waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB19,175,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

73



74

ESEHE

Report of the Directors

[ &N

RZE—=F X A+TtH  AAFEBEER
‘A a) MCredit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited%s
RIBEEARARARM HhE(ESHE]) - R
B EW#®  ARRNLERFTTRARBLE
= 75 Bit 569,000,000 A& 7 ([ B & Ak 17 1) -
BRIEEBE2240T([BEEEIE]D  BEER
DS FRIEFEREMAEETROEREOR
1,527,464,000/87C * REIRFHABA2H T —
=FXA+TN\BEANAZTNBZEARRZA

=)

B Lt Ao &R 51 -
TTRAL TS -

FARARBZEELD HE

Al it o Ik
RRAEHEARAE -+ 285(—h~—
FE=WED  KEAREBIFE AR
AR -E—=F+-_A=+—HHa#ED K
fE# A AR H3,181,766,0007T © Hh AR
824,920,000 T B & AR FERARE ©

BrRBRE
REARRFABERAR P I BB ERE L
&3 - MASESEOERTMEREARRNE
TR ARG - AR IR TR A BRRZF RN
PRl o

HRERREE
TEBBTIRAMAVBRFENES EENEE
FMEHFHNE196H -

BE - HEIBEES

RARRIRZZE—=F AT N\BZKEESE
69,000,0008% %1 B 15 + T AR {E(E22.407 7T -
EHBRABBRMDEITHZE - FISFIRFREL
71,527,464,0008 7T - BB D RI2H
ARARRZE—=FRNATN\BEZZ—=F
NAZTNBZRAE -

B EXEERRQTFRMDIN - RA A K E AT
WEBARREBEZE_ZE—=F+-_A=1+—HIt
FENMERE  BOEEARAQREM LS

—
RETT ©

HNBEREMLRAR AT Annual Report 2013

SHARE CAPITAL

On 17 June 2013, the Company entered into an agreement with
Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited in respect of placing of the shares
of the Company (“Placing Agreement”). According to the Placing
Agreement, the Company placed 69,000,000 shares (“Placing
Shares”) to independent third parties by way of top-up placing at
HK$22.40 per Placing Share (the “Placing”). Net proceeds from
the placing of shares were approximately HK$1,527,464,000 after
related share issue expenses. Details of the Placing are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 18 June and 28 June 2013.

Save for the placing of shares mentioned above, there were no
movements in either the Company’s authorised or issued share
capital during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2013,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB3,181,766,000, of which RMB824,920,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 196.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company completed the placing of 69,000,000 new shares at
a consideration of HK$22.40 per share on 28 June 2013 with net
proceeds (after deducting relevant expenses for issuing shares) of
approximately HK$1,527,464,000. Details of the placing were set out
in the announcements of the Company dated 18 June 2013 and 28
June 2013, respectively.

Save for the placing of new shares of the Company mentioned above,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2013.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of the report were:

Mr. Ma Jianrong
Mr. Huang Guanlin
Mr. Ma Renhe
Ms. Zheng Miaohui
Mr. Wang Cunbo
Ms. Chen Zhifen
(appointed on 1 December 2013)

Mr. Chen Zhongjing
(resigned on 16 September 2013)

Mr. Jiang Xianpin
Mr. Qiu Weiguo
(appointed on 1 April 2013)
Mr. Chen Genxiang
Mr. Zong Pingsheng
(resigned on 1 April 2013)
Mr. Chen Xu
(appointed on 1 December 2013)

In accordance with Article 86(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. Chen Zhifen and Mr. Chen Xu will retire at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Wang Cunbo, Mr. Jiang Xianpin and Mr. Chen
Genxiang shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Jiang Xianpin, Mr. Qiu Weiguo, Mr. Chen
Genxiang and Mr. Chen Xu pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and has considered that they are independent.

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years which will be
automatically renewed for another term of three years subject to
compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the
respective service contract. According to the respective service
contract, it may be terminated at any time by either party giving the
other party not less than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years which
will be automatically renewed for another term of three years subject
to compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the
respective service contract. According to the respective service
contract, it may be terminated at any time by the Independent Non-
executive Director giving not less than three months’ prior written
notice.

The Non-executive Director entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of one year which was terminated during the
year ended 31 December 2013 in accordance with the terms of such
service contract.

Under the respective service contracts, each of the Executive
Directors is entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus as
the Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided
that the aggregate amount of the discretionary management bonuses
payable to all Executive Directors in respect of any financial year of
the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the Group after
taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate amount of the
discretionary management bonuses but before non-recurring items
for the relevant financial year.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
below and “Related party transactions” in note 36 to the financial
statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, none of the Directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
Senior Management of the Group are set out on pages 65 to 72.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which was taken or deemed to be held
by any such director or chief executive under such provisions of the
SFO) and were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Securities
Trading Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as
follows:

AR TEBIT

£ ks B RERER G EE RAE 2 b (%)
Percentage of

the Issued Share

Capacity and Capital of

Name Notes Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
BRREE 1 DA 750,332,500 53.63%
Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Corporate interests 750,332,500 53.63%
BMEE 2 AR 89,217,500 6.37%
Mr. Ma Renhe 2 Corporate interests 89,217,500 6.37%

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Note:

1. As at 31 December 2013, 750,332,500 Shares were held by Keep Glory
Limited (“Keep Glory”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 80.08% by
Splendid Steed Investments Limited (“Splendid Steed”), 13.92% by
BMX (HK) LTD. (“BMX”) and 6.00% by Super China Enterprises Limited
(“Super China”). Splendid Steed, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong.
BMX, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma
Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma Baoxing). Super China, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed to be interested in the 750,332,500
Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2013, 89,217,500 Shares were held by Fairco
Group Limited (“Fairco”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 70,17% by
MCC Group Ltd (“MCC”) and 29.83% by certain senior management
of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui, Mr. Wang Cunbo and Ms.
Chen Zhifen (executive Directors) and Mr. Chen Zhongjing (a non-
executive Director), resigned on 16 September 2013. MCC, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a cousin of Mr.
Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Renhe is deemed to be
interested in the 89,217,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Securities Trading Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executive of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF

THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2013, the following persons who held interests of
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, other than
Directors of the Company, were recorded in the register of members

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO:
LR NEITEE-" £y
£1B FitEE SO RERER B EE IR E 2 H (%)
Percentage of
the Issued Share
Capacity and Capital of
Name Notes Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
S 1 EDBBA 750,332,500 53.63%
Keep Glory 1 Beneficial owner 750,332,500 53.63%
TES 1 DR 750,332,500 53.63%
Splendid Steed 1 Corporate interests 750,332,500 53.63%
== 2 EnlAA 89,217,500 6.37%
Fairco 2 Beneficial owner 89,217,500 6.37%
MCC 2 NGILZ 89,217,500 6.37%
MCC 2 Corporate interests 89,217,500 6.37%
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Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2013, 750,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, which is owned as to 80.08% by Splendid Steed, 13.92%
by BMX and 6.00% by Super China. Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin. Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Splendid Steed is deemed to
be interested in the 750,332,500 Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2013, 89,217,500 Shares were held by Fairco, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which is owned as to 70.17% by MCC and 29.83% by certain senior
management of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui, Mr. Wang
Cunbo and Ms. Chen Zhifen (executive Directors) and Mr. Chen
Zhongjing (a non-executive Director, resigned on 16 September 2013).
MCC, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a
cousin of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, MCC is deemed to be
interested in the 89,217,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and
short positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2013 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

HERBE HEHEREZ

B2 (%) B2 (%)

Percentage of Percentage of

Purchases (%) Sales (%)

SAMER B The largest supplier/customer 10.38 23.57
AR BEER Five largest suppliers/customers combined 28.30 83.70

BRUARF 2B 2R mREs -

REATMER  BEES  REZBEAL
SRR (GLEF AR AR RE%IA LK
RRNZEETBZREAKEPHE T -

For further information about the top four customers, please refer to
note 4 to the financial statements.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers at
all times during the year.

2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 36 to
the financial statements also constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, which are required to be
disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
following transactions between certain connected persons (as defined
in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been entered into and/
or are ongoing for which relevant disclosure had been made by
the Company in announcements in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Ningbo
Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”) entered
into a lease agreement on 21 December 2010, pursuant to
which Shenzhou Properties leased to Shenzhou Knitting the
apparel production properties for a period commencing on 1
January 2011 and expiring on 31 December 2013, with a right
of renewal exercisable by Shenzhou Knitting for a further term
of three years at or below the prevailing market rate (the “Lease
Agreement”). The Lease Agreement is terminable by Shenzhou
Knitting giving no less than three months’ notice to Shenzhou
Properties. The rental so charged by Shenzhou Properties is
determined by reference to the market rates for leasing similar
properties and production facilities from independent third
parties under normal commercial terms during the course of
ordinary business in Ningbo, China. Shenzhou Properties, which
is owned as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive Director,
and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong Industrial Investment
Company Limited (“Rongrong Industrial”), an associate, is
therefore a connected person by virtue of Rule 14A.11(4) of
the Listing Rules. During the year, rentals paid to Shenzhou
Properties by the Group amounted to RMB7,262,000. On
18 December 2013, the Lease Agreement was renewed by
Shenzhou Knitting and Shenzhou Properties, details of which
are contained in the announcement of the Company dated 18
December 2013.
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Shenzhou Knitting and 28 7 B3 tt 3@ $1 4% 8 R 2 & (Ningbo
Shenzhou Shitong Knitwear Co. Ltd.*) (“Shenzhou Shitong”)
entered into a processing services agreement (the “Processing
Services Agreement”) dated 21 December 2010, pursuant to
which, Shenzhou Shitong agreed to provide the Group with
certain cutting services for a period commencing on 1 January
2011 and expiring on 31 December 2013 at a rate of service
charges ranging from RMBO0.8 per piece to RMB1.0 per piece,
depending on the technology involved. The related charges are
determined with reference to the current market prices charged
by independent suppliers for the provision of cutting services
of knitted garments. Shenzhou Shitong, which is indirectly
owned by Worldon as to 80% interest and owned by Rongrong
Industrial as to the remaining 20% interest, is a connected
person by virtue of Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. During
the year, the processing services fees paid to Shenzhou Shitong
by the Group amounted to RMB13,064,000. On 18 December
2013, the Processing Services Agreement was renewed by
Shenzhou Knitting and Shenzhou Shitong, details of which
are contained in the announcement of the Company dated 18
December 2013.

Shenzhou Knitting and Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
Materials Company Limited (“Huaxi Packaging Company”)
entered into a supply agreement (the “Packaging Material
Supply Agreement”) dated 21 December 2010, pursuant to
which, Huaxi Packaging Company agreed to supply packaging
materials to the Group from time to time on normal commercial
terms which are no less favorable than those available from
independent third parties. The Packaging Material Supply
Agreement is for a term commencing on 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2013. Huaxi Packaging Company is owned as to
87.5% by Mr. Huang Guanquan, who is the younger brother of
Mr. Huang Guanlin, an Executive Director, and as to 12.5% by
Mr. Huang Fuchang, who is the father of Mr. Huang Guanlin.
Huaxi Packaging Company is a connected person by virtue
of Rule 14A.11(4) of the Listing Rule. During the year, the
amount paid to Huaxi Packaging Company by the Group for the
purchases of packaging materials totalled to RMB42,389,000.
On 18 December 2013, the Packaging Material Supply
Agreement was renewed by Shenzhou Knitting and Huaxi
Packaging Company, details of which are contained in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 December 2013.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the aforesaid transactions had been entered into (1) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (2) either
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and (3) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
have provided a letter, confirming that nothing has come to
their attention that cause them to believe that the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions (1) have not been approved
by the board of directors of the Company; (2) are not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (3) have not been entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and (4) have exceeded the
maximum aggregate annual values disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 21 December 2010 made by the
Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is Publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has audited the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board

Chairman

Ma Jianrong

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhou
International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 87 to 195,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

2013 F# Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd floor

CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

25 March 2014



Consolidated Income Statement

—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
B R AR¥T R AREFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
I’ PN REVENUE 5 10,047,217 8,937,578
HEXA Cost of sales (7,208,534) (6,393,023)
EA Gross profit 2,838,683 2,544,555
H A WA K ez Other income and gains 5 295,633 244,283
HHE R SHKAR Selling and distribution expenses (164,449) (143,285)
THHEX Administrative expenses (696,653) (600,350)
EmES Other expenses (61,995) (9,751)
B AR Finance costs 7 (10,010) (29,987)
Rr&t B0 R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 2,201,209 2,005,465
PGB Income tax expense 11 (397,297) (383,985)
E ERE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,803,912 1,621,480
AR AT FE(RHER - Attributable to:
ISYNEIEFEPN Owners of the parent 12 1,802,989 1,620,158
FEZE ) R Non-controlling interests 923 1,322
1,803,912 1,621,480
BATEERRKREZEESA EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
EEEREF TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 14
EHAK Basic AR#¥1.327T AR¥EA 2470
—FEFE — For profit for the year RMB1.32 RMB1.24
e Diluted FiEA T3
— FEFE — For profit for the year N/A N/A

FREREM MER B 2 BN A KRR EE  Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are
13# 58 © disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

2013 %%} Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited ~ 87
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
FsE AR%TR ARETTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FEFHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,803,912 1,621,480
Hip 2wk OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
MEMELEF - Cash flow hedges:
EEEEYHPTANR{E Effective portion of changes in fair value
) 2 5D of hedging instruments arising during
the year 26 14,860 13,656
HN R A IBRRER L Reclassification adjustments for
Wz EFHERE gains recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss 26 (9,427) (28,371)
5,433 (14,715)
MEISONETE 7 IE N =% Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (41,372) 3,482
FEHME2EEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(ErBi2) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (35,939) (11,233)
EEXHREAE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 1,767,973 1,610,247
AT ALRERRER Attributable to:
ISYNEIEZZEPN Owners of the parent 1,767,050 1,608,925
FEZE I R Non-controlling interests 923 1,322
1,767,973 1,610,247

88 HmMNEEREEZEBRARAT  Annual Report 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—g-= —E—_F
2013 2012
=2 AR¥TR ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BE NMRE Property, plant and equipment 15 3,518,230 3,314,100
e E R IE Prepaid land lease payments 16 696,871 539,275
B EE Intangible assets 17 101,909 105,074
EEFRIBEE A& Deferred tax assets 28 7,571 9,058
BIERENEE Total non-current assets 4,324,581 3,967,507
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 19 2,424,899 1,924,435
U K = Trade and bills receivables 20 1,374,991 1,397,759
TEFIE - BE R HA Prepayments, deposits and other
JEWFRIE receivables 21 352,872 330,435
AN ERE Available-for-sale investments 22 200,000 =
PTESmIA Derivative financial instruments 26 3,456 -
e TFEF A =E A Z Bank deposits with an initial term of
RITTER over three months 27,425 130,868
ReMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 2,609,050 2,144,405
e A E Total current assets 6,992,693 5,927,902
=R CURRENT LIABILITIES
AR NS Trade and bills payables 24 391,749 397,099
TEUREBR X Advances from customers 14,095 4,939
H b fEMNFIARESTFRIE  Other payables and accruals 25 531,168 431,779
PTESHMTA Derivative financial instruments 26 - 9,550
SERBTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 - 786,226
FES A A 5708 Amounts due to related parties 36 - 3,288
FET R TR Tax payable 48,605 140,394
ErREaE Total current liabilities 985,617 1,773,275
BREEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 6,007,076 4,154,627
BEERRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 10,331,657 8,122,134
BEE Net assets 10,331,657 8,122,134
2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
B AR®T R ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
= EQUITY
BATREEAELES Equity attributable to owners
of the parent
A% AR Share capital 29 142,105 136,609
fEfE Reserves 30(a) 9,349,239 7,195,906
Bk R EARR B Proposed final dividend 13 824,920 754,855
10,316,264 8,087,370
e R Non-controlling interests 15,393 34,764
it Total equity 10,331,657 8,122,134
BER =EAM
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
- HITEE
Chairman Executive Director

90 BB @A AR AF  Annual Report 2013



REERBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BATEAAEL
Attributable to owners of the parent
EERS EERE
Rx  BROEEE UG S ENRBEE BAGE REEN RRAHRR ai  FEsnER L
Share Statutory Exchange Employee Proposed Non-
Share premium Hedging surplus  fluctuation equity benefits Retained final controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
iR ARETE  ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Fizto9) (Bstos)  (RHEE30))  (FEEESO(I)
(note 29) (note 26)  (note 30(al(l)  (note 30(al(il)
W=Z--%-f-A At 1 January 2012 129,717 762,499 11,874 871,850 (23,344) 48,191 3,772,781 504,661 6,078,229 33,999 6,112,228
EERENGEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (14,715) - 3,482 - 1,620,158 - 1,608,925 1,322 1,610,247
B ERRARS Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (657) (657)
ki Issue of shares 29 6,892 94,93 - - - - - - 951,185 - 951,185
RGEIAR Share issue expenses 29 - (11,637) - - - - - - (11,637) - (11,637)
BANEESA2HREE  Proposed final 2011 dividend to
Z new shares issued in the year - - - - - - (34,671) 34,671 - - -
ke Final 2011 dividend declared = = = = = = > (539,332) (539,332) = (539,332)
BE-T-—5REkRE Proposed final 2012 dividend 13 = (662,155) - - - - (202,700) 754,855 - - -
BREREET Transfer from retained profits - - - 110,173 - - (110,173 - - - -
W=F-—F+-A=1—F At31 December 2012 136,609 1,143,000* (2,841 982,023 (19,862 48,191 5,045,305* 754,855 8,087,370 34,764 8,122,134
BARREARL
Attributable to owners of the parent
EEER EERE
Bx  RORER HiGE AEE  ENRERE BRIRE REER RERERE &t FEHNER 45
Share Statutory Exchange Employee Proposed Non-
Share premium Hedging surplus  fluctuation equity benefits Retained final controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
i ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTr  ARETR  AR®TR  ARMTn  ARETR  AR¥TR  AR¥TR
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(H29) (Wit2e)  (RfE30(a)i)  (Ri&E30(a)(i)
(note 29) (note 26)  (note 30(a)(i)) ~(note 30(a)fii))
W=%-=%-8-A At 1 January 2013 136,609 1,143,000 (2,841) 982,023 (19,862) 48,191 5,045,395 754,855 8,087,370 34,764 8,122,134
FERANGES Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 5,433 - (41,372) - 1,802,989 - 1,767,050 923 1,767,973
MM ERRNRE Dividends paid to
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - - (583) (583)
BREIES Transfer of
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (19,711) (19,711)
BRA Issue of shares 29 5,496 1,225,574 - - - - - - 1,231,070 - 1,231,070
RAETRX Share issue expenses 2 - (14,371) - - - - - - (14,371) - (14,371)
FR-F-ERERE Final 2012 dividend declared - - - - - - - (754,855) (754,855) - (754,855)
BE-Z-ZFRERE Proposed final 2013 dividend 13 - (322,342 - - - - (502,578) 824,920 - - -
BRERRER Transfer from retained profits - - - 69,986 - - (69,986) - - - -
W=B-=F+ZB=+-H At31 December 2013 142,105 2,031,861* 2,502 1,052,009 (61,234)* 48,191*  6,275,820* 824,920 10,316,264 15,393 10,331,657

* HAMBRARRPFZIEABERARYE -
9,349,239,0007t( — &
7,195,906,0007T ) H 15 & B BRAEAK

——&F: ARK

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB9,349,239,000 (2012: RMB7,195,906,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

2013

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

—E—= T4
2013 2012
FsE AR%TR ARETTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
REEXBABRESRE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
IR Profit before tax 2,201,209 2,005,465
I Adjustments for:

RLE KA Finance costs 10,010 29,987

FBUA Interest income 5 (33,501) (40,077)

HEME - BERZE Loss on disposal of items of property,

BAZEE plant and equipment 6 4,320 1,598

A E(kES), ESIEEEE:  Fair value (gains)/losses, net:

PTETAE-TFE Derivative instruments — transactions
HHERZRS not qualifying as hedges 6 (929) 412

VI - B MEREIE B Depreciation of items of property,

e plant and equipment 6 385,769 342,716

TR 4 AR B SR IE B Amortisation of prepaid land

lease payments 6 13,693 11,876

HE B A Amortisation of intangible assets 6 7,356 7,087

2,587,927 2,359,064
FEOEM), SR (Increase)/decrease in inventories (500,464) 28,379
MR TR N i Decrease/(increase) in trade and

B,/ (Em) bills receivables 22,768 (84,113)
FERARIE - Zek Increase in prepayments,

E fth FEU FRIAIE N deposits and other receivables (9,162) (42,397)
FESTBR B S =R A Decrease in trade and bills payables (5,350) (93,739)
TEWRBRRIE N, (R ) Increase/(decrease) in advances

from customers 9,156 (25,742)
Hub e~ 308 & EET Increase in other payables and accruals

FRIAE N 106,804 2,950
FES R A T FIR (Decrease)/increase in amounts

CBA), /10 due to related parties (3,288) 1,657
KEEBAEHRS Cash generated from operations 2,208,391 2,146,059
ERFER Interest paid (10,010) (29,987)
B EBAFEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (68,549) (23,282)
DR ERER PRC corporate income tax paid (420,531) (468,223)
R FEIEFTFIRE 2P Net cash flows from operating activities 1,709,301 1,624,567

RIME R EEERAR AT Annual Report 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BERBR

—E-=F —E—F
2013 2012
Fo5E AR¥TR ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBFBHRENRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
B FIE Interest received 34,259 38,074
BEWME  BER Purchases of items of property,
HBIEE plant and equipment (620,877) (646,309)
HEWE  BEK Proceeds from disposal of items of
RIBIEB 25 IE property, plant and equipment 3,202 859
SR LR EFR Payments of prepaid land lease payments (171,289) (3,744)
Wi H At L B B Purchases of other intangible assets (4,191) (2,433)
WHE AT H BN E Purchases of available-for-sale investments (200,000) =
PTHES R T EEIH Maturity of derivative financial instruments (5,163) (650)
s EFEa=EA 2 Decrease in bank deposits with an initial
RITFEIR D term of over three months 103,443 159,257
WEEBATAIRS R E %% Net cash flows used in investing activities (860,616) (454,946)
METHAERSRE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
BITRMGPATISFUR Proceeds from issue of shares 1,216,699 939,548
ERITER New bank loans 548,609 482,507
EBIRITEXR Repayment of bank loans (1,334,835) (940,540)
W B 2 ) M A 2 Acquisition of non-controlling interests (19,711) =
AR REHA ARAAR S Dividends paid to owners of the parent (754,855) (539,332)
eS| Rz R T IES  Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (583) (557)
BEEB AT S M E %58 Net cash flows used in financing activities (344,676) (58,374)
BERBELSEEYEIFEE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 504,009 1,111,247
FURE RIRSEFEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 2,144,405 1,029,596
fEREF a8 F5 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (39,364) 3,562
FREERBEEZEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 2,609,050 2,144,405
HeRBESESEYWHEER D ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
IR & MIRTTE R Cash and bank balances 1,653,455 1,027,227
RERRREPN=MAE Non-pledged time deposits with
B H 7 SR E BiFE R original maturity of less than
three months when acquired 955,595 1,117,178
BRI R & Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
RERERMYZ the statement of financial position and
B RREEEY the statement of cash flows 23 2,609,050 2,144,405
2013 3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Statement of Financial Position

—EB-=F T
2013 2012
Fo5E AR%TR ARETTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ME - BE NMRE Property, plant and equipment 43 52
RB AR ZIEE Investments in subsidiaries 18(a) 648,422 648,979
LTMBARCER Loans to subsidiaries 18(b) 404,183 415,105
EEFIEE E Deferred tax assets 28 - 479
EMEEELE Total non-current assets 1,052,648 1,064,615
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FEUS AR X Trade receivables 20 79,154 422,740
H At R YR IR Other receivables 21 1,379,159 1,006,152
BTHBARZER Loans to subsidiaries 18(b) 927,482 1,157,567
FEUS B B A RISRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 18(c) 215,085 96,811
B RIRSHEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 492,052 130,779
e A E Total current assets 3,092,932 2,814,049
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FETRRK Trade payables 24 - 10,974
E A FE FRIE R FEET5RIE  Other payables and accruals 25 26 21
TSI A Derivative financial instruments 26 - 8,998
FHERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 - 346,241
FEAST B BB A R 5RIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 18(c) 815,379 1,085,021
JE S F 18 Tax payable 6,304 11,645
BrRBaE Total current liabilities 821,709 1,462,900
ERBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,271,223 1,351,149
REAERABRE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 3,323,871 2,415,764
FEE Net assets 3,323,871 2,415,764
s EQUITY
[ Share capital 29 142,105 136,609
] Reserves 30(b) 2,356,846 1,524,300
R AR AN B Proposed final dividend 13 824,920 754,855
B Total equity 3,323,871 2,415,764
BER ERAM
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
FE HITEF
Chairman Executive Director
MBI @R AR AR Annual Report 2013
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on 23 June 2005. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main Board”) since
24 November 2005.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of knitwear products (the “Knitwear Business”). Details of the
principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 18.

In the opinion of the directors, Splendid Steed Investments
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), is the ultimate holding company of the Company.
Keep Glory Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the
intermediate holding company of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
20183. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 36 Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

2013

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards —
Government Loans
Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Consolidated Financial Statements

Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12
- Transition Guidance

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements
— Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income
Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets — Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
(early adopted)

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in June 2012

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)
Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13, amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, and HKAS 1, and certain amendments
included in Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle (Include
other standards as appropriate), the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

(@)

HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements and
addresses the issues in HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities. It establishes a single
control model used for determining which entities are
consolidated. To meet the definition of control in HKFRS
10, an investor must have (a) power over an investee,
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. The changes introduced by HKFRS 10
require management of the Group to exercise significant
judgement to determine which entities are controlled.

As a result of application of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with respect to determining
which investees are controlled by the Group.

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any of the
consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its
involvement with investees as at 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities previously included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for
these entities. Details of the disclosures for subsidiaries
are included in note 18 to the financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

©

The HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Amendments
clarify the transition guidance in HKFRS 10 and provide
further relief from full retrospective application of these
standards, limiting the requirement to provide adjusted
comparative information to only the preceding comparative
period. The amendments clarify that retrospective
adjustments are only required if the consolidation
conclusion as to which entities are controlled by the
Group is different between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or
HK(SIC)-Int 12 at the beginning of the annual period in
which HKFRS 10 is applied for the first time.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does
not change the circumstances in which the Group is
required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on
how fair value should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted under other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13
is applied prospectively and the adoption has had no
material impact on the Group’s fair value measurements.
As a result of the guidance in HKFRS 13, the policies
for measuring fair value have been amended. Additional
disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the fair value
measurements of financial instruments are included in
note 32 to the financial statements.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). ltems
that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at
a future point in time (for example, exchange differences
on translation of foreign operations, net movement on
cash flow hedges and net loss or gain on available-
for-sale financial assets) are presented separately from
items which will never be reclassified (for example, the
revaluation of land and buildings). The amendments have
had no impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group. In addition, the Group has chosen to use the
new title “statement of profit or loss” as introduced by the
amendments in these financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

()

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 2012
sets out amendments to a number of standards. There
are separate transitional provisions for each standard.
While the adoption of some of the amendments may
result in changes in accounting policies, none of these
amendments have had a significant financial impact on the
Group. Details of the key amendments most applicable to
the Group are as follows:

° HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary additional
comparative information and the minimum required
comparative information. Generally, the minimum
required comparative period is the previous period.
An entity must include comparative information in
the related notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information beyond
the previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete set
of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period must be presented when
an entity changes its accounting policies; makes
retrospective restatements or makes reclassifications,
and that change has a material effect on the
statement of financial position. However, the related
notes to the opening statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the preceding period are not
required to be presented.

° HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
Clarifies that income taxes arising from distributions
to equity holders are accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes. The amendment
removes existing income tax requirements from
HKAS 32 and requires entities to apply the
requirements in HKAS 12 to any income tax arising
from distributions to equity holders.
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
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STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 14

HKAS 19 Amendments

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Financial Instruments *

Hedge Accounting and amendments
to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7
and HKAS 394

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
— Investment Entities

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Amendments to HKAS 19
Employee Benefits — Defined Benefit
Plans: Employee Contributions *

Amendments to HKAS 32
Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities '
Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting '

Levies

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in January 20142

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in January 20142

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
adoption
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23 CHEMEBEAEMZERBITE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value,
on the basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the
approach for the classification and measurement of financial
assets compared with the requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9
to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated
in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of financial
instruments of HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried
forward unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”).
For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value
of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk must
be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value
is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair
value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
However, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
which have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of
the Additions.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In December 2013, the HKICPA added to HKFRS 9 the
requirements related to hedge accounting and made some
related changes to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 which include the
corresponding disclosures about risk management activity for
applying hedge accounting. The amendments to HKFRS 9
relax the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness which
result in more risk management strategies being eligible for
hedge accounting. The amendments also allow greater flexibility
on the hedged items and relax the rules on using purchased
options and non-derivative financial instruments as hedging
instruments. In addition, the amendments to HKFRS 9 allow
an entity to apply only the improved accounting for own credit
risk-related fair value gains and losses arising on FVO liabilities
as introduced in 2010 without applying the other HKFRS 9
requirements at the same time.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The previous
mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 was removed by the
HKICPA in December 2013 and a mandatory effective date
will be determined after the entire replacement of HKAS 39 is
completed. However, the standard is available for application
now. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction with other
phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued.
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23 CHEMEBEAEMZERBITE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an investment
entity and provide an exception to the consolidation requirement
for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity.
Investment entities are required to account for subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9
rather than consolidate them. Consequential amendments were
made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments
to HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements for
investment entities. The Group expects that these amendments
will not have any impact on the Group as the Company is not
an investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

In February 2014, the HKICPA issued HKFRS 14 Regulatory
Deferral Accounts to ease the adoption of HKFRS for rate-
regulated entities. The standard allows an entity to continue
applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory
deferral account balances upon adoption of HKFRS. This
interim standard provides first-time adopters of HKFRS with
relief from derecognising rate-regulated assets and liabilities
until a comprehensive project on accounting for such assets
and liabilities is completed by the HKICPA. HKFRS 14 is
intended to encourage rate-regulated entities to adopt HKFRS
while bridging the gap with entities that already apply HKFRS,
but do not recognise regulatory deferral accounts. This would
be achieved by requiring separate presentation of the regulatory
deferral account balances (and movements in these balances)
in the statement of financial position and statement of profit or
loss and comprehensive income.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off” for offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group upon adoption
on 1 January 2014.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously

held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises (only if there are revalued assets in the financial
statements), unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(i

(it

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i

(it

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and
disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives of property, plant and equipment used for this purpose are

as follows:

Category Estimated useful life
Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowing funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are
as follows:

Category Estimated useful life
Software 3-5 years
Water Use Right 20 years

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases
net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no individual
land ownership rights exist. The Group acquires the right to
use certain land and the consideration paid for such right is
recorded as prepaid land lease payments, which are amortised
over the lease terms of 30 to 50 years using the straight-line
method.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by
HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
other expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-
for-sale financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the statement of
profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, amounts due to the ultimate holding company,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

121



B RS SR M

Notes to Financial Statements

24 TESHBERBE(E)

TREENAEETEEERBTHEUR
ok fE By AR L EFERR. ©

HABRREEREBBENR BT REHRE
RRHBATRZBERR - HRBAE
R RIBERT » QI BRI KBTI
RUIEBRREBELERNAERE
MR EE < ZHEANKR A B R E

=7
o

EIERIEA AR HIIT R RER - A
HiHmEREE BABANFRAAE
B IFAREREEREERE ¢
BEMSBABEDPOPE - MaZFEA
SRR KR AR

IR R EE B
AEBFERTESRTAPIIIERER
AR KA HEH) 7 Bl e B = L K
MERRE - T ES BT AVRER
TEAKNFI ARz A EER - £&
ENFEARE TTETARAARER
IHRBRAREE MEAARERAHK
FiERRARE

TETARREZSMES 2 EKE
KBEREEAGARRER  BRRERN
2 BB D T E b 2 [ U ek R R R
REREEHAEEZERBUNENDE

=85 -

122 =SiBEEEEZEKRERAT  Annual Report 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow
hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

° fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment; or

o cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability
in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction, or a foreign currency risk in
an unrecognised firm commitment.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk
management objective and its strategy for undertaking the
hedge. The documentation includes identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in
the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually
have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income in the hedging reserve, while any ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as other expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when
hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or
when a forecast sale occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost
of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts
recognised in other comprehensive income are transferred to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the same period
or periods during which the asset acquired or liability assumed
affects the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging
strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or when
the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income remain in other comprehensive income until the forecast
transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is
met.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

° Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting)
for a period beyond 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

o Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can
be made.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are
initially recorded using the functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of the Company is the Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”). The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries
located outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their consolidated statement of profit or
loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and consequently related depreciation charges. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to the industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and
equipment and prepaid land lease payments have any indication
of impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations, while that of prepaid land lease
payments has been determined with reference to independent
valuations. These calculations and valuations require the use of
judgements and estimates.

Estimated impairment of receivables

The Group records impairment of receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables. Provisions are applied to trade and bills
receivables and other receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the difference will impact the carrying
value of trade and bills receivables and other receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the period in which the estimate has
been changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimated write-downs of inventories to net realisable
value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-
downs on inventories are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.
The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, the difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in the years in which
the estimate has been changed.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and there is one
reportable operating segment: the manufacture and sale
of knitwear products. Management monitors the operating
results of its business units as a whole for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment.

(@) ZREVRFHEID ZINBRFKA (a) Revenue from external customers by location of goods
delivery

—E—-= —E—_—F

2013 2012

ARETR AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

B2 Japan 3,392,580 2,805,902
=eNEilNpii] Mainland China 1,909,464 1,775,348
(] European Union 1,744,070 1,849,436
EH United States of America 900,013 727,913
H A B Other countries 2,101,090 1,778,979
10,047,217 8,937,578

PRFHEREXB 2 MABRDRER
PRAEEIEI D ©

The revenue information of continuing operations above is
based on the locations of the customers.
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4. REHHWER (&)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(o) FERBEE (b)  Non-current assets
—E-= —E——F
2013 2012
AR® T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A [ At Mainland China 3,969,826 3,880,650
HEg Vietnam 225,293 -
SRIHZE Cambodia 114,522 69,554
EMEIxR Other countries 7,369 8,245
4,317,010 3,958,449

LB ES2 FRDEEER T
BAEMENES LTRELBIA
REEHEEE -

The non-current asset information of continuing operations
above is based on the locations of the assets and
excludes financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

KEATEEEPZBA - (hAEEE

Revenue from major customers which accounts for 10%

WA10%3K A | - or more of the Group’s revenue are as follows:
—E-= —E——4F
2013 2012
ARETT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HFEH Customer A 2,368,357 2,093,445
BEZ Customer B 2,109,537 2,010,709
PR Customer C 1,841,726 1,662,320
=ET Customer D 1,164,292 600,628
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trade discounts.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

KEE
Group
—=E-= —E——4F
2013 2012
ARET T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
LON Revenue
HEED Sale of goods 10,047,217 8,937,578
Habg A Other income
B #6 B Government grants* 241,675 196,101
ERITF B UL A Bank interest income 33,501 40,077
HEWA Rental income 19,528 6,632
294,704 242,810
= Gains
E R =R FRE Foreign exchange differences, net - 1,473
N EWEZFEE Fair value gains, net:
PTETE —IFFEE+ Derivative instruments-transactions not
BRZR 5 qualifying as hedges 929 -
295,633 244,283

* B B Bt BUR A TASE 2
2R o IR # B 3 TS S A (AT AR A 16

HFRHAEIA -

*

contingencies related to the government grants.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Government grants mainly represent incentives granted by local
governments to the Group. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
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6. FR®iATAIE

AEE ZRBATAMBEE R, (GEA):

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

136 e

(crediting):

EE

Group
—E-=F —E——F
2013 2012
B eE AR¥ETR ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BHEFENA Cost of inventories sold 7,155,938 6,347,288
e Depreciation 15 385,769 342,716
TEft 0 70 S rIEE i Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 16 13,693 11,876
mR AR Amortisation of intangible assets 17 7,356 7,087

RBLEHERE 1‘1‘2 Minimum lease payments under
=EHESHIE operating leases:

BF Buildings 57,123 30,618
ZE A Auditors’ remuneration 2,474 2,380
REBARAZ (RIEESK Employee benefit expense (including

SES1THA B84 (FfiF8)): directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration (note 8)):

TEEF# Wages and salaries 2,247,883 1,748,851

RIRETEIHER Pension scheme contributions 101,784 68,348

H b &R Other benefits 94,443 93,878

2,444,110 1,911,077
BN R R Foreign exchange differences, net * 47,781 (1,473)
WREEZAEREE Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value 4,147 16,561
ARE(dER) FiE%4E - Fair value (gains)/losses, net:
PTETE-FFEEH Derivative instruments — transactions not

BRI G qualifying as hedges ** (929) 412
RITHLRKA Bank interest income (33,501) (40,077)
HENE  BER Loss on disposal of items of property,

RIBIEE 2 18 plant and equipment 4,320 1,598

*x

HE-_Z—=F+=-A=+—H
rF—FE——HF+-F=+—H8HIt
iFZER%%@%E 211 N

£18% iZFEﬁﬂﬁrﬁSﬂ&Fﬁﬁﬂ
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HE-_T—=F+-A=+—8
rE=FT——F+=-A=+—HL
¢F2’Afafﬁ%ﬁ&}§ﬂaa il
‘H\i?é% SR HE MU A UL
= IR EMET IR -
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*ok

The foreign exchange differences, net for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012 are included in “Other
expenses” and “Other income and gains” respectively on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The fair value gains and losses for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 31 December 2012 are included in “Other income
and gains” and “Other expenses” respectively on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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& A 7. FINANCE COSTS
BB ADITUT ¢ An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
REH
Group
—_E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR®Tx AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HARRAFRNEBHREEZ Interest on bank borrowings wholly
RITEEZFE repayable within five years 10,010 29,987

ESERBSITBRAEZHME

BRIz EH R R REE R R ERDIFE16115
MRE  AEEEERERITBRARZ
MEeRENT -

8.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

REHE

Group
—=E—-= —E——4F
2013 2012
ARETFT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
we Fees 276 205
e EMREYNZE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,392 2,721
RIRGTEIHE R Pension scheme contributions 37 26
3,429 2,747
3,705 2,952

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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8. EENRSTHAEZHME 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

(&) REMUNERATION (continued)
e 2HR BREHE
ne ENFE # Hemm
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
ARBTT  AR®Tn AR®Tn  AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—Z-=% 2013
RTESE: Executive directors:
BRRLE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 744 9 753
BEAMTE(THER) Mr. Huang Guanlin (Chief executive) - 582 7 589
BCMEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 450 7 457
gYEL T Ms. Zheng Miaohui - 443 - 443
TRR%E Mr. Wang Cunbo - 440 7 447
REHFaL(R_Z—=% Ms. Chen Zhifen
+=-A—BEZ{E) (appointed on 1 December 2013) - 607 7 614
- 3,266 37 3,303
FHTES: Non-executive director:
REFEE(R-E—=F Mr. Chen Zhongjing
NATAREE) (resigned on 16 September 2013) - - - -
BUFHTES : Independent non-executive directors:
BERLAE Mr. Jiang Xianpin 9% 36 - 132
BB LA Mr. Chen Genxiang 60 36 - 9%
AEEEAERZS—=F Mr. Qiu Weiguo
NA—REZE) (appointed on 1 April 2013) 72 36 - 108
TREEE(RZE—=F Mr. Zong Pingsheng
mA—RET) (resigned on 1 April 2013) 40 8 - 48
BREE(R=Z—=% Mr. Chen Xu
+ZA—REZMA) (appointed on 1 December 2013) 8 10 - 18
276 126 - 402
276 3,392 37 3,705
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8. EENRSTHAEZHME 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
(&) REMUNERATION (continued)

e 2R EIRGE

e EWHS it Hess
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration

ARBTE  ARETR ARRTT  ARMTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

“E——fF 2012
RTES Executive directors:
SRERE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 729 8 737
EAMLE(TTHESR) Mr. Huang Guanlin (Chief executive) - 599 6 605
ECMEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 447 6 453
gL+ Ms. Zheng Miaohui - 437 - 437
TEREE Mr. Wang Cunbo = 434 6 440
- 2,646 20 2,672
FHTES: Non-executive director:
RAELE Mr. Chen Zhongjing - 5 - 5
BUIEHTES : Independent non-executive directors:
BEmit(R=E——F Mr. Jiang Xianpin
MA—BEZ) (appointed on 1 April 2012) 65 22 - 87
TEAERE Mr. Zong Pingsheng 60 22 - 82
B E Mr. Chen Genxiang 60 22 = 82
HERAE(RZE—ZF Mr. Dai Xiangbo
A —H&() (resigned on 1 April 2012) 20 4 - 24
205 70 - 275
205 2,721 26 2,952
TR WEEFHAERRTRARRK There was no arrangement under which a director
ZRBERERAME 2 - or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.
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9. IEBREHMES 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FARAEZESHNEEY TRIEERE The five highest paid employees during the year did not include
FmEERTBRAB(ZE—Z2F: —%&E any director or chief executive (2012: one director), details of
F) BEZMESFEIHN L3S - whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
FREKRAZ(ZZE—Z-F: B THER) remuneration for the year of the five (2012: the remaining four)
FEARBEZTATERITHRAE RS FHH highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
EBEZESFFBOT executive of the Company are as follows:

rEE
Group
—=E—-= —E——4F
2013 2012
ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e RBEREYMRIR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,726 4,297
RIRET S K Pension scheme contributions 13 27
7,739 4,324
MENFATARZIEEERTEEITE The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
ABERFHMEE AZ paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

bands is as follows:

EBEAH

Number of employees
—E—= T
2013 2012
£ %1,000,000/8 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 - 2

1,000,001 T2

2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,000,0001 to HK$2,000,000 5 2
5 4

140 FNBEEEEIZERERAT  Annual Report 2013



10. EIREF

B RS SRR M

Notes to Financial Statements

10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AR®T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
GAEBRKRCOIE Consolidated statement of profit or loss charge for
— RIRFBRMEK — Retirement benefit contributions 101,784 68,348

AEBNFEAEZ Z2BEE ZRIKE
MR ZEB BT E B 2 RIKE 5 &R
B mRZEFE AREAREESH
CHRBZETADPHLEETBBRE L
RAEERRERBAMHR - YHARE
BITE R -

ARE B ITMRIR R B A TE 25 RPN
BERARERZERESHEZEES
HE—IRREHFBRES TS - HFTIR
BEEAF S RBEBED LM - AR
EHuEeERAEAXNKRESE
mERNE - BESHIZEEFABY
BECETAN  BAKENEED R
B AEEZEEHFNRABES S
EEH AR T2BRES -

RREETFERBES A ZFEMKL 2
2EMBAAEBEMRBR)BERA
Al @|MREE]) - KRTHE(RE
AR QB KFRIEE]) KGain
Lucky (Vietham) Co., Ltd. ([Gain Lucky
Vietnam |) BB 18 B & i 8 2 1R E
REEFEMBRNEMNGEHER(RE
) °

RREFEMAZZ 2 EMBARIAEE
CRABEFAERS)BRAR(IBFE
P ) - AR E AR B PTAR E MR K
B EERE T2 MR -

B EX Rtz RN - NERE B A AR
HRKEBHNREE AR ZEE -

The retirement benefits of full-time employees of the Group in
Mainland China are covered by various government-sponsored
pension plans under which the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions that should be borne by the Group are calculated
based on percentages of the total salary of employees, subject
to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant government
authorities.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Cambodia”), Dagian
Textile (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Dagian Cambodia”) and Gain
Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. (“Gain Lucky Vietnam”), wholly-owned
subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia and
Vietnam respectively, are required to contribute amounts based
on employees’ salaries (defined contribution) to the retirement
benefit scheme as stipulated by the relevant local authority.

Buddies (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited (“Buddies
Macao”), wholly-owned subsidiaries incorporated in the Macao,
is required to contribute certain amount to the retirement benefit
scheme as stipulated by the relevant local authority.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
or housing funds beyond contributions in respect of the above.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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11.

REH
BE_T—=FK_ZFT——F+_-_H=
+—BRIEFEZAEHASZIEEXRD A:

. INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are:

AEE

Group
—E-—= —E——4F
2013 2012
ARETT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB ZEHBRNGEH Current Hong Kong profits tax 31,028 45,428

FRER R RE 2 S HINZEFTSEL  Current Mainland China corporate

(TERRER]) income tax (“CIT”) 366,263 339,645
EERIIE(HEE28) Deferred taxation (note 28) 6 (1,088)
397,297 383,985

BEREHSTHKERE(—NNANEE
FIRR)ENE  ARREERSHSAE
SRTBFE#AE  HEHSWEEGE
RRATHAR B EBAEFES WAL
WSS EEH - ARARARBEBL
BER  MERBBELEZGAERY
AEER16.5% (ZE— 4 - 16.5%)
ZREBNEAFER o

REBREZHSEMRK L ZHWERRE
BENFTETS - FEAZEMBATRN
SER B E W E S B (R A M
Fh) MEREBRZESETEME
%o Bt REBEZESEMALZ
MEARIKRIREARAR([KZE])
BEEREARAR(IBSZERE])
5 EB.V.L)E R Q& B EBV.L]) -
BEEEEERAR(EEEEE R
Gain Lucky Co., Ltd. ([Gain Lucky )3
HEME - AR KEREEREMER
EX WERBEBELZ B ERT
MEER165% (T ——4 : 16.5%)
LRGN BEANER

TN\
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Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an
undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law enacted
in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits
or income or gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company
or its operations. As the Company carries on business in Hong
Kong, it is subject to Hong Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong.

The subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI are not subject to
income tax as these subsidiaries do not have a place of
business (other than a registered office only) or carry on any
business in the BVI. Accordingly, Top Always Investments
Ltd. (“Top Always”), Buddies Investments Limited (“Buddies
Investments”), Maxwin (B.V.l.) Limited (“Maxwin B.V.l.”), Buddies
Group Limited (“Buddies Group”), and Gain Lucky Co., Ltd. (“Gain
Lucky”), subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI, are not subject
to tax. As Top Always was engaged in the property leasing
business in Hong Kong, it is subject to Hong Kong profits tax
at a rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong.



11. FIBH(2)

RERBREIEREE  RRBEELE
AEM RS 2 2 B Y 8B 2 ] BN SR R
R TR FRAL20% R EF RS
YRECEENFEEERLARNAG
B o BN AT RIBFENH AL
ERERBAE -

RBEBEMKLZMBERRRNESE
RARTEREMNES ] kXF(BBIRE
BRAB(xFTBEDRGR(FE)E
RAR(THEER])ER16.5% (ZF—
—F 1 16.5%)MBRMEAREBESL
ZAEET R A B BATIA -

RBEAEMAZZ2EWNB AR HMA
ARA S (TRMBAR DREREEER
BT ST ERI0% N B AEELZ ER
BABSRBIR - BRFARHEMN B AL
ERBAELEEMERBAE - Y&
SR A PTG HAT R

R K L 2 2 & B A ®lGain
Lucky Vietnami & &+ FBEF E20%
MR EEF IR E5%EMATSE
AN - Gain Lucky Vietnamm & A &
FEEEREHMAEE  URE=F
EENFRBETERA0BHANATER
MEEENEEEEEENFEREE
RSB E N (AR EH BBt o

AR BRFIARREDOE - RORPIREMAK
VZEEMBARAFECREFIBERE
R BRAR([EFERM D ERLH
MRFRISH - BRI B B FERPE
HORPIRIS LB -

BREBEHEARKMBECEMAESTOE(H
EEMRBHRE]D  STEMNERARRE
MIZR L FE FR B U A IR 25% 2 5t R i i (1R
BHEEMETAERE)
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1. INCOME TAX (continued)

Shenzhou Cambodia and Dagian Cambodia, wholly-owned
subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia, under
the Law on Taxation, are subject to income tax at rate of 20%
and are entitled to be exempted from income tax for the first
four profit-making years. Shenzhou Cambodia and Dagian
Cambodia had no assessable profits during the year.

Shenzhou Trading Company Limited (“Shenzhou Trading”), Top
Always (Hong Kong) Investment Limited (“Top Always HK?”)
and Maxwin (Hong Kong) Limited (“Maxwin HK”), subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong, are subject to profits tax at a rate
of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong.

Shenzhou Japan Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Japan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary incorporated in Japan, under the Law of Taxation, is
subject to income tax at a rate of 30% of the assessable profits
arising in Japan. No provision for Japan income tax has been
made as Shenzhou Japan had no assessable profits arising in
Japan during the year.

Gain Lucky Vietnam, wholly-owned subsidiaries incorporated in
Vietnam is subject to income tax at a rate of 20% for the first
10 years and at a rate of 25% in the following years. Besides,
Gain Lucky Vietnam is entitled to be exempted from income tax
for the first two profit-making years and subject to a lower tax
rate of 10% from the third year to the sixth year. The period of
tax privilege will start from the earlier of first profit — making year
and the fourth year since its establishment.

No provision for Macao Complementary Tax has been made
for Buddies (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited (“Buddies
Macao”), a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in Macao, as
Buddies Macao is exempted from Macao Complementary Tax
pursuant to Macao’s relevant tax legislations.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), the PRC subsidiaries for
the year as determined in accordance with the New CIT Law is
subject to a tax rate of 25% on assessable income.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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11. FIBEH(2)

11. INCOME TAX (continued)

RZE—=F RPEREFMHRZZ During 2013, Ningbo Dagian Knitwear Co., Ltd. (“Dagian
2EMBRARIERANTHHEmBRAR Knitting”), a wholly owned subsidiary incorporated in mainland
([RFHEBEERIERINIE S China, was qualified as a High-New Technology Enterprise
(e ezE]) - Bit - (“HNTE”) of Zhejiang Province. As a result, Dagian Knitting had
ATHEEER_E—=F—H -8 been entitled to a concessionary rate of income tax at 15% for
AEFEZHMEHERNE15% - three years commencing 1 January 2013.
HERTESFERAEE_S—= A reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of
FRZE—-F+ZH=T—HLER# accounting profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate for
FEZHBEIEAT R 2 HRIOT ¢ the tax years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is as follows:
rEH
Group
—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

B B A H

Profit before tax 2,201,209 2,005,465

LAYERE B 2 25% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%
ZE—F 25%) (2012: 25%)

AHEZHIE 550,302 501,366
W5 TE B VARE IR 3k b 77 26 P Lower tax rates for specific provinces or

B2 RIRF = enacted by local authorities (184,058) (147,764)
AR HAfA & HATH IR Adjustments in respect of current tax of

BT previous periods (4,846) 1,220
AR Expenses not deductible for tax 2,280 5,773
FRARERZ TIAEE Tax losses not recognised during the year 39,960 26,932
AR ARTARFERMATIEF]  Utilisation of previously unrecognised

MIAE R deductible tax losses (6,341) (3,542)

397,297 383,985

144 =SHEEEEZERERAR
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12. R FEE ABLFE 12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE PARENT
HE_Z—=F+"_H=1+—HILFE The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent
ZEREHA NEIGEFEE R ERENE for the year ended 31 December 2013 includes a profit of
AR #108,259,0000( —ZF——4F : A RMB108,259,000 (2012: RMB135,196,000) which has been
R #135,196,0007T) + B R A& % dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
HMERALE o
13. K& 13. DIVIDENDS
AT
Company
—E-—= —E—_—F
2013 2012
AR®TR ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000

BR AR BN BB T m AR Proposed final dividend of HK$0.75

0.758 L (BEFERIRE (including a special dividend of HK$0.20)

0208 L) (= ——%F : (2012: HK$0.70 (including a special

0.70% T (B B4 B AR B dividend of HK$0.20)) per ordinary share

0.20%7T)) 824,920 754,855
AEREZEIKARPREBRAAFRKRE The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
RIEERFERFERS LR - approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.
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14. QA EBERKEREAEN

BREF

SRERBFDRE AL BRBIES
BB (4 R A R 81T 5B
B2 AT B -

AR EEREARFZ WA KRR E
BB

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
The basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the
basic earnings per share calculation:

AEH
Group
—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AR® T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
2 Earnings
ISTNGIRSEEI Y =Y PN Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
FE(ER)E of the parent 1,802,989 1,620,158
RGEE
Number of shares
=F-= —FCF
2013 2012
TR T
Thousands Thousands
& 12 Shares
BARETEGIREARZARZ  Weighted average number of ordinary
I A% N 39 £ shares used in the basic earnings per
share calculation 1,365,351 1,303,060

HRAEEREBEE-_T—=FR=_F—
“HE+-A=t-BULEFE " IEEH
TeEBRABEMELE  AULE
AEERBZLFE2INERERR
HEHE
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No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those years.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

T5HE
Group
TR
BF BRERKS 8 EARKE  EBRIR @t
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles fixtures  in progress Total
ARETL ARETL ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
FXA Cost:
W-E——%-f—H At 1 January 2012 1,767,766 2,585,293 67,184 161,018 35,742 4,617,008
ANE Additions 37,399 128,469 17,294 13,401 492,830 684,393
B Transfers 193,098 210,143 - 108 (403,349) -
HE Disposals (7,446) (17,611) (8,710) (9,621) - (38,388)
RS Exchange realignment 1 (139) (4 ) = (144)
WZE——F+-A=1t—H At 31 December 2012 1,990,818 2,901,155 80,764 164,904 125,223 5,262,864
ZiE: Accumulated depreciation:
W-E——%-f—H At 1 January 2012 335,526 1,188,541 35,125 82,853 - 1,642,045
FENERE Depreciation provided during the year 99,777 210,390 10,145 22,404 - 342,716
HE Disposals (7,446) (16,108) (3,298) (9,084) - (35,931)
B 5 R Exchange realignment - (64) @) - - (66)
W=E——F+-FA=+—H At 31 December 2012 427,857 1,382,764 41970 96,173 - 1,948,764
REFE Net book value:
W=E——#+-A=F—H At 31 December 2012 1,562,961 1,518,391 38,794 68,731 125,223 8,314,100
2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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15. 1% - MERRE(E)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
58
Group
BRR
BT BERES RE  EE%E  HRIE fit
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles fixtures in progress Total
ARBTR AR%¥Tn AR®TR ARETRT AR®TR AR%T:R
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
FXA Cost:
W-E—=5-F—H At 1 January 2013 1,990,818 2,901,155 80,764 164,904 125,223 5,262,864
NE Additions 3,318 300,244 18,684 16,029 261,154 599,429
R Transfers 101,900 11,676 218 136 (113,930) -
HE Disposals (8,571) (37,881) (3,401) (1,669) - (51,522)
RS Exchange realignment (347) (2,687) (131) 41) - (3,206)
WZZE—=%+-F=1—H At 31 December 2013 2,087,118 3,172,507 96,134 179,359 272,447 5,807,565
2iHE: Accumulated depreciation:
W-ZE—=%—-Hf—H At 1 January 2013 427,857 1,382,764 41,970 96,173 - 1,948,764
EERERE Depreciation provided during the year 115,425 235,440 11,973 22,931 - 385,769
HE Disposals (8,571) (31,379) (2,457) (1,593) - (44,000)
5 Exchange realignment (111) (1,017) (44) (26) - (1,198)
R-Z-=#+-A=t-A At 31 December 2013 534600 1585808 51,442 117,485 - 2,2803%
REFE: Net book value:
RWZZE—=F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 1,652,518 1,586,699 44,692 61,874 272,447 3,518,230
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

AEE BN T TEHAREE DT The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepaid land lease
R payments are analysed as follows:
AEE
Group
—E—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AR® T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
%NE Cost:
n—A—H At 1 January 582,751 579,007
INE Additions 171,289 3,744
R+—_A=+—H At 31 December 754,040 582,751
ZETHEE Accumulated amortisation:
R—H—H At 1 January 43,476 31,600
F N Amortisation during the year 13,693 11,876
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 57,169 43,476
AREDFE - Net book value:
R+—_B=+—H At 31 December 696,871 539,275
m—H—H At 1 January 539,275 547,407

REB PP EAREZ AN - SAH

HIEMBRE -

held under medium term leases.

2013

The prepaid land situated in Mainland China of the Group is

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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17. B EE 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
AEE
Group
B Aok e st
Water Use
Software Right* Total
AR¥T ARETT AR¥T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E—=F 31 December 2013
+=HA=+-—H
RZE—=F—H—Hz Cost at 1 January 2013, net of
AR - BHIREETEIS  accumulated amortisation 5,636 99,438 105,074
NE Additions 4,191 - 4,191
FEEIERE Amortisation provided during the year (906) (6,450) (7,356)
RIE—=4%F At 31 December 2013
+=-—A=+—8H 8,921 92,988 101,909
NZT—=4F At 31 December 2013:
+=ZA=+—8:
D% Cost 11,901 129,001 140,902
EGg 5 Accumulated amortisation (2,980) (36,013) (38,993)
EREDFE Net carrying amount 8,921 92,988 101,909
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

AEE
Group
B FA 7k #E @t
Water Use
Software Right* Total
AREFTT ARETF T ARETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-=F 31 December 2012
+=—BA=+—H
MNZZT——F—HF—H2z Costat 1 January 2012, net of
A - BN RS accumulated amortisation 3,840 105,888 109,728
INE Additions 2,433 - 2,433
FEEBEEE Amortisation provided during the year (637) (6,450) (7,087)
R-T——4F At 31 December 2012
+=-A=+—8H 5,636 99,438 105,074
R-ZTE——4F At 31 December 2012:
+=A=+—8:
D% Cost 7,710 129,001 136,711
RETHE 5 Accumulated amortisation (2,074) (29,563) (31,637)
BREFE Net carrying amount 5,636 99,438 105,074

BEASEREEFTIEGEBFR=-Z
TARFHATT 2 BEARAER - =
BT b @ K A B L B T B 2ROk A2
ARERZZBZENFI L Z = H W
F o AKECRERAEHEFXGTAR
#129,000,0007T * AR BNEBEEBE
BREBKERMEE - AH205 ([ AKX
D) HE-_E—=H6+_-_F=+—
A AEEE S ARES3,000,0007T
—ZT——%F : AR#¥53,000,0007T) °
M T AR76,000,0007TE 5F AE A
FERFRIE -

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Group and the
Government of Beilun District, Ningbo City, in April 2006 and
three supplementary agreements entered into by the Group,
Ningbo Beilun Water Conservancy Bureau and Ningbo Water
Supply General Company in 2008, the Group has agreed to pay
the local government an amount of RMB129 million in exchange
for a guaranteed constant water supply with a favourable
price for a period of 20 years ( “Water Use Right”). As at 31
December 2013, the Group has paid RMB53,000,000 (2012:
RMB53,000,000), and the remaining RMB76,000,000 was
included in other payables.
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18. RMIB AT ZRE ~ L THE
DA ZEFEW ENHEA

B FIE

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS
TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE

FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES
PN
Company
—g—= —E——F
2013 2012
ARETRT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEETRRG - RARAR Unlisted shares, at cost 648,422 648,979

TENBARIZEEBET : Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
RAREL
AL/ ERE R REEDL TEEHBR
£ EARRZER BRTRE Ef M SEE
Percentage of
Place of Incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
KF ZBRANE  AREAAT 30,002% 7 100% - REBUERESRREE
e
Top Always BVI, limited liability company US$30,002 100% - Investment holding in BVI
and property leasing
in Hong Kong
ERBMTAARAR PEARE - 116,000,000% 0 - 100%  RPEAERERHENE
(k3 -A)) INEEARE fR&eEEm
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Mainland China, wholly-foreign- US$116,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”) owned enterprise knitwear products in
Mainland China
ERERGBAEERAA PEAE - 2,100,000% 7 - 100%  RPEAEDHRHESE
([t Rt ]) NEBERE RxEm
Ningbo Shixing Knitwear Printing Mainland China, wholly-foreign- US$2,100,000 = 100%  Print and sale of
Co., Ltd. (“Shixing Printing”) owned enterprise knitwear products in
Mainland China
EREENTARAR HREIARE 140,000%7 - 100%  RPEAEDRREEHE
([g87E)) NEBERE fR&Em
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18. RMIB AT ZRE ~ L THE
DA ZEFEW ENHEA

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS
TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE

AMIE(E) FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RRREL
A/ R RABAL TERER
£ EAERZER BRTRE E# 3 fend
Percentage of
Place of Incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Ningbo Lele Printing Co., Ltd. Mainland China, wholly-foreign- US$140,000 = 100%  Print and sale of
(‘Lele Printing”)* owned enterprise knitwear products in
Mainland China
ERBRRRARAA AR - 10,000,000%7 - 9% RPEABEREREEHE
(553 v WsEEm
Ningbo Yongmian Fashion Mainland China, foreign equity US$10,000,000 = 91%  Manufacture and sale of
Garment Co., Ltd. joint venture knitwear products in
("Yongmian Fashion”) Mainland China
ERRGERERAT HEARE - 5,000,000%7 - 91%  RPEARREREENE
(23 NERELR fR&cEEm
Ningbo Shendie Fashion Co., Ltd. ~ Mainland China, foreign equity US$5,000,000 = 91%  Manufacture and sale of
(“Shendie Fashion”) joint venture knitwear products in
Mainland China
BMRER RERTE - 30,000,000 - 100% RRERPEREEHAR
NEBERE KEm
Shenzhou Cambodia Kingdom of Gambodia, wholly- US$30,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
foreign-owned enterprise knitwear products
in Cambodia
AT08 AR - 78,000,005 7 - 100%  RPEAERERHESS
HERELR REER
Dagjan Knitting Mainland China, wholly-foreign- US$78,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
owned enterprise knitwear products in
Mainland China
ERMASRARAT EARE - 1,050,000%7C - 100%  RPEAERERMIHE
([rsral) NEBELR REER
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS
TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE
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AMIE (&) FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RRREL
ML TSR RABAL TERER
£ EAERZER BRTRE E# 3 fend
Percentage of
Place of Incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Ningbo Linlin Knitting Co., Ltd. Mainland China, wholly-foreign- US$1,050,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
(“Linlin Knitting”) owned enterprise of knitwear products in
Mainland China
ERERRHARAR AR - 4,000,000%7 - 100%  RREAESERNIHE
(e ) NEBERE WsEEm
Tuton Textile (Ningbo) Co., Ltd. Mainland China, wholly-foreign- US$4,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
(“Ningbo Tuton’) owned enterprise of knitwear products in
Mainland China
BlfstA(ZR)ERAA IR 10,000,000% 7 - 100%  RRERESERMISE,
(remizs) IEBARE fR&EEm
Shenzhou Knitting (Anhui) Co., Mainland China wholly-foreign- 1US$10,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Anhui") owned enterprise of knitwear products in
Mainland China
Bt a(ENERAR MEIARE - 8,000,000% 70 - 100%  RREAESERNIHE
(MMt ) NEBERE TsEm
Shenzhou Knitting (Quzhou) Co., Mainland China wholly-foreign- 1US$8,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
Ltd. (“Shenzhou Quzhou') owned enterprise of knitwear products in
Mainland China
LERRRSHARAR IR - AR%2,000,0007 - 100% RAEAEZESAF
([ L85a) BERENT
Shanghai Maxwin Garments Co., Mainland China sole RMB2,000,000 = 100%  Trading in Mainland China
Ltd. (“Shanghai Maxwin”) proprietorship company
ERATELEOEREAAR HEARE - AR10,000,0007T - 100% REBAEELOHR
([ATFELEAL) AREMAR



B RS SRR M

Notes to Financial Statements

18. RMIB AT ZRE ~ L THE
DA ZEFEW ENHEA

18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS
TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE

AMIE(E) FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RRREL
ML TSR REEDL TERER
£ EAERZER BRTRE E# 3 fend
Percentage of
Place of Incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Ningbo Dagian Import & Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Import and export of
Export Co., Ltd company commodities in
(Dagian Import & Export’) Mainland China
BlES & ARERLA 1007 - 100% Ex%
Shenzhou Trading Hong Kong, limited liability HK$100 = 100%  Dormant
company
KEER & AREMAA 100787 - 100% REBRRAEAELOER
Top Always HK Hong Kong, limited liability HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding and
company import and export of
commodities
in Hong Kong
ERBERERUERAR HELARE - AR 8,000,000 - 100%  RPEAREETRRA
(MegJ) BREFAR
Ningbo Hengzhi Clothing Mainland China, limited liability RMB8,000,000 - 100%  Clothing detection in
Detection Co., Ltd. (‘Hengzhi") company Mainland China
ERBEHEARAR HEAR - 3,080,000% 7% - 100%  RPEARRERNTHE
([R&stal) NEBERE RxEm
Ningbo Yongyi Knitting Co., Ltd. Mainland China, wholly-foreign- 1US$3,060,000 - 100%  Manufacture and processing
(“Yongyi Knitting”) owned enterprise of knitwear products in
Mainland China
B AA B ARELLA 5,000,008 - 100% fIRARZE LA
Shenzhou Japan Japan, limited liability company JPY5,000,000 = 100%  Trading in Japan
2013 %5 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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AMIE (&) FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RRREL
ML TSR REEDL TERER
£ EAERZER BRTRE E# B BEwy
Percentage of
Place of Incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
ERSARHARAT LN AR¥80,000,0007T - 100% RPEABEATZESK
([ER5a) BREEAR
Ningbo Maxwin Fashion Co., Ltd. Mainland China, limited liability RMB80,000,000 - 100%  Retal in Mainland China
(‘Ningbo Maxwin”) company
RERMELOERAR HEAR - AR 5,000,000 - 100% REEAEELOER
(MezEl) EREAAR
Anging Shenzhou Import & Export ~ Mainland China, limited liability RMBS5,000,000 = 100%  Import and export of
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Anging’) company commodities in
Mainland China
LERHEXRRAR REAR - AR10,000,0007T - 100% REBAEETHXER
([SREX]) ERELAT 5%
Shanghai Maxwin Industry Co., Mainland China, limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Property management in
Ltd. (“Maxwin Industry”) company Mainland China
BEERE ZERES ARAMAR 10,000% 7 100% - REBRLHEERERR
Buddies Investments BVI, limited liability company US$10,000 100% - Investment holding in BVI
SHBVI ZERNES ARALLA 10,000%7 100% - REBERERR
Maxwin BVI BVI, limited liability company US$10,000 100% - Investment holding in BVI
SHER iR 10,000%7 - 100% REBERAER
BREFAT
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18. RMIB AT ZRE ~ L THE
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS
TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE

AMIE(E) FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RRREL
ML TSR REEDL TERER
£ EAERZER BRTRE E# B BEwy
Percentage of
Place of Incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
Maxwin HK Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 = 100%  Investment holding
company in Hong Kong
SE(RE)ERAR(ERTE])  BEAE HNFEALE 62,000,000% 7 - 100% RRPEAEZEHAA
Maxwin (China) Limited Mainland China, wholly-foreign- US$62,000,000 = 100%  Trading in Mainland China
(‘Maxwin China”) owned enterprise
ERGARRAA(EE]) IR 60,000,000%7 - 100% REBARRERHEEHE
IEEARE RxER
Huayao Textile Limited (‘Huayao”) Mainland China, wholly-foreign- 1S$60,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
owned enterprise knitwear products in
Mainland China
BEREM R - 100,000 % - 100% WEMAZEHAR
BREFAT
Buddies Macao Macao, limited liability MOP100,000 - 100%  Trading in Macao
company
ATREE RERIE NEBELE 40,000,000% 7 - 100% RREREERHESER
REMm
Dagian Cambodia Kingdom of Cambodia, wholly- US$40,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
foreign-owned enterprise knitwear products
in Cambodia
B¥EEE RBRLHE  FRELAT 1% - 100% REBRIESERERR
Buddies Group BV, limited liability company US$1 - 100%  Investment holding in BVI
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, LOANS
TO SUBSIDIARIES AND AMOUNTS DUE

AIMIE (&) FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
RRREL
ML TSR RABAL TERER
£ EAERZER BRTRE E# 3 fend
Percentage of
Place of Incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
ATo8(ZH) AR hEAE SEEALE 8,000,000t - 100% REEARREREELE
RxER
Dagjan Textile (Anhui) Co., Ltd Mainland China, wholly-foreign US$8,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
owned enterprise knitwear products in
Mainland China
Gain Lucky ERRANE  AREAAT 1% 100% - REBRAEBERERR
Gain Lucky BV, limited liability company US$1 100% - Investment holding in BVI
Gain Lucky Vietnam i 20,000,000%7 - 100%  REmREREERRE
AREEAT Em(REENER)
Gain Lucky Vietnam Vietnam, limited liability 1US$20,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of

company

knitwear products in

Vigtnam (Pre-operating)

* BEONER_T-—=ZFFHE & Lele Printing was deregistered in 2013.

RIERBEETRTHBARZMH
BEFROHEER 2 RERE
BERRRBAER RBEHER - 4
THBRRIZERBRERAREZ
MEBEEN  REERASEER
RERBRBERIN—FAEE -

The loans to subsidiaries included in the Company’s
non-current assets are unsecured, interest-free and
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foreseeable future. The loans to subsidiaries included in
the Company’s current assets are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand or within one year.

FARRBRBDEEBEZE
W, REAST B BB 12 R R AR AR AR
RERBIEBRIN —FAEE -

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries included in the
Company’s current assets/liabilities are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand or within one year.
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7& 19. INVENTORIES
AEH
Group
—E-—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR¥TF ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ER R Raw materials 260,954 334,016
R @ Work in progress 1,289,150 1,012,070
UK Finished goods 874,795 578,349
2,424,899 1,924,435
BWRERERE 20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
AEE FiN/NE
Group Company
—_E—= —E——-F —ZB-=F —ZET—_—F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARETRT AREFTT ARE®TRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUBR X M = Trade and bills receivables 1,374,991 1,397,759 79,154 422,740
VERIER Impairment - - - _
1,374,991 1,397,759 79,154 422,740
AEEEEFPZEGERIEMNEER The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
RNET EEHNFNEALA - &R credit with credit terms of within six months. Overdue balances

BB ST M BRI &R o

are reviewed regularly by senior management.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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20. EWIRR R RE(E)
BB - RIRS R A 2
R RERRE AT -

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

rEE PN

Group Company
—=B—-= T F ZB-=H —T——fF
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBTRT AR+t ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
=@AX Within three months 1,341,794 1,367,438 79,154 422,740
=EBLAE Over three months 33,197 30,321 - =
1,374,991 1,397,759 79,154 422,740

RAEEBREHINM TR SREE
YRR K S RIBRRER

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are
not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

KEE ¥ /N

Group Company
“E-=§f T ZE-=Ff CZT—=Ff
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR%Tn ARBTT AR%®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R HE BB Neither past due nor impaired 1,368,472 1,381,533 79,154 422 740
BELR=EA Less than three months past due 339 5,616 - =
WEB=EAN L Over three months past due 6,180 10,610 - =
1,374,991 1,397,759 79,154 422,740

AR A SR (B 2 B WK IR ST BRI S 2
HNRZEPER -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

BB BRI E 2 BUYRIAEE T/
EPAH ZEFFPAAKEMNRZE
BRM - REBEER  ARRESER
R BERNEEERYEEAEE - B
FRHBDEE /T 228K E - WEA
R EREHRETIRBERE -  ARELER
S ER/RBFH AR EEMBE
THEEERRHE -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
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20. EWRR R EE(E) 20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
RZEBE—=F+_A=+—H " EUKKE At 31 December 2013, the trade and bills receivables were
HEBBUTIIEEESHE denominated in the following currencies:

rEE
Group
—EB—=fF —E——4F
2013 2012
FB¥ HEARY R HEARE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency  equivalent
Fri AR®TR Fr ARETFT
in’000 RMB’000 in’000 RMB’000
eV US$ 156,305 952,976 160,224 1,007,088
AR RMB 422,015 422,015 390,671 390,671
1,374,991 1,397,759
bIN/NC|
Company
—E-=F —E—_F
2013 2012
B FEARYE RE e ARE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
Fri ARETR Tt AR®ETT
in’000 RMB’000 in’000 RMB’000
ESpv us$ 12,983 79,154 67,256 422,740
EREVERRER RAMEREREARE The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables
& - approximate to their fair values.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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21. EAARE - BEREMER 21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

MIE RECEIVABLES
KEE RATF
Group Company
—E—= —F——F =ZE-—= —E——F
2013 2012 2013 2012

AR®TR ARBTT AR®BTR ARETT
RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000

TETFRIE MR 5 Prepayments and deposits
— BB EME — Purchase of raw materials 56,898 58,602 - =
—BEYWE  MEK - Purchase of items of
R IEHE property, plant and
equipment 23,025 8,992 - -
—EfNEe ke — Prepaid rental and deposits 111,221 98,905 - -
—Hftp — Others 2,456 500 - -

el R AUk E2{ER; VAT refund receivable and

R recoverable 100,055 104,801 - -
e S T B E A A Dividends receivable from

% & certain subsidiaries - - 1,379,159 1,006,152
H b JfE IR Other receivables 59,217 58,635 - =

352,872 330,435 1,379,159 1,006,152

L EEN OB NIORE o Lills None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
SHRITE & & R & = BT B30 48 R 3R Ed 8% The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
ZEWFRIBE R o receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
TENFRIA -~ e M E M EWFIE Z BRME The carrying amounts of the prepayments, deposits and other
EHEARERESE ° receivables approximate to their fair values.
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22, MEHERE 22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
rEE ARAF
Group Company
—E2—= —E-——-F —EB-=F —T——-F
2013 2012 2013 2012

AR®TRT ARBTT AR®BTR ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000

B mEEEITH Financial products issued by
S RbE SR financial institution 200,000 - - -

RZE—=F+=-A=+—H &TK As at 31 December 20183, certain financial products with a
H B 7= A R #200,0007T#) & B E i TH iR carrying amount of RMB200,000 were stated at cost less
BRABRBEAR EERABBEZEZAR impairment. The Directors are of the opinion that their fair value
ENEENEE - HEFHLR—FAH cannot be measured reliably. The financial products have terms
TEHFRFERTES.3% ° RIEHABE of less than one year and have expected annual rates of return
NGB ZECHMERRIBEUE up to 5.3%. Pursuant to the underlying contracts or notices,
EER o REBTNENOBHEZSE these financial products are capital guaranteed upon the
SRIEMD ° maturity date. The Group does not intend to dispose of them in

the near future.

23. HERBREEEY 23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AEH VNN |
Group Company
—E2—= —E-—-F —ZE-—= T4
2013 2012 2013 2012

AR®TR ARBTT AR®BTR ARETET
RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000

B4 NMIRTT4ER Cash and bank balances 1,653,455 1,027,227 492,052 130,779
TMEERR DA =M Bank deposits with an initial

ZERITIE K term of less than three months 955,505 1,117,178 - =
HWENIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,609,050 2,144,405 492,052 130,779
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23.

24.

164 =SHBEEEEZERERAR

HERBREEEYW(E)

RImEBHR NEBARKG
Bz2HRERERBTEBOEARE
1,449,776,545.76L( Z 2 ——F : AR
#680,263,0007T) - ARBTA]EHE
BMAEEMER - R - BREFEPE A2
INEBIBIEDI R EE - EERSEESE
M AEEEES BERERN#E
TERER CRITBARBERABEM

RITERBRBITZEBERMEIAZ
MEGEDMAE - EMEFA-BE=R
ATEZTAHEFE  RFAKEZ
BRI & FHB KM E - WL ERE HTF R
FRGEEAME - |RITEHREFARLOYE
BRPCEZEERFRT - RERR
CEEMZEMEEEQAAERE

BNERRREE
Rk - N ERRERER ST
o

23.

24.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB1,449,776,545.76 (2012: RMB680,263,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

rEE PN

Group Company
—g2—= —E——-F —ZB-=F —T——F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBTRT AR+t ARETR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
~NME AR Within six months 377,273 378,454 - 10,974
NEAE—F Six months to one year 5,136 691 - -
—FEMF One year to two years 943 10,105 - =
M LA E Over two years 8,397 7,849 - -
391,749 397,099 - 10,974

ENEARZETEE - BARARE
BeREEREAAERS -

Annual Report 2013

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. The
carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables approximate to
their fair values.
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25. HittEENFIE R ESTRIE 25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
rEHE AATE
Group Company
=F-=F = -F Z%¥-=%F T -F
2013 2012 2013 2012

AR®TRT ARBTT AR®BTR ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000

JEETF X Accrued expenses 200,635 186,676 26 21
FR7KHE FE A /08 Payable for Water Use Right
(B=E17) (note 17) 76,000 76,000 - =
BEYE  WENERE Payables for purchase of
ZFERFRIE property, plant and equipment 19,648 23,965 - =
BREEETEVIRES Guarantee deposits related to
construction projects 9,770 12,868 - -
AU R TE Advance from customers 162,664 41,833 - =
E b RiIR Other taxes payable 61,864 89,850 - =
FEAT ISR 1A% B ~  Dividends payable to
s\ non-controlling interests 587 587 - —
531,168 431,779 26 21
B h FE T RIE R B FT SR IE 2 ARE{E B H The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals
ARERE - EMENFIERETE - approximate to their fair values. Other payables are non-
interest-bearing.
26. fTEE€@MTITA 26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
—E-=
2013
rEEH ¥ NN
Group Company
EE =L EE =R
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

ARBTRT AR®TR AR®BTR AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

REAIEE AL Forward currency contracts 3,456 - - -
2012
RE ZIN/NG|
Group Company
BE Atk BE =N
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AREKETRT
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000

REEEE 4 Forward currency contracts - (9,550) - (8,998)

RHEESOCREAEREEARERR - The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the
same as their fair values.
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26.

TEEMIAE(E)

B I & 4046 A AE TR B (8 1) 51
EEHEZHM TR  AMEE AL
BABE TR SN S 8 0 2 KT R ME R
H9FI% 2 RBTAE -

REEESONFHREBARKBEEF
HEF - AKEEFH T —=FEH
HiHERBReREZEHIER - R
BToBEN - W FE ARKS,433,000
T(ZZE—=F : BEARK14,715,000
TR TF A AT AR R

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

Forward currency contracts are designated as hedging
instruments in respect of forecast future sales to overseas
customers. The forward currency contract balances vary with
the levels of expected foreign currency sales and changes in
foreign exchange forward rates.

The terms of the forward currency contracts match the terms
of the forecast future sales. The cash flow hedges relating to
forecast future sales in the year 2013 were assessed to be
highly effective. Net gains of RMB5,433,000 (2012: losses
of RMB14,715,000) were included in the hedging reserve as
follows:

—F—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR®TR AR¥T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAS R RECARE Total fair value gains included in
Wzs 458 the hedging reserve 19,244 17,026
R ERE 2 ELEFIE Deferred tax on fair value gains (4,384) (3,370)
HHMEEREEFTHE Reclassified from other comprehensive
B A Bk P ER income recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss (12,330) (87,487)
BB ZIRLETIE Deferred tax on reclassifications to
BAE® profit or loss 2,903 9,116
Benshh iz Net gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges
(B18) 55 5,433 (14,715)

Pboh » AREEINETSL T DEE 2 B
BEAREFEBEETABEZINES
B o ZFINEERNIRAR HETIEXK
ZHEREZE REAEREEN
FHEABELEBEEERR S FAEA
oY EETAETAZ AR BEES
Alizs AR #929,0007T © ERNERELR
AEFRAMBR(ZT——F : FEAR
#412,0007T) °

o
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In addition, the Group has also entered into other foreign
currency contracts which are not designated for hedge
purposes and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Such foreign currency contracts are settled based on the extent
of the appreciation of the RMB against the US$ exchange rate
as management forecasts that the rate of such appreciation will
be different from that forecasted by the counterparty. Changes
in the fair value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting
to gains of RMB929,000 were charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year (2012: losses of
RMB412,000).
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

FEH
Group
ZE-=F —F-F
2013 2012
BRAIZ(E) U8R ARETR  ERAE(E) HHA  ARETR
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
e Current
RTER-BER Bank loans - unsecured - - - 275 ZE-=fF 120,530
2013
- - - BT —3-=f 50,284
REREEA.00 2013
LIBOR+1.00
- - - BR/BEBG -3-=% 43999
REFEE.75 2013
HIBOR/
LIBOR+1.75
- - - BT —T-= 31,428
REREEH.25 2013
LIBOR+1.25
- - - 250 Z—%-=% 100,000
2013
PrER-BEA Bank loans - secured - - - Eh/RIBn —B-=F 75,426
REREEL.75 2013
HIBOR/
LIBOR+1.75
- - - BT —3-=F 125,710
RERSEL.70 2013
LIBOR+1.70
BOER-BER Bank loans - secured - - - REKT —F-mF 125,710
(B2kER) (due for repayment on demand) RAEFEEL1.70 2014*
LIBOR+1.70
- - - ER/REBn -T-mEe 113139
REREEA.T5 2014*
HIBOR/
LIBOR+1.75
- 786,226
2013 %5 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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27. stEBRITEE(E)

* ZERTEERERNRDEER - BT
YA R S N R BN RSRIAIR SE 42
rMBEE-FTEEAKEER  KE
SKANE B BB R IRIT 2 (EfI#EER -

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)

* These bank borrowings are included in current liabilities as the
banks have an overriding right to call for cash cover on demand
at any time without further reference to the Group and to demand
settlement of any balance owing by the Group to the banks.

UNG|
Company
—E-=F —E——F
2013 2012
BRA=(E) A AR ERFE(E) HEE ARETL
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB’000
Vo) Current
ROEF—EEA Bank loans - unsecured - - - ®"BBT —T—=F 346,241
BESFRS 2013
+1.00-2.75
LIBOR+1.00-2.75
REE FN/NE|
Group Company
—Eg2—= —ET——F ZB-=F —T—=-F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBTT AR®TT AR®TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
WA - Analysed into:
BRI EARIEE 2 Bank loans and overdrafts
RITERRES - repayable:
—FERNHIRE K Within one year or on demand - 786,226 - 346,241

@ RZZE—=F+ZA=+—H =K
SECEERERENRARE
1,443,994,0007C( ZF— =4 : A
R#2,155,078,0007) * HAAR
#476,783,0007T(ZF—=4F : A
R#786,226,0007T) B R EHIAR
A - NMEHR - RBABER
BHE(XRRETEE) ABARE
1,443,994,0007t( =& —=4F : A
R#1,368,852,0007T) °
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(@ As at 31 December 2013, the Group had borrowing
facilities amounting to approximately RMB1,443,994,000
(2012: RMB2,155,078,000), of which RMB476,783,000
(2012: RMB786,226,000) had been utilised as at the
end of the reporting period. The unutilised borrowing
facilities, subject to certain conditions, amounted to
RMB1,443,994,000 (2012: RMB1,368,852,000) as at the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(continued)

(b) As at 31 December 2012, except for certain bank
borrowings with an aggregate amount of RMB100,000,000
which are denominated in RMB, the borrowings are
denominated in United States dollars, Japanese yen and
Hong Kong dollars.

(c) Certain credit facilities of the Group and the Company are
secured by the Company and the companies controlled
by the directors of the Company.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same taxation authority.

rEE AT
Group Company
—E2—= —E-——-F —EB-=F =—T——F
2013 2012 2013 2012

AR®TRT ARBTT AR®BTR ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000

RIEFIBE B Deferred tax assets 8,435 9,058 - 479
FERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities (864) = - =
EER AR5 Deferred tax assets, net 7,571 9,058 - 479
RS R R R T ¢ Reflected in the statement of financial position as follows:
AEH ¥N/NE|
Group Company
—E—= —EB——F ZEB-=F —T—_—F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARETRT AREBTT AR®TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RIEFIEE B Deferred tax assets 7,571 9,058 - 479
BRERIABE Deferred tax liabilities - - - _
EERIEE EF5E Deferred tax assets, net 7,571 9,058 - 479

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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28. EEBIE(ZE) 28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
BIEFTIS AR B 2 BE BT - The gross movements on the deferred tax accounts are as
follows:
AEH AT
Group Company
—E-= —E——F ZEB-=Z=F T4
2013 2012 2013 2012

ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARETRT
RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000

F4) At beginning of year 9,058 2,224 479 1,704
RAFEIBmK Deferred tax (charged)/credited
(f1B%) /st AZIEFE  to the statement of profit or
FRIA(FFEE11) loss during the year (note 11) (6) 1,088 - (1,225)
MNAREEREZ (1R )~ Deferred tax (charged)/credited
FTAZ BRI to equity during the year (1,481) 5,746 (479) =
FR At end of year 7,571 9,058 - 479
BEFTBEERABRFAZEECRET The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
RAIBSHMB RN el AR A 2 & 8R) a0 year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
T ¢ within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
AEH
Group
HERE
B’ #HIEE st
Cash flow
Provisions hedges Total
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MRZZE——F—HF—H At1 January 2012 #3858 1,704 9,057
NAREERZERTA Y  Deferred tax credited to the
EIETIA statement of profit or loss
during the year 1,088 = 1,088
RAFERZHR 2 Deferred tax charged to equity
RIERIA during the year - (1,087) (1,087)
RZE——F At 31 December 2012
+=A=+—H 8,441 617 9,058
MNAFEBZFHENG 2 Deferred tax charged to the
R IE statement of profit or loss
during the year 6) - 6)
RAFEEENRZ Deferred tax charged to equity
EIERIIE during the year - (617) (617)
R-ZE—=% At 31 December 2013
+=HA=+—8H 8,435 - 8,435
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: (continued)

/N

RERE

$HIEE

Company

Cash flow

hedges

ARETTT

RMB’000

W-—Z——4—HF—AH At 1 January 2012 1,704

MNAFEE R 2 ELEF 8 Deferred tax charged to the equity during the year (1,225)
R-ZBE——F+-A=+—H2Z Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December 2012

BT EERE 479

RAFEERERIRR 2 EEFE Deferred tax charged to equity during the year (479)

R=ZFB-=5+-A=+—-HZ
EERBEERE

Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December 2013

R-TE—=F+_"F=+—0 ' ~&H
EFHISE B A RE182,073,0007T( =
T——F: AR¥ :117,601,0007T) °
REBWARF UL Z TN G R EEER
BEEHIBEE  BRBTKRAREAER
TRAE A S AT I R =58 o

PR B 3 2 A 3 AT AR R BE R 2R 2 B
AR AEZ RBERER —EREF2IH

The Group has tax losses of approximately
RMB182,073,000 as at 31 December 2013 (2012:
RMB117,601,000). Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these deductible temporary
differences as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

The tax losses arising in Mainland China for offsetting

against future taxable profits will expire in one to five
years.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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28. EABIE(E)

28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

rEE
Group
HeERE FEHHE W
#iE B FTHETIR st
Non-hedging
Cash flow currency
hedges derivatives Total
ARBTRE  ARETT  ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AZE——F—H—H At1 January 2012 6,833 - 6,833
MAREEERTAZ Deferred tax credited to
EIER IR equity during the year (6,833) = (6,833)
RZE——F At 31 December 2012
+=A=+—H - - -
RAFEERTALZ Deferred tax charged to
IEAEFRLIE equity during the year 864 - 864
R-ZE—=F At 31 December 2013
+=A=+-—H 864 - 864
PN
Company
S E
FTETA
Non-hedging
currency
derivatives
ARBTT
RMB’000

R-E——F—HF—HK
—E——HF#+=-HA=+—H
RAFEBRRATAZBELETRIE

At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012

Deferred tax credited to the income
statement during the year

R-ZB—=F+"A=1+—HZ
BRENIR R ERRE

Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2013
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BRIBEFBCEMEHE  RZEE
NEFE—A—BR - RPBERHKIL
ZEIMEEREME IR 2 IREER
WA10%TEFOFL o i HELGIMNEE
EFfE R EERBRB L - BIF
ERABREZBENRE - piAKEMm
T AT E A% - BIEHEAR
—EENF_A-_+_RBEHZH
F(008)F 15T HE —TF 4
+ZA=t+—B LIRS ERFEF
Bk [ FE A B 2 R B EA R AN
TEHO o

NZEBE—=F+-A=+—H0 " #
MmN B A B R BE A S 2 BB
REEBRFENM 2 REHEF 2
FERTE MERIELERIE - 25
BB ZERBRARKRA RERD
IRZEBFZ A REIETRK - R=F
—=F+-A=+—H BHEKX
BEFT A Al 2 RERIELERIE B F
ZREZERERABNAEARE
6,915,387,0007L( =& — =4 :
AR#5,553,196,0007T) °

AT IR ER AT 2 B8 3
A ERPTS B R -
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China effective from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax arrangement
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. On 22
February 2008, Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by
the tax authorities to specify that dividends declared and
remitted out of the PRC from the retained profits as at 31
December 2007 are exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 2013, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totaled approximately RMB6,915,387,000
at 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB5,553,196,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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29. [ 29. SHARE CAPITAL
—E—=fF —E——4F
i&v Shares 2013 2012
TERT AR®FTrR FHLT ARETT
HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$’000 RMB’000
VERE Authorised:
3,000,000,000/% 3,000,000,000 (2012:
—E——F: 3,000,000,000) ordinary
3,000,000,0000% ) shares of HK$0.10 each
SARE(E0.10/8 T
2T 300,000 312,000 300,000 312,000
EETRERE Issued and fully paid:
1,399,000,000/% 1,399,000,000 (2012:
—T—_fF: 1,330,000,000) ordinary
1,330,000,0004% ) shares of HK$0.10 each
SHRMEE. 10T
2 &R 139,900 142,105 133,000 136,609

FN, 69,000,0008% &M EEO0.10
IR T AR B EETT - DUREUGR
& REEARER22.40% T -

@RERNTDBTRAZ Lk
Bk FRNHXSHEMT
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During the year, 69,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
were issued for cash at a subscription price of HK$22.40 per
share.

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to
the above movement in the Company’s issued share capital is
as follows:
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

2817
BREHE EBRTRE ROZER Hst
Number of Share
shares in Issued premium
issue capital account Total
(FR) ARETT ARETT AR®BTT
(thousand) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
n—ZE——F—F—H At 1 January 2012 1,245,000 129,717 762,499 892,216
BT (D Issue of shares 85,000 6,892 944,293 951,185
iR BT Share issue expenses - - (11,637) (11,637)
NZE——F Proposed final 2012 dividend
BOR AR S - - (552,155) (552,155)
R_T—_%F
+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 1,330,000 136,609 1,143,000 1,279,609
BITHAD Issue of shares 69,000 5,496 1,225,574 1,231,070
BT Share issue expenses = = (14,371) (14,371)
RZZE—=%F Proposed final 2013 dividend
BORRHRR B - - (322,342) (322,342)
R=B-=%
+=HA=+—H At 31 December 2013 1,399,000 142,105 2,031,861 2,173,966
30. f#fE 30. RESERVES

AEERBAIRBEFE 2 HES

oA

\

EEEHESEE 25 RET SRR £ 91
i AT RTE -

ZEBGABR([EEEG
AEZ))

R IE P B D AE R A B K R
MEAR 2 AEERME -
EHRBIREEMNE A RAKR
BABEARSFTRAEE 2
BB FBE10%E AR ETE
BHAES  HEEAWAQE
SEIPBRARENE AR
it AR A4S 250% % 1k © 289 0%
ERBRATE S A AR N
BB - HERNbIE 28R E
NS LR MR 2 25% °

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 91
of the financial statements.

(i)

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the articles of association of the Mainland China
subsidiaries, each of the Mainland China subsidiaries
is required to allocate 10% of their profit after tax,
as determined in accordance with the PRC generally
accepted accounting principles, to the SSR until the
reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital of the
Mainland China subsidiaries. Part of the SSR may be
converted to increase paid-up capital, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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30. RAE(E) 30. RESERVES (continued)
(i) EZFERFE (i) Exchange fluctuation reserve
PE 5 Eh % s A ERR s B 4 The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record
BB ARZTEHRE exchange differences arising from the translation of
EEZERZRE- the financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries.
Ed Rk
Wi ROEER RARR WhBE  RBHE  REEN  RERS it
Share Exchange Proposed
premium  Capital  Hedging fluctuation Retained final

Note  account  surplus  reserve  reserve  profits  dividend Total
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00O  RMB'000

R=Z-—%-f-H At 1 January 2012 762499 727430 (8622) (416,681) 12,734 504,661 1,582,021
FEXENRES Total comprehensive income for the year - - 6,196 268 297,346 - 303810
Bk Issue of shares 944,298 - - - - - 0%
BhRaRT Share issue expenses (11,637) - - - - - (188
RRERE SRS Proposed final 2011 dividend to new

“E—ERERE shares issued in the year - - - - (B4eT) 34T -
“R—FERRHRE Final 2011 dividend declared - - - - - (53933 (539,332
ZE-CERERSRE Proposed final 2012 dlvidend 13 [5,1%) - - - (02,700) 754,855 -
R=Z-—E+-f=1-RH  At31 December 2012 1,143,000 727,430 (2426) (416,413 72,709 754,856 2,279,155
FEREhGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2426 (714270) 518,107 - 446263
E30)0) Issue of shares 1,205,574 - - - - - 1,005574
O Share Issue expenses (14,371) - - - - - [4n)
RAEREEAHREEN Proposed final 2012 dividend to new

“E-CERERE shares issued in the year - - - - = = =
“§-_ESERIRE Fina 2012 dividend declared : : - - - (5855 (754856
“3-CEERRERS Proposed final 2013 dividend 13 (323 - - - (502578 824020 -

RZF-ZEtZB=t-R  At31 December 2013 2,031,861 721,430 - (490683 88208 824920 3,181,766
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

wmR instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
KEH
Group
—E-=% —ECF
2013 2012
£ e
BFEE R StREE @i BRREKEE
Available-for-
Held for ~ Loans and sale financial Loans and
trading  receivables assets Total  Receivables
ARETR AR¥TR ARETz ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
fTESBTA Derivative financial instruments 3,456 - - 3,456 =
AR ERE Available-for-sale investment - - 200,000 200,000 -
SABNFE - e R Financial assets included in
Hih g 2 prepayments, deposits and
SREE other receivables - 59,217 - 59,217 58,635
BUEREIRER Trade and bills receivables - 1,374,991 - 1,374,991 1,397,759
NeETSa=HEA2 Bank deposits with an initial term
BITER of over three months - 27,425 - 27,425 130,868
RELBLEEY Cash and cash equivalents - 2,609,050 - 2,609,050 2,144,405
2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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31. REHE S 2EMTE(E) 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
AEE
Group
—E-=fF —E——F
2013 2012
REBSEHA R SH K AR
dHE2 REEEZ tHE
EREE LRERE TRAE @t
Financial Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities liabilities at
amortised held for amortised
cost trading cost Total

AR®TR AREBTT ARETT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

N R EE Trade and bills payables 391,749 - 397,099 397,099
FEAT AR A - RUR Amounts due to related parties - = 3,288 3,288
TRRTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings - - 786,226 786,226
ST E e S 2B K Financial liabilities included in other

st A e REE payables and accruals 268,669 - 157,240 157,240

PTESmIA Derivative financial instruments - 9,550 = 9,550
¥ YN
Company
—Eg—= —E—_4F
2013 2012
ERRERRE B MEWRIE
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
AR® T AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
STATENEIE  BE Kk Financial assets included in prepayments,

HabfEW ATz & m&E  deposits and other receivables 1,379,159 1,006,152
FEU Bt B A RIFKIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 215,085 96,811
BB AR ZER Loans to subsidiaries 927,482 1,157,567
FEUBR 3R Trade receivables 79,154 422,740
RENIREEBEY Cash and cash equivalents 492,052 130,779
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
NN
Company
—E-=f B4
2013 2012

REBSEHA B

HHE2 REEEZ tH
cRERE TRBGE TRAE et

Financial Financial Financial

liabilities at liabilities liabilities at

amortised held for amortised
cost trading cost Total
AR¥ETFRE ARBTT ARETRE ARBTET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FERTHTB A RIFIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 815,379 - 1,085,021 1,085,021
EARZREE Trade and bills payables - - 10,974 10,974
TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - 8,998 - 8,998
FTESRITREMEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings - - 346,241 346 241

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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2. EMIBAZARERAAE 32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
[E 4 OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AEERARAzeRITAREERA The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the
AEEAT Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

rEE
Group
BREE DRME
Carrying amounts Fair values
—g2-=F -5 ZB-=F —IT——-F
2013 2012 2013 2012
AREBTR AREFTT AR¥®TR AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SREE Financial assets
TEeMIT A Derivative financial instruments 3,456 - 3,456 -
AEHERE Available-for-sale investment 200,000 = 200,000 =
SHAFERNTIE %4 K Financial assets included in
H A WK prepayments, deposits and
SREE other receivables 59,217 58,635 59,217 58,635
FENBRTR Trade receivables 1,374,991 1,397,759 1,374,991 1,397,759
e FER B =18 A Bank deposits with an initial term
ZHITER of over three months 27,425 130,868 27,425 130,868
RekReEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 2,609,050 2,144,405 2,609,050 2,144,405
cREE Financial liabilities
FERIRR R RE Trade and bills payables 391,749 397,099 391,749 397,099
FEfSRRE A T FUA Amounts due to related parties - 3,288 - 3,288
FTESRITEER Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 786,226 - 785,877
T AE A0S FIE K Financial liabilities included in
i sEzeRaRE other payables and accruals 167,869 157,240 167,869 157,240
PTESHITA Derivative financial instruments - 9,550 - 9,550

180 ®HEEREEERAERAR
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2. ERMTAZARERARE 32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
B&(E) OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b NG|
Company
SREE DRE
Carrying amounts Fair values
2= T CZT-Zf <—IZ-C_F
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARSTR ARETT AR%¥TR ARETH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
SREE Financial assets
SFATEMNTIE %4 N Financial assets included in
HMEWZIE, £ 5 EE prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 1,379,159 1,006,152 1,379,159 1,006,152
JEL P B A Rl kA Amounts due from subsidiaries 215,085 96,811 215,085 96,811
BTHBRRZER Loans to subsidiaries 927,482 1,157,567 927,482 1,157,567
[ R 2R Trade receivables 79,154 422,740 79,154 422,740
ReREEEED Cash and cash equivalents 492,052 130,779 492,052 130,779
=R Financial liabilities
LANLIEINGIERE Amounts due to subsidiaries 815,379 1,085,021 815,379 1,085,021
AN E S Trade and bills payables - 10,974 - 10,974
fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - 8,998 - 8,998
FTESRITEER Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 346,241 - 345,892

EREEMNBBEZAANEBENZIARE
X577 (MIFRESFREE)EMR
S THARZEEAR - THTERR
RILAREERAE

TZ2HNBERREEEY  NEFER
HEa=AzRITEX BEEREE
B BAERRAREER - STABNFOR -
BeREMBEUHREZEBEE  5TA
HENFRRREFRBEZEREE
el BRI SRIERETHEA
RAIZERETAREHRANIE  wAan
ERAEFEERES

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits
with an initial term of over three months, trade and bills
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, amounts due from/
to subsidiaries and loans to subsidiaries approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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32. TR TAZARERAAE

B (&)

SRBTREEZ AR BDERAEEM
B EERREHTIHAZ TAR
ARGz NRBRBARKE L RE

st -

AEBEZEHTITLTEESHTAR -
TEERTA(BREREREHN) K
P EHE ER O fERME (A
REE) - ZFRAMAZSBETIRZT
LHBEEBABBR(BRETZEEE
= INERHMEBES) - ZMERA
W REEEE AR ERR -

W—ZE—Z=ZF+-—A=+—8 EmE
EEZITEEEMRRTIHRITAE T A Y
FEARBREE ZEEFHAE - £h
FERKRZSEHHIETBE FEE LT
SETAREBEAAERRAZHEMEHMT A
ZEABET AT EERATE -

REBEATIEBRAEE REESH
TRAZRAARE:

£ REREEXEERERD
BZRERERAB)GFEZ

DAfE

FoF . REERM EAEMRAZY
AAEFEMEBERNZR
EERBARELIRERNL
REERMEAEZARE

E=F . REERM EMEMRAZY
ARAEFEMEBERNZR
(EFIE PN (¢ DERNCIE S E:
FEZARE
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32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The fair values of the interest-bearing bank borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments on similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties. Derivative financial instruments, including
forward currency contracts are measured using valuation
techniques similar to forward pricing, using present value
calculations. The models incorporate various market observable
inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign
exchange spot and forward rates. The carrying amounts of
forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

As at 31 December 2013, the marked to market value of the
derivative asset position is net of a credit valuation adjustment
attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes
in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the hedge
effectiveness assessment for derivatives designated in hedge
relationship and other financial instruments recognised at fair
value.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2:  fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3:  fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable
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EB#&(E)
BARBEGEZEE Assets measured at fair value:
AEH Group

As at 31 December 2013
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32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

E—& ER E=& st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARBTRT AR¥ETrT AR®TR AR®TrR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 3,456 - 3,456
R-E——FE+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2012
F—H F-; F=M FEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETIT AR®TT AR®ETT AREKETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TTESMTIEAE Derivative financial instruments - - - -
BARBEFEZEE : Liabilities measured at fair value:
AEH Group
R=B-=F+=HA=+—H As at 31 December 2013
EF—® ER F=R st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AREBTT ARETRT AR®TR AR%®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TTEEmT A Derivative financial instruments - - - -
RZE——F+HA=+—H As at 31 December 2012
EF—H <Rt E= FEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TTEEmT A Derivative financial instruments - 9,550 - 9,550
2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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32. TMITAZAARERAARE
Bi&k(E)

AT

R-ZE—=F+=-H=+—H

32. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Company
As at 31 December 2013

& -t 1 E=HR e
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AREBTRE AR®TR AR®BTR AR%®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Derivative financial instruments - - - -

As at 31 December 2012

F—H E-4R F= @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TTESRTA Derivative financial instruments - 8,998 - 8,998
RZE—=F+=ZA=+—HRZZT— The Company did not have any financial assets measured at fair
ZHE+ZHA=1T—H  AARLEEMA value as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.
BRAREECEREE -

LY A

184 =EiiEREEZEEARAT  Annual Report 2013

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans and cash and short-term time
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set
out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations
(including the bank borrowings due to repayment after one year
which contain a repayment on demand clause) with floating
interest rates.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax and the Group’s equity.

AEH
Group
R AT
3 RmsEmS EEEmS
THES OR2) Om2)
Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
decrease in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity

ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—E—= 2013
R 2= If interest rate increases +50 - -
INF =T If interest rate decreases -50 = =
T 2012
AR F3 If interest rate increases +50 (2,828) (2,828)
INF R R If interest rate decreases -50 2,828 2,828

AEEERHZHERRE - Z5RABIR
BHE - REEL81% (ZT——4F:
80%) $H & LASNES ET{E + T IELAETT 84
EZREBMNEEE ARBIE - &
SEEZRIERLLEMNERRPELS
# - LUBRTEEI B & HEmE 2 IMNER

g o
N

WARE R - BREHIER 2 B
BERERITETAZFH  UERRA
AR

RZEBE—=F+_A=+—H  £5E
#5{E{E60,000,000E L (ZT——4F :
120,000,000 ) 2 =B &4 - 15
EREEHAZRBEINEFHE ZHH
R -
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The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales. Approximately 81% (2012: 80%)
of the Group’s sales were denominated in foreign currencies
other than the functional currency of RMB of the operating units
making the sale. The Group requires the major operating unit to
use forward currency contracts to eliminate the foreign currency
exposures on the forecast future sales.

It is the Group’s policy to negotiate the terms of the hedge
derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to maximise
the hedge effectiveness.

At 31 December 2013, the Group held forward currency
contracts of US$60,000,000 (2012: US$120,000,000)
designated as hedges in respect of forecast future sales to
overseas customers.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

In addition, the Group also enters into other foreign currency
contracts which are not designated for hedge purposes and
measured at fair value through profit or loss. These foreign
currency contracts are settled based on the extent of the
appreciation of the RMB against the US$ exchange rates
as management forecasts that the rate of such appreciation
will be lower than that forecasted by the counterparty. As at
31 December 2013, the Group held no outstanding foreign
currency contract (2012: US$100,000,000 from 1 month to 4
months).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in foreign
currency exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities).

SNESEE R HERBLAT
EH T FEz&E
Increase/
decrease Effect on
in foreign profit
currency rate before tax
% ARETT
% RMB’000
—E—=F 2013
i A R#E K ETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (369,999)
AR FZITRE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 369,999
—E— 2012
i AR S ETTAE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (120,576)
HAREEH ETE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 120,576

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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33. AR EEEERBER

(&)

AEBEEENEZREERFZE=ZTHE
IRF - BAKBEZHEK - FRAERRIE
EHETRGZER  WAKBEER
BEF o IS AEERFEEREEK
RiES BAKEERY ZZRARIL T
BEX - HRUIFARBRLEN 2
BREZRS - RIFREEZERRE
ERRME BAAKETEHETE

ERAEEEMEREE(BERE LR
T FEY HtRYGRIENRETITE
TRIEEAZEERR  KEXSHTH
RPE - fAXEERBESRZEL
HZBRMEE °

HRASEERENGAEERTFZE=
FHEOIRS AL BEERR - 58S
REBEER,/ RSEFER - PG
MR AEEAREETEESTAR -
ARNEFHI7% (ZF——F :39%) &
89% (ZZT—Z4F : 91%) B R R H
AREAEEZHZARFRARNES ©
HRAKREZFERFHAERELZR
AR BEASEEEYRPERH
% BAlit AEEAEZEEBREESEY
[Z\Bg2 o

BRAASERB RERRZEERRE
—HEBUR - NIRRT 205E

AEBEBEEABRABDES A TAER
ExRAR ARIAZEESRT
ARemEEPImERERT) <2 8B
UAMBEXRG 2 BARTRE -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, other receivables and
certain derivative instruments, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as 17% (2012: 39%)
and 89% (2012: 91%) of the Group’s trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. As the major customers of the Group
are all world-famous brand companies, which have established
a long-term business relationship with the group, concentrations
of credit risk are well managed by the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
20 to the financial statements.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
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MERREEBERBEEK 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(4&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

R EHR - RRE AT A &I G The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
5 AEESRAGZIBERAT: the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

A58
Group
—E-=E
2013
~MERZE
REX  SRAER SRR -EmE MELL @t
Less than 6 to less than 1t02 Over

Ondemand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARBTR AR®TR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR®TR
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

EREARER Trade and bills payables - 386,613 5,136 - - 391,749
HiERTR Other payables 268,669 - - - - 268,669
268,669 386,613 5,136 - - 660,418

A58

Group

—E-—F

2012
~NEAZE
BREX  ORAER PRTZEA —EMF MENE @t
Less than 6 to less than 1102 Over

On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARRTT  ARMTR ARBTE ARETE ARETT ARETR
RMB0O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

HFERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 365,097 182,280 238,849 - 786,226
BRI RERE Trade and bills payables - 396,408 691 - - 397,099
Eft 5 Other payables 157,240 - - - - 157,240
EREEALTE Amounts due to related parties - 3,088 - - - 3,288
THEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 9,550 - - - 9,550

157240 774343 182,971 238,849 - 1353408
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33. IBEREERFERBEXE 33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
b N
Company
“E-ZF
2013
~MIRE
RER  SRAER HSRT=fA -EWE AERL @t
Less than 6 to less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARBTR ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ENREARNE Amounts due to subsidlaries - 815,379 - - - 815,379

AT

Company

“E-—F

2012
NMEAZE
BEL DRAEA SRTZEA —EWE MENE @t
Less than 6 to less than 1102 Over

On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARBTT ARMTR ARRTT ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMBOO0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

SAERAEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 264,529 81,712 - - 346,241
N ES Trade and bills payables - 10,974 - - - 10,974
ENREARNE Amounts due to subsidliaries - 1,085,021 - - - 1,085,021
TESRIE Derivative financial instruments - 8,998 - - - 8,998

- 1,369,522 81,712 - - 1,451,234
AEEERER L FEHEEREER The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
ERRFELCE RN RERRITERL to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
EoPTFEEBRARRFNEAE and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

(1 business and maximise shareholders’ value.

190 SFMNBEBEEZERAERAT  Annual Report 2013



33. AR EEEERBER

(&)

AEERBREERAEHERRARR
EEREFAERRRIRMT RS - [K
REBEALBETHR HE_T—=
Ft+ZA=FT—BEk=ZZE—Z=-F+=A
=+—HLEFE EHEEEANE
2 BORS R EES)

AEBRAEABELR(AEHFER
CABREARNERSFHE)ERER - B
SFEAENBETER  BURER &
HERF R AR - Hfh fE A 38 R BT
LA K BR8N T3R8 - IR e MR
SEEY - EABERRREE AEML
RS RIS RIREBAR - BR
BELREAT

B RS SRR M

Notes to Financial Statements

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, advances
from customers, trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, amounts due to related parties, less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the
parent less the hedging reserve. The gearing ratios as at the
end of the reporting periods were as follows:

AEE

Group
—E-—= —E——4F
2013 2012
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
STRERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 786,226
T8 U BR X Advances from customers 14,095 4,939
R EBRR N EE Trade and bills payables 391,749 397,099
HubfERFRIB R EETZ T Other payables and accruals 531,168 431,779
FES B8 A T 5KI8 Amounts due to related parties - 3,288
B BeRIREEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (2,609,050) (2,144,405)
ET% 558 Net debt (1,672,038) (521,074)
MR EHEE AE(GERE Equity attributable to owners of the parent 10,316,264 8,087,370
i Hedging reserve 2,592 (2,841)
AR Adjusted capital 10,318,856 8,084,529
BN BT F5E Capital and net debt 8,646,818 7,563,455
BERAFLE Gearing ratio (19%) (7%)
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34. &iE 34. COMMITMENTS
REERBAARHEECEHELH The Group leases certain of its office premises and plant
HEEETMHAEMERKES - under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements.
RZE—=%+=ZA=+—H " ' & At 31 December 2013, the Group had total future
SERBENAIHECEHERNZ aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
RREEESLEOT operating leases as follows:
rEH
Group
—E2—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR®T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within one year 61,768 38,885
BE_EERF In the second to fifth years, inclusive
(BEEREMF) 155,635 111,617
HF1& After five years 125,656 30,009
343,059 180,511
AEH
Group
—E-=F —E—_4F
2013 2012
ARETR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BETL B AR B Contracted, but not provided for:
EEEMN A ZKE Acquisition of prepaid land lease
LAY - B payments and property, plant and
S equipment 92,134 70,332
B B M RE Construction of property, plant and
equipment 266,882 48,849
359,016 119,181
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34. RiE(E 34. COMMITMENTS (continued)

RZE—=F+-A=+—H &
SERBATRERHINEEL - A
MERR(ZE——% : 1AAES5
& A A) i %60,000,000F T (==
— —4F : 120,000,0003 7T ) LA#EY
4N R#365,820,0000( =T ——
F P AREET54,260,0007T) °

35. WAREE 35.

R EIK - A EE AR A (A
SAHAAM -

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had commitments
in respect of outstanding forward foreign exchange
contracts to sell US$60,000,000 (2012: US$120,000,000)
for approximately RMB365,820,000 (2012: approximately
RMB754,260,000) within one month (2012: from 1 month
to 5 months).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the
Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

36. BEALRS 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AEH

Group
—Eg—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR® T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BER Remuneration of directors and

SRERAEME senior management 17,514 9,071

EREERRSTRAEFHE2E
— RHIEHN T I MAM S o

Further details of the directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

2013 F3 Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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36. BEAETRB (&) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
FE Continuing
BRATBEwER S BRI In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
AEBRFEANGEBEATETT financial statements, the Group had the following material
NEARS : transactions with related parties during the year:
TEE
Group
—E—= —E——F
2013 2012
AR®T R AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

MEFEMNELER AT Lease of property, plant and equipment
([EEMEZED" from Ningbo Shenzhou Properties Co.,
TEWE - BEKEE  Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”) * 7,262 7,262

RN EET 4 BR  Processing services provided by Ningbo

AR EM s ) Shenzhou Shitong Knitwear Co., Ltd.
R Z I TARTS (“Shenzhou Shitong”) * 13,064 12,925
MARESRERBDER Purchase of packing materials from

BREARI(TEREES  Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
ANE]])EREE e YR Materials Company Limited

(“Huaxi Packaging Company”) ** 42,389 39,023

* BMNEERAMEBBEAAR T — * Shenzhou Properties and Shenzhou Shitong are controlled

BITE S E - by one of the Company’s executive directors.
> ERBERARBAARFEF— o Huaxi Packaging Company is controlled by the relatives of

BWITESE 2 BBIES - one of the Company’s executive directors.
MEEATCHKEREERESR The purchase and lease from the related parties were
BAARIMETEXFREZARE made according to the published prices and conditions
& R AGRHETT © offered by the related companies to their major customers.
AEBREARARZETRITERK Certain bank loans and credit facilities of the Group and
EERMBERARRRESZEN ZAF the Company are guaranteed by the companies controlled
BR - by the directors of the Company.
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36. BEALTRB(E) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
REBHEEMSEATHUTEKR The Group had the following significant balance with its
A related party:
REHE
Group
—_E—= —E——F
2013 2012
ARBTR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERTRAE A 5018 Amount due to a related party
—HEZEM : — Trade related:
EFRBKMAA Huaxi Packaging Company - 3,288
- 3,288
37. #t/EMBERR 37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
EzeN 22— NWE=A=-+HABA#AE The financial statements were approved and authorised for
I B RE T B B TS R o issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2014.
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Financial Information Summary

AEBRIBEA S RRMEEERIATARME A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and minority
HHFEZERAMEEAREE BERDE  interests of the Group for the last five financial years, prepared on the
RREREEHINAT basis as set out herein, is set out below:

BET-A=t-HLEE/R+=A=t-H
For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December
“%-Zf "B C"T—% C"T-TF _"TTHhF
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
AR¥TRT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

E Results

WA Revenue 10,047,217 8,037,578 9,043,442 6,719,172 6,093,485

BEKA Finance costs (10,010) (29,987) (51,243) (35,837) (25,393)

BT Profit before tax 2,201,209 2,005,465 2,059,420 1,624,597 1,473,553

FTEH X Income tax expense (397,297) (383,985) (354,573) (351,952) (220,439)

FEHE Profit for the year 1,803,912 1,621,480 1,704,847 1,272,645 1,253,114

MR AT BB - Attributable to;

BATERA Owners of the parent 1,802,989 1,620,158 1,703,845 1,271,654 1,252,030

i3y e Non-controlling interests 923 1,322 1,002 991 1,084
1,803,912 1,621,480 1,704,847 1,272,645 1,053,114

EE 8ERK Assets, Liabilities and

FEHIER Non-controlling Interests

BEE Total assets 11,317,274 9,895,409 8,549,559 7,425,455 5,427,229

BaE Total liabilties (985,617)  (1,773.275)  (2,437,331)  (2,612,184)  (1,531,533)

FEPR 1 R Non-controlling interests (15,393) (34,764) (33,999) (13,739) (13,201)

10,331,657 8,122,134 6,078,229 4,799,532 3,882,495

M AEEBE_ZT——FR_F—=F1+"H  Note: The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended

=S+ HIEMBEFERFEZEEEE UK 31 December 2012 and 2013 and the consolidated assets, liabilities
RZBE——FR_T—=F+-A=+—H and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and
IEEEE  AERIFEHMERER TSN 2013 are those set out on pages 87 to 195 of the financial statements.
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Shanghai Representative Office
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